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Ideas create, values protect

@ Edelvx-/e‘iss.







Rooted in Creation.
Growth through Diversity.

The Edelweiss, a rare and protected species of flora grows on

the steep Alpine slopes of Europe.

This little white flower’s deep fibrous roots and the felt like
covering of its leaves protect it from the harsh winters and
chilly winds of the region. The name, Edelweiss, is a derivation
of German words, ‘edel’ (noble) and ‘weiss’ (white) and has
long been associated with purity, romance and nobility. The
Armed forces of several European countries sport the insignia
of Edelweiss on their uniforms to connote valour, protection

and peace.

Itis this rare flower that we use to best represent our beliefs. A
purity, steadfastness and freshness of purpose combined with
the rare ability to constantly seek out innovative ideas. The
protective arms of the letter ‘e’ encircle the graphic flowerand
represent the values that govern our actions. We believe ideas

create wealth, butvalues protectit.

The core inspiring thought of ‘ideas create, values protect’
translates into a ‘diversified’ approach, powered by ‘passion
and creativity’ and ‘protected’ by risk management,

intellectual rigour, governance and culture at Edelweiss.

As with our name, for the FY14 Annual Report we take
inspiration from India’s abundant and diverse flora. India’s
floras thrive in completely different ecosystems - swamps and
marshland, hot and dry deserts, freezing temperatures and
coastal salty airs. Weaving an ever-growing ecology that is

diverse yet sustainable, profitable, robust and enriching.

Allow us to tell you our annual story with the help of these

beautiful symbols of hope and growth...
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Performance Highlights

Consolidated Financial Performance of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and its subsidiaries

Year Ended March 31, 2010 2009 2008

(in X million except per share data)

Total Income 25,555 21,840 16,707 14,289 9,778 9,005 10,888 3,718 1,533 727 281 104
Total Expenditure 22,040 19,247 14,720 10,789 6,450 5,715 6,421 1,971 898 383 175 95
Profit Before Tax 3,515 2,593 1,987 3,500 3,328 3,290 4,467 1,747 636 345 106 9
Tax Expenses 1,346 881 681 1,031 879 1,199 1,540 646 218 107 28 4
Net Profit (after minority) 2,202 1,785 1,277 2,330 2,292 1,864 2,732 1,099 417 237 78 5
Paid up Equity Capital 724 719 757 752 375 375 375 45 38 29 28 27
Networth* 30,950 26,909 28,748 25554 24,706 23,303 23,274 7,222 1,787 539 302 226

Diluted earning per share (FV % 1) (in 3)# 2.85 2.31 1.66 3.00 2.94 2.43 4.00 2.08 0.93 0.64 0.24 0.02

Book Value per share (FVZ 1) (in%)#  35.48 32.13 34.80 30.56 30.04 28.21 24.65 9.36 3.93 1.58 0.92 0.69

# Adjusted for Corporate Actions ~ * Networth including minority ~ Previous years' figures have been regrouped wherever necessary
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Expanding possibilities,
scaling beyond boundaries.

The Mangrove is a ubiquitous plant species that thrives 'in the coastal areas
between sea and land. While they grow partially submerged in saline sea water,

they also support a large and diverse ecosystem. In India, mangroves sustain a rich

and diverse fauna living in its protective environs.
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Scalability

The Edelweiss Group is one of the nation’s leading financial services

conglomerate. The Group operates five business clusters - Credit

including Housing Finance, Financial Markets, Asset Management,

Life Insurance and Commodities; covering all significant areas of

financial servicesin India. This coverage enables the Group to address a

large pool of savings and investments across diverse consumer
segments.

Some Facts:

e TheGroup:

Balance sheet of 160 billion in FY14 compared to X33 billion
in FY0O9 signifying increased focus on capital based
businesses.

Net worth of ¥30.95 billion in FY14, up from ¥23.30 billion in
FYO09.

216 officesin 118 cities including six international offices.

Over 4000 employees cater to around 500,000 retail, HNI,
corporate and institutional clients.

e TheBusinesses:

Housing Finance business’ Small Ticket Housing Loans
expanded coverage to 14 cities and over 400 villages.

Institutional Equities business continues to be one of the
largest Institutional broking houses in the country.

One of the leading Commodities players in Agri-commodities
and Bullion with a sizeable market share in each.

Fixed Income Advisory business has scaled considerably and
is one of the leading debt arrangers in the country having
handled transactions totalling over 3465 billion in public and
private placement of debtin FY14.

Major distributor of public issues in equities and debt in
FY14. Ranked 1st in IPO distribution in the combined Retail
and HNI (NIB) category with 52% market share (amount
procured).
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Shooting higher and stronger.

The Bamboo is one of the fastest growing plants in the world and some species can
grow at an astonishing rate of 3 feet an hour in their peak growth stage! It is light
weight with amazing strength and this makes it highly resistant to cyclones,

earthquakes and even floods.

India has the largest bamboo forests in the world covering almost 13% of the
forest area with around 50% of these forests growing in the North Eastern States.



Growth & Profitability

At Edelweiss, scripting a profitable growth story has been our

bedrock since inception. This has given us the leverage to invest in

long term business opportunities alongside consistent investments

in organisation building - leadership, risk, technology, research &

analytics and robust systems & execution processes. This strong

strategy has helped the Group grow from being an advisory house

into an efficient, productive and profitable Credit and Financial
Services Institution.

Some Facts:

e  The Group:

Has been a profitable company ever since inception; as a
publicly listed company, Edelweiss has been profitable in
every single quarter.

Posted total revenues of ¥25.56 billion and a Profit after Tax
of 2.2 billion in FY14.

PAT ex-insurance stood at 2.7 billion compared to 32.26
billion for FY13.

Steady revenue growth : 31%in FY13 and 17% in FY14.

Steady PAT growth annually and quarterly: 39% in FY13 and
23%in FY14.

Return on Equity (RoE) ex-insurance is 12.3% for FY14.

Dividend payout of 0.70 (30.55 +0.15) per share (FV ¥ 1)
to shareholders.

e  The Businesses

Credit book grew 31% in FY14 to ¥86.3 billion with a 5 year
CAGR of 69% .

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance gross premium rose 102% in
FY14 while the Agency channel grew by 113% to 7255
personal financial advisors.

Alternative Asset Management AUM rose to 3119 billion in
FY14 from %27 billion a year ago, a growth of 440% in one
year.

Fixed Income advisory managed a total of 53 transactions in
FY14, a 36% growth over FY13.
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Yielding high efficiency,
all around, all across.

In Sanskrit, the coconut tree is called kalpa vriksha, meaning “the tree which provides
all.the necessities of life”. The coconut meat and water are a good source of food and
hydration. The nut hulls are used as bowls and cups. The leaves are used to thatch
roofs .and build shelter. The wood is used to make different types of utensils,

decorative items and more.

Several coastal communities across India’s coastline depend on the coconut for their complete sustenance.



Productivity & Efficiency

Enhancing efficiencies and raising productivity levels enabled us to
thrive in the challenging economic environment of FY13 and FY14.
We initiated several proactive measures to raise our operating
efficiency through a judicious management of resources and planned
cost reduction. The resultant higher RoE in FY14 is testament to our
concerted and strategic efforts. This focussed and persistent approach
enabled us to improve our performance, strengthen the balance
sheet and boost efficiency across our business verticals.

Some Facts:
e Stronger balance sheet with diversified borrowing profile.

e Anon linear growth year with 13% Balance sheet growth
accompanied by 23% growth in profitability in FY14.

e Cost to income ratios steadily improving with increasing

operating and capital efficiencies.

Reducing Cost to Income Ratio Improved Tangible RoE
(Ex-Insurance) (Ex-Insurance)

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY12 FY13 FY14

e Employee strength grew by 2.5%, while PAT has grown by 23%
indicative of higher productivity and efficiency.

e Revenue/employee increased by 14% while PAT/employee
increased by 21% in FY14 over FY13.

e In FY14, invested in technology and automation initiatives to
achieve higher TAT and enhance service productivity.

The Growth Story 09



Mastering the elements,
rising to the challenges.

Teak, one of the most valuable hardwood varieties is indigenous to India. It is well
known for its medicinal properties as also for its endurance, strength and durability.

This resolute and life-sustaining tree is able to withstand various climatic conditions

and is known to reach heights of up to 50 metres!
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One ofthé world’s largest teak tree is at Parambikkulam Tiger Reserves, Kerala. i



Sustainability

The core thought that underlines each of our business decisions is to
provide long term value creation by building sustainable businesses.
Our business models are designed to endure and thrive even in the
most challenging environment. The focus on diversification,
calibrated growth and long-term investments in existing and adjacent
markets across asset classes and consumer segments helps to build
stability. Our focus remains on risk mitigation strategies, both short
term and long term, while making judicious investments with an eye
on future growth.

Some Facts:
e The Group

- Broad-based and diversified business model straddling all
asset classes and all consumer segments.

- Entry into new businesses to achieve stability and
predictability in earnings.

- Stable and diversified revenue pool: Credit 44%;
Financial Market 21%; Commodities 16%; Treasury 13%;
Insurance 6% .

- Well matched Asset Liability Management (ALM)
strengthens balance sheet.

- Stronger balance sheet with diversified sources of
borrowings; Debt market borrowings have reduced from
50% in FY11 to 34% in FY14.

- Steady growth in Net fund based income to 8.8 billion in
FY14 as compared to ¥5.09 billion in FY12, a 73% rise.

The Growth Story 11



Spreading seeds,
growing forests.

From a single acorn, a forest does grow. That is the strength of an oak tree,
many of which can live upto 200 years. The fruit (nut) of the Oak, the acorn, is
a symbol of strength, power and patience as it braves storms, flood and heat

to grow into a mighty tree, in turn nurturing another cycle of growth.

The mighty oak is generally found in the North East and in the foothills of the Himalayan range.



Management

Investing in leadership has been an integral part of our management
matrix. Edelweiss has one of the most stable senior management
teams enabling it to create sustainable businesses and nurture young
talent to become future leaders. The ‘Collective Ownership and
Individual Responsibility’ fosters a robust entrepreneurial culture
that cultivates leaders who can add value and shape the organisation,

year after year.

Some Facts:

The Board of Directors mentor and guide senior management
and are closely involved in fitment, performance as well as
succession planning of business leaders.

Stability and long tenure of senior management coalesces to
strengthen organisation culture and values while guiding
strategic initiatives and business growth.

Multi-tiered Edelweiss Leadership Programme (covering
approximately 7% of the total employees) grooms high potential
leaders for organisation expansion.

Over 13,700 training mandays across all levels covering two
thirds of all Edelweiss employees.

Fountainhead Leadership Center, Alibaug continues to be the
center for all employee development activities with employees
spending a total of around 1000 room nights for offsites,
trainings, workshops, etc.

The Growth Story 13



;r!l- -'YI r( i s "
ARG Y
a0 A T - [

Edelweiss Annual Report 2013-14

Adhering to the greater good.

Since times immemorial, the banyan tree has held a sacred position in India and at
various times symbolises ‘shelter’ or the ‘personality’ of a benevolent ruler who
looks after all under his care. It is the tree of knowledge, enlightenment and

longevity and the seat of village chaupals and ancient gurukuls as well.
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Governance

Creating an ecosystem led by integrity is the cornerstone of
our corporate governance. At Edelweiss, our growth curve has
been historically accompanied by concurrent organisation-wide
investments in governance, compliance and risk management. This

strict adherence to checks and balances fosters a culture of
transparency and is buoyed by initiatives that go beyond the
statutory parameters, thus setting the highest standards of Corporate
Governance.

Some Facts:

Eleven member Edelweiss Board of Directors, majority of whom
are independent directors collectively provide the Edelweiss
Group with over 300 man years of experience.

The Board member’s diverse skill sets span banking, financial
markets, asset & wealth management, policy making, legal
services, finance & accounts and overall administration.

Key Board committees like audit committee and remuneration
committee consist entirely of independent Directors.

Major  subsidiaries have external oversight through
independent directors.

State-of-the-art Risk and Compliance framework with Board level
oversight.

Central Global Risk Group (GRG) and Global Compliance Group
(GCG) with independent personnel within each business
constitute over 175 people who are involved in identification,
management and mitigation of risk and adherence to compliance
across the company.

Voted ‘The Best Corporate Governance, India 2013’ by London
based Capital Finance International Jury, and awarded ‘Best
Managed Company (mid-cap), India 2013’ and ‘Best Managed
Company (upto $500 million), India 2014’ by Finance Asia,
Hong Kong.
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Letter from the Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

Your Company has closed fiscal 2014 on an upbeat note and
we enter 2015 with renewed hope and confidence. A new
government has come to power on the promise of an early
economic revival and a return to high growth. This is a good
time for us to not only reflect on the past year but also set
the agenda for the future.

FY14 — The Year that was

Edelweiss Financial Services Ltd. has posted consolidated
revenues of 325.56 billion during FY14, an increase of 17%
over 321.84 billion recorded last year. Profit after Tax grew by
23% to 2.20 billion against ¥1.78 billion in the previous year.
PAT ex-insurance stood at 32.71 billion compared with
%2.26 billion for FY13, an increase of 20%. Our net worth
stood at ¥30.95 billion while our return on tangible equity
(ex-insurance) was at 12.3%, compared with 11.3% for the
previous year. | would call these highly satisfactory results
overall considering the volatile economic and political
environment of FY14.

In addition to improving profitability, your Company has
worked aggressively to strengthen the balance sheet, both
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from a liquidity as well as asset-liability management
perspective - reducing our dependence on short-term
borrowings and maintaining a matched ALM profile by
diversifying our sources of borrowings.

Despite the challenges of a tough business environment, all
the businesses of your Company scaled up during the year
making investments in training, technology and risk, enabling
us to capitalise on opportunities emerging from the
significantly improved economic sentiment expected in the
coming years.

For our new shareholders, here is a brief overview of the
Edelweiss Group, one of the country’s leading financial
services conglomerates. Organised around five business
verticals - Credit (including Housing Finance), Financial
Markets, Asset Management, Life Insurance and
Commodities, Edelweiss has expanded and grown into all
significant areas of financial services currently available. Your
Company provides a broad range of financial products and
services that address a large pool of savings and investments.
We offer our services to a substantial and diversified client
base that includes corporations, institutions and individuals -
from UHNIs to the financially excluded. Your Company’s
4,000 employees serve 500,000 clients across our retail and
wholesale platforms. Edelweiss is now present in almost all
the major Indian cities with 216 offices in 118 cities; including
six international offices. A strong network of over 5,700
authorised persons and sub-brokers provides further fillip to
your Company’s sales force.

Resurgent India in the making

The recent elections were a powerful demonstration of a
peaceful, decisive democratic process. Investors have always
given India the benefit of doubt over the years - because its
democracy and open society allows, in fact, forces it to self-
correct. A positive change in leadership gives investors the
confidence that a polity can openly and freely demand
change. Secondly, this demonstrates that India is not a land
of “unknown unknowns”. Even today, investors in China are
worried that something will explode, some new and
tenacious leadership could emerge, largely because of the
opacity around government processes. India, on the other
hand, has tough issues but is easy to read; risks exist but are



largely known. Thirdly, this election also demonstrated India’s
aspiration for growth and development - it was not about
welfare schemes, freebies or subsidies. This is a good
mandate overriding the oft mentioned belief that ‘capitalism
does not work, socialism does’. In fact, we now expect the
debates will not be about capitalism versus socialism or
urban versus rural - it will be about growth and development.

Over the last year, there have been many people who have
doubted India’s ability to bounce back, to self-correct and to
be intolerant of extremism of any kind. Their intellectual and
academic understanding of India failed to see the decisive
action that 800 million voters can take to change their
destiny. | expect the new government will revive the
competitive spirit in Indian entrepreneurs and investors and
lead the country to an economic resurgence in the next few
years. Given the huge potential of the country - both as an
investment destination and a consumer market - the days
ahead offer a wealth of opportunities for Edelweiss in every
business we operate in. As we stand at this juncture that will
hopefully mark the start of a long period of high growth for
the country as well as your Company, it is a good time to take
stock of what got us here.

Edelweiss — Key areas of focus

Until 2007, our first decade of growth was driven by a single
engine — capital markets, high growth rates, but very volatile.
Since our IPO until 2012, we concentrated on building
capacity and capability to drive many more growth engines.
This de-risked our business and reduced the dependence on
capital markets. Long-term investments in new businesses
like Insurance, Housing Finance, Asset Reconstruction and
Asset Management alongside the scale-up of the Credit and
Commodities businesses were made. Concomitantly, we
focussed on setting up systems and processes, risk
management, technology and people development to
strengthen the building blocks that bind Edelweiss together.
The last couple of years have been largely about
strengthening and consolidating our diversified businesses.
Independent Strategic Business Units (SBUs) were set up as
decentralisation became the mantra along with Quality,
Efficiency, Productivity and Customer Centricity.

Through these years, in addition to building new businesses
organically, we have also acquired many companies. These
include Rooshnil, marking our entry into the institutional
equities space; Anagram, to strengthen our retail equities

business, and more recently, Forefront, to widen our asset
management offering in the UHNI space.

Going forward, we will focus on five key areas from where we
derive our strength and demonstrate our edge.

Foremost is growing our leadership pool; bolstering young
leaders to take on bigger roles, giving senior leadership the
confidence and the bandwidth to continuously seek new
opportunities.

This leadership pool also catalyses the Edelweiss culture of
ownership - ‘my Company, my client, our risk, our values’.
Creating emerging leaders with the backing of a large
Edelweiss platform helps us to diversify, innovate and protect
our interests.

Aligned to this culture are our risk-management practices,
which are among the best in the industry, ably supported by
a strong and diligent governance and compliance process.
Both have central and Board level oversight with an efficient
structure for information flow and speedy decision-making.

Consistent investments in systems and processes, data
analytics, technology and automation have helped us
improve efficiencies and increase productivity, our fourth
focus area.

Lastly, our diversification strategy helps us to counter the
cyclical ups and downs of our industry and makes your
Company stable and growth ready.

Measurement of performance

We measure our performance on five key parameters:

1. Profitability: Your Company has always been profitable
and it is our endeavour to improve profitability ratios even
further. Several initiatives, like increasing organisation-
wide efficiency and productivity, stringent balance-sheet
management and overall better performance of all the
SBUs have ensured that the effect of an unfavourable
external environment is minimised. This year, we will
focus on reducing the cost-to-income ratio and improving
our Return on Equity (RoE).

2. Scalability: To keep up our growth momentum and meet
future challenges, our five business clusters - Credit,
Commodities, Financial Markets, Asset Management and
Life Insurance have nine SBUs catering to specific verticals.
Each of these SBUs has an advisory board comprising
the seniormost tier - Management Committee - that
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collaborate with the SBUs in guiding, advising and
providing strategic inputs. Each of our SBUs aspires to be
in the top three in their markets. | am happy to see almost
all our mature businesses in the wholesale/institutional
space are right up there. In some cases, we are number
one and in a few others, we are number two or three.

3. People: With every SBU creating its own pool of leaders
and the central leadership programme continuing to get
sharper, leadership development has been a pivotal force.
A committed and stable senior management remains our
biggest advantage providing unique strength to the
organisation.

4. Governance: SBUs now exercise requisite control over
most functions independently. This year, decentralisation
of compliance functions has reduced complexity in this
area for many SBUs. You will also be happy to know that
your Company has been voted “India’s Best Managed
Company” (up to $500 million cap companies) in the Asia’s
Best Companies poll of analysts and investors run by
Hong Kong-based Finance Asia. This is the second year in a
row that we have received this recognition.

5. Sustainability: Our diversification strategy has sought to
achieve stability and de-risking of the business model. It
has also reduced volatility, paving the way for continuous
growth. We can see that over the past three years, our
new businesses have begun contributing upwards of 50%
of our total revenues. At the same time, our traditional
businesses continue to grow strong through sustained
investments in people and technology.

Our Businesses-Stable and Growing

As you are aware, your Company now has a significant
presence in all the important segments of the financial
services sector - each of which present unique growth
opportunities. For instance, in a capital deprived economy
like India, there’s a sizeable market for credit. Even in tough
current market conditions, the credit market continues to
grow at a healthy 15% annually. NBFCs have been growing at
a faster pace than banks, and with another spell of
heightened economic growth on the anvil, demand for credit
is set to pick up.

Then there is the life insurance sector that offers a sizeable
opportunity space as around 15% of household savings in the
country flow into life insurance, second only to banking.
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Similarly, the outlook remains buoyant for the Asset
Reconstruction business - where your Company is growing
fast - and the capital market businesses where volumes could
grow in a big way with the expected turnaround in the
economy.

Now, let me walk you through our individual businesses.

Credit: Our credit business has grown horizontally and
vertically to include SME and retail credit, including Housing
Finance and small ticket home loans. Consequently, we now
cater to a wide spectrum of clients - from corporates and
SMEs to retail and rural clients.

Total credit book of the Group witnessed a healthy 31%
growth over last year and stands at ¥86.28 billion at the end
of FY14.

Within this, Retail finance has a book size of ¥20.90 billion
with assets under management of ¥22.40 billion. Our retail
credit business has a client base of over 16,000 in 22 major
cities and 400 villages where both retail loans and small ticket
housing loans are disbursed.

Our NBFC subsidiary ECL Finance Limited is well placed to
grow its asset book with confidence in the future, having
added a new source of long-term liabilities by virtue of the
highly successful maiden Public Issue of NCDs of X5 billion in
January 2014.

Insurance: Our insurance venture has significantly expanded
our addressable retail markets. Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance
Company (ETLI) continued to scale up, with its gross premium
rising 102% this year to I1.11 billion compared with
%550 million in FY13.

The insurance business is present in 48 cities across India and
has seen significant growth with the Agency channel now
doubling the numbers of Personal Financial Advisors to
around 7300. Focus for this year is to increase productivity
and continue to differentiate by adherence to the proprietary
Need-Based Selling approach.

Financial Markets: Our Institutional Broking business
continued to be among the market leaders and performed in
line with the industry. Our flagship Institutional Investor
conference, the Edelweiss India Conference, was a grand
success with over 100 Indian Corporates and around 500
global and Indian institutional investors participating. As part
of the theme, we launched our book ‘Thriving in Adversity -
Conversations with leaders of India’s Anti-Fragile Companies’.



The book captures insights from 22 iconic Indian business
leaders on their companies.

Edelweiss continues to lead as a major distributor in public
issues of equities and debt in FY14. We are ranked 1st in IPO
distribution during FY14 in Retail and HNI (NIB) categories
taken together with a 52% market share of the amount
procured.

Asset Management: Our Alternative Asset Management
business includes five alternative funds and Asset
Reconstruction Company (ARC). AUMs under Alternative
Asset Management business reached a level of over
119 billion at the end of FY14 compared with around
%27 billion last year.

Edelweiss ARC scaled up its AUM to over %92 billion at the
end of FY14 and is now among the leading ARCs in the
country. We are excited about the ARC opportunity as it helps
the economy to release productive assets, allows us the
opportunity to rehabilitate and reconstruct high quality
assets while reducing the burden on commercial banks.

We have also acquired the well known and highly respected
specialised liquid alternatives player Forefront Capital. Their
institutionalised approach to asset management for the
discerning UHNI and family offices clientele synergises with
the Edelweiss approach to innovative investments in this
growing asset class.

Our Retail Asset Management business managed 10 funds
across Equity, Debt and Liquid schemes and has been actively
participating in investor education initiatives across the
country.

Commodities: A strategically important business for us, it
was set up six years ago under the diversification strategy of
growing into adjacent asset classes on spotting growth
opportunities. Commodities business is now poised to gain
from the expected financialisation of the Indian commodities
market and can be an important growth driver in the future.
We are now developing a sophisticated, international
sourcing and procurement model for select commodities
besides readying ourselves to provide credit to the numerous
participants in the value chain.

FY15 — What should we expect?

The markets and industry have responded to the new
government’s early pronouncements with hope and
positivity. However, as President Obama has said, “Hope is

the belief that destiny will not be written for us, but by us, by
the men and women who are not content to settle for the
world as it is, who have the courage to remake the world as it
should be”.

We are at the stage where our businesses have begun to
scale, rigorous investment in people, product and processes
have been made, operating efficiencies and increased
productivity is the organisation-wide mantra and risk
management and compliance oversight has been increased
even more. In fact, the latter is our mainstay because |
believe that it is in times of heady optimism and growth that
more often than not, people tend to get careless. Today, we
are keen to accelerate, since the road is now wide open and
seems pothole free. However, we must, as always, be sure
that our brakes are well oiled and maintained and we will use
them at the right time.

In this era of “achche din”, our chosen path will remain that
of controlled aggression. This approach defines who we are
and what we believe in - speed coupled with caution,
aggression tempered with humility, looking to the future with
an eye on the lessons of the past. These are our core
strengths. Staying focussed and balanced in our approach.

Your Company acknowledges your unfaltering faith in our
growth phase as well as in our recent investment phase.

I thank you all for standing by us and supporting us.
Regards,

Rashesh Shah
Chairman & CEO

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 17, 2014
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Edelweiss Guiding Principles
Our anchor

The sum total of our values. Each of the values that define us find
their rightful place in our charter - the Edelweiss Guiding
Principles. Together, these 10 principles celebrate our ethos, our
culture and business ethics while bringing to life our credo of ‘Ideas
create, values protect’.
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We will take
care of our People
seriously. Our policies
—in spirit and in letter
— will ensure transparency and
equal opportunity for all. We will go
beyond the normal goals of attracting,
recruiting, retaining and rewarding fine
talent. We will ensure that every
individual in Edelweiss has an
opportunity to achieve his/her
fullest potential.

We will Obey and
Comply with the rules of
the land. We will maintain
the highest standards of integrity
and honesty. When we are
unclear, we will seek
clarifications.

Our Financial Capital
is a critical resource for
growth. We will endeavour

to grow, protect, and use
our financial
capital wisely.

We will focus
on Growth for our
clients, employees
and shareholders.

Our Reputation and
Image is more important
than any financial reward.

Reputation is hard to build and
even harder to rebuild. Our reputation
will be impacted by our ability to think
for our clients, maintain confidentiality

and adherence to our value system.

We will focus on the Long term.
Though the world will change
a lot in the coming years and our
assumptions for the future may not
hold up, we will reflect on the long-term
implications of our actions. Even when
making short-term decisions, we will be
aware of the long-term implications.
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EdelGive - 6 Years of Creating Social Synergies

Always committed to the society at large, the Edelweiss Group
made philanthropy an indispensable part of its idea of growth
in 2005 when it formed a separate entity to channelise its
resources more effectively into serving the social cause.

Almost a decade since, it has made a difference to over
1,80,000 underprivileged lives across the country.

Established as the EdelGive Foundation, the initiative works
towards empowering non-profit organisations (NPOs) in the
areas of Education and Livelihood to achieve the greatest
impactin the social sector. Currently, it provides both financial
and non-financial support to 18 organisations across the
country committed to bringing about a systemic change in the
sector.

Our Highlights

e Financially supported over 40 NPOs.
e Committed over 3200 million.
¢ Impacted over 1,80,000 lives.

e Over 8,500 hours of pro bono support from Edelweiss
employees.

e Engaged over 1,700 Edelweiss employees via volunteering
and contributions.

We help NGOs Build Capacity

EdelGive believes in going beyond traditional funding practices
to offer critical non-financial support to its investee
organisations. EdelGive partners & Edelweiss employees
spend considerable time and expertise to deliver high quality
solutions to organisational issues being faced by the
organisations.

EdelGive offers non-financial supportin areas of:

e Strategy & leadership
e Financial planning & sustainability
e Systems, processes & technology

e Humanresources

We Engage Edelweiss Employees

At Edelweiss, we encourage a vibrant volunteering culture
across the organisation. The Foundation’s Employee
Engagement Programme leverages the skills and expertise of
Edelweiss employees to support and even guide organisations
working in the social sector on a voluntary basis. Under this
programme, we provide a perfect platform for our employees
to fulfil their social inclinations and commitments.
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We offer employees a range of opportunities for participation
through:

e Volunteering directly with NGO beneficiaries onsite
(E.g.: teaching, mentoring, workshops, etc).

e Payroll giving system (periodic donations to specific causes).

e Capacity buildingin specific areas for the NPO.

India NGO Awards

The India NGO Awards is a joint venture of The Resource
Alliance, The Rockefeller Foundation and EdelGive Foundation.
Instituted in 2006, the India NGO Awards seeks to recognise and
celebrate excellence in the non-profit sector and set an example
to inspire other non-profit organisations, thus promoting
overall achievementsand cross-learning.

The awards are open to NGOs working on a wide range of issues
related to women and children, education, health, livelihoods,
environment and arts and culture. The selection of winners is
through a rigorous six-month multi-stage process and based on
presentations made by the finalists to an eminent panel of jury
members.

Key Events

Palette 2014

Edelweiss and EdelGive Foundation hosted the third edition of
Palette 2014 - Art under Palms, at Fountainhead Leadership
Centre, Alibaug on February 16, 2014. Palette is a unique
charity art event that brings beautiful and affordable art to
over 600 patronsin order to raise funds for non-profit

organisations supported by the EdelGive Foundation. The
event helped spread awareness about EdelGive’s work and
raised funds for 10 NGOs that support the cause of Education
among underprivileged children.

Mumbai Marathon 2014

A team of 60 Edelweiss employees came together on a
common platform to raise funds and pledge their support for
great causes. Over 1,100 employees contributed to this,
helping raise Y2 million and create over 2,000 touchpoints of
contributions.

EdelGive Impact Workshop 2013

The EdelGive Impact Workshop 2013 was held from November
27-29 at Fountainhead Leadership Centre, Alibaug, brought to
the surface many ideas that could be of immense help in
serving the society.

Attended by over 20 participants from diverse organisations,
the three-day workshop was designed on the methodology of
Appreciative Inquiry. The workshop had group discussions and
peer-to-peer sharing of experiences and helped to identify
common areas of challenges and possible solutions to
overcome the challenges.
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Edelweiss Employees doing their bit!

Student Enrolment Drive & English Teaching Programme with
Masoom

Every year, selected Edelweiss employees volunteer to
undertake teaching for the full academic year. They conduct
two-hour sessions on Saturdays to teach English and English
conversation to the night school students. Some enthusiastic
volunteers have also accompanied the Masoom staff in various
slum communities for an education drive to enrol students in
the schools.

Financial Literacy Session with Make-a-Difference (MAD)

Several financial literacy sessions have been conducted by
Edelweiss employees over the last two years with the children
from MAD’s shelter homes across Mumbai. These sessions
include practical knowledge on banking, budgeting, saving,
etc. with a basic background on the office departments and
functions as well. These sessions have been held at Edelweiss
offices.

Soft Skills Workshop with Aangan

Female employees have undertaken soft skills workshops with
adolescent girls from NGO Aangan at Edelweiss House. The
workshops have been designed to include role plays, games
and other exercises with the objective of boosting their
motivation and increasing their confidence in an external
environment.

Workshop with Light of Life Trust (LoLT)

Edelweiss employees have facilitated motivational social-
cause workshops with students of Light of Life Trust (LoLT). The
workshop involved role plays, poster-making and slogans to
highlight the various social issues being dealt with the local
communities and suggested ways of dealing with them.

Employee Field Visit to Light of Life Trust (LoLT), Karjat
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Our Investment Highlights:

Uplifting tribal community of Mokhada through multi-faceted
interventions!

EdelGive supports a community development project in
Mokhada (Maharasthra) that reaches out to over 17,000
people through an integrated approach addressing the issues
of health, education, livelihoods and effective governance.

Taking innovative science education to doorsteps of
government schools!

EdelGive funds a Mobile Science Lab that seeks to transform
and stimulate the thinking of economically disadvantaged
children and teachers through innovative science education.
The project covers 28 schools in Alibaug and reaches out to
7,500 students.

Empowering adolescent girls with life skills education!

EdelGive supports an initiative for inculcating confidence in
adolescent girls from under-privileged communities of Patna.
The program helps to empower, inform and mobilize over
1,300girls.

Imparting education to children of Musahar community to
become catalysts of change!

EdelGive supports a full time, residential, English-medium
CBSE school catering to over 300 children of the highly
marginalized Musahar community in Bihar. The program seeks
to create inspirational role models to become catalysts of
change for the community.

Empowering the slum community of Tikiapara through a
holisticintervention programme!

EdelGive funds a low-cost English medium school, that reaches
out to 1,200 students belonging to the slum communities of
Tikiapara in West Bengal. The program works towards
combating the cycle of poverty through quality education.

Liberating women & educating girls of the Neo-Muslim
community of Mewat!

EdelGive supports interventions to strengthen 50 government
schools and reach out to over 4,900 girls belonging to the Neo
muslim community of Mewat, Alwar district of Rajasthan.
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Board of Directors

Mr. Rashesh Shah
Chairman & CEO

Mr. Shah, co-founder of the Company has diverse experience
in the financial services industry in India and has been
instrumental in building Edelweiss into one of India's leading
diversified financial services companies. Prior to founding
Edelweiss, he worked with ICICI Limited. He serves on the
Boards of various companies and has also served on the
Executive Committee of the National Stock Exchange of India
Ltd., India's premiere securities exchange. He has in the past
served on the Executive Committee of the National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. and presently serves as Chairman,
Maharashtra Council of FICCI. He currently serves on the SEBI
committee to review the Insider Trading Regulation. His
academic qualifications include an MBA from IIM, Ahmedabad
and a Diploma in International Trade from the Indian Institute

of Foreign Trade, New Delhi.

Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy
Executive Director

Mr. Ramaswamy, co-founder of the Company spearheads one
of the Company’s most strategic businesses Financial Markets
and Asset Management. He brings significant experience and
expertise on client relationships to Edelweiss. Prior to
Edelweiss, he worked with Spartek Emerging Opportunities
Fund and ICICI Limited. His academic qualifications include an
MBA from the University of Pittsburgh, United States of
Americaand a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronics Engineering.

Mr. Himanshu Kaji
Executive Director

Mr. Kaji is the Group Chief Operating Officer. He is responsible
for the overall functioning of the Corporate Planning,
Operations, Technology, Business Solutions, Governance,
Compliance, Finance, Stakeholder Relations, Global Risk,
Resources, Legal and Administration departments of the
Group. He is involved in formulating strategy and providing

vitalinputs for the effective functioning of the Group. Mr. Kaji
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is a qualified Chartered Accountant with a post graduate
diploma in securities law. Mr. Kaji has vast experience in the
financial services sector. Before joining Edelweiss in 2009, he
was corporate advisor to various large companies in the
financial services sector. Mr. Kaji was Honorary Treasurer &
Official Spokesman and Director of Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE) between 1999-2002. Presently, he is a member of the
Secondary Market Advisory Committee of SEBI.

Mr. Rujan Panjwani
Executive Director

Mr. Panjwani, an Electrical Engineer by qualification, has
extensive experience in the financial services industry working
across all asset classes. At Edelweiss, he helped set up the
Group's Treasury and Balance Sheet unit. Rujan is now a
member of the Assets & Liabilities Committee (ALCO) that
primarily oversees the implementation of an effective process
for managing Edelweiss' interest rate, liquidity and similar
market risks relating to the balance sheet and associated
activities, including the adoption of policies, risk limits and
capital levels from time to time. He also set up Edelweiss'
Global Risk Group - the nodal point for all risk monitoring and
management. He is now a member of the Global Risk
Committee - the highest decision-making body in Edelweiss
on Risk-related issues. He also played a role in setting up
several businesses for the Edelweiss Group including Asset
Management and Credit, for which he had oversight
responsibilities till 2012.

Mr. NarendraJhaveri
Independent Director

Mr. Jhaveri, a public finance expert, has occupied important
positions in various prestigious institutions including National
Council of Applied Economic Research (NCAER), Reserve Bank
of India and ICICI Limited. Mr. Jhaveri rose to become Joint
Managing Director and then the Executive Chairman of ICICI
Securities Ltd. His academic qualifications include a Masters in
Economics from Gujarat University and M.Sc. in Economics

from the London School of Economics.



Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah
Independent Director

Mr. Chinniah recently retired as the Managing Director/Global
Head of Portfolio, Strategy & Risk Group with GIC Special
Investments (“GIC SI”), the Private Equity arm of the
Government of Singapore Investment Corporation (“GIC”). He
joined GIC in 1989 and has held various positions with the
Special Investments Department of GIC in their North
American, European and Asian regions. He is presently also a
director of Changi Airport International and a member of the
Hindu Endowments Board in Singapore. Mr. Chinniah is a
Chartered Financial Analyst and his other academic
qualifications include a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering from the National University of Singapore and an

MBA from the University of California, Berkeley.

Mr. P.N. Venkatachalam
Independent Director

Mr. Venkatachalam has wide experience in the banking sector
in India and abroad and has also worked in the software
industry in Banking & Finance verticals. He joined State Bank of
India in 1967 and retired in 2004 as its Managing Director. He
was a member of the Interim Pension Fund Regulatory
Authority of India and a Director on the Board of Small
Industries & Development Bank of India (SIDBI). He holds a
Master’s Degree in Economics and is a Certified Associate from

theIndian Institute of Bankers.

Mr. Berjis Desai
Independent Director

Mr. Desai is the Managing Partner of J. Sagar Associates, one of
India’s leading law firms. He has varied experience in the legal
field, with specialisation in Corporate Law, Mergers &
Acquisitions, Derivatives, Securities & Financial Laws,
International Business Laws and International Commercial
Arbitration. He holds a Masters degree in Law from the

University of Cambridge.

Mr. Sanjiv Misra
Independent Director

Mr. Misra has a rich and varied experience in the financial
services industry, having worked with various organisations

including Goldman Sachs and Citigroup. Mr. Misrais the

President of Phoenix Advisers Pte. Ltd., an advisory and
principal investing firm and Chairman, Asia Pacific Advisory
Board with Apollo Management. Mr. Misra holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics from St Stephen’s College, Delhi
University, an MBA from IIM, Ahmedabad and a Master of
Management from the J. L. Kellogg Graduate School of

Management.

Mr. Sunil Mitra
Independent Director

Mr. Mitra holds a bachelor’s degree in Science from Delhi
University and belongs to the 1975 batch of the Indian
Administrative Service. He possesses rich and varied
experience in public administration and general management
having held diverse positions in Government of India such as
Disinvestment Secretary, Revenue Secretary & Finance
Secretary. In his stint with the Ministry of Finance, Government
of India, Mr. Mitra was engaged in the design of significant tax
reforms. During his stint with the West Bengal Government,
Mr. Mitra was responsible for designing and implementing

widespread policy reformsin the State-owned publicsector.

Mr. Navtej S.Nandra
Independent Director

Mr.Nandra, aveteran of the globalfinancial servicesindustry, is
the President of E¥TRADE Financial Corporation. He also serves
on the Board of Directors of the Centre of Governance,
Institutionsand Organisations, at the Business School, National
University of Singapore. Mr. Nandra was CEO of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management Ltd., and also served on the Boards of
Directors of Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management
Company, Morgan Stanley International Ltd., and Morgan
Stanley & Co. International plc. Prior to Morgan Stanley,
Mr. Nandra's career included senior roles at DTZ Holdings,
Merrill Lynch Global Wealth Management, Merrill Lynch Global
Investment Banking, The Cambridge Group Inc., and BoozAllen
and Hamilton Inc. (now Booz & Co.). He has also served on the
Board of Directors of Nuveen Investments, Inc., and Merrill
Lynch India Technology Services. Mr. Nandra holds an MBA
from IIM, Ahmedabad, and a Bachelor's degree in Commerce

(Honors) fromthe University of Delhi.
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Directors’ Report

To the Members of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited,

The Directors hereby present their 19™" Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the audited
statement of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2014:

Financial Highlights

I. Consolidated Financial Information:

(% in million)

Total Income 25,555.32 21,840.24
Total Expenditure 22,040.33 19,246.99
Profit before tax 3,514.99 2,593.25
Provision for tax 1,346.07 881.51
Profit after tax 2,168.92 1,711.74
Less: Share of Minority Interest (33.54) (72.87)
Profit for the year after Minority interest 2,202.46 1,784.61
Add: Surplus brought forward from previous year 8,969.97 8,182.50
Less: Effect of changes in Group's interest 3.38 3.08
Profit available for appropriation: 11,169.05 9,964.03
Less: Appropriations

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares 408.61 421.67

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 115.78 76.74

Dividend on Preference Shares 52.75 -

Transfer to Reserves 668.97 403.91

Dividend Distribution Tax 88.72 91.74
Surplus carried to the Balance Sheet 9,834.22 8,969.97
Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value -3 1/-)

Basic (%) 2.86 2.35

Diluted () 2.85 231
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Il. Standalone Financial Information of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited:

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Profit before tax
Provision for tax
Profit after tax
Add: Surplus brought forward from previous year
Profit available for appropriation
Less: Appropriations
Interim Dividend
Proposed Dividend
Transfer to Reserves
Dividend Distribution Tax
Surplus carried to the Balance Sheet
Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value -3 1/-)
Basic (})
Diluted (%)

Abridged Financial Statements

In terms of the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the
Companies Act, 1956, the abridged Annual Report containing
salient features of the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2014, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended on that date and the Auditors’ Report on
the Abridged Financial Statements forms part of the Annual
Report. Full version of the Annual Report will be available on
the Company’s website www.edelweissfin.com and will also be
made available to the members of the Company upon request.

Dividend

During the year under review, your Directors had declared and
paid an interim dividend of ¥ 0.55/- per share (on the face value
of ¥ 1 each). The Board recommended a final dividend of ¥ 0.15
per share (on the face value of ¥ 1 each) for the financial year
ended March 31, 2014.

The payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of
the members which is being sought at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and shall be paid to those members whose
names appear in the Register of Members of the Company as on
July 14, 2014. The Register of Members and the share transfer
books will remain closed from July 15, 2014 to July 25, 2014, both
days inclusive. The Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on July 25, 2014.
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(% in million)
| 2013-14 | 2012-13
2,150.82 1,568.69
1,348.05 1,097.59
802.77 471.10
69.81 3.19
732.96 467.91
205.29 283.44
938.25 751.35
422.97 421.67
115.78 76.74
73.30 46.79
- 0.86
326.20 205.29
0.95 0.62
0.95 0.60

Information on the status of affairs of the Company

Information on the operational and financial performance,
among others, is given in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report which is annexed to this Report and has been
prepared in accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Share Capital

Since March 31, 2013, 1,54,00,199 Equity Shares of ¥ 1 each were
allotted on exercise of the Options granted to the employees
under various ESOP Schemes of the Company.

The disclosures required under the SEBI (Employee Stock Option
Scheme & Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999
are given as an Annexure to this Report.

Buy-back of Equity Shares

Subsequent to the year end, the Board had approved the
Buy-back of Equity Shares of the Company for an amount not
exceeding ¥ 135 crores at a price not exceeding ¥ 45 per Equity
Share through the Open market route through Stock Exchanges,
pursuant to Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities)
Regulations, 1998. Pursuant to the said approval, the Company
has bought 15,74,070 Equity Shares till date.



Finance

Your Company continued to borrow funds in the form of
Commercial Papers and issued Secured Non-Convertible
Debentures on a private placement basis.

The Company enjoys high credit rating from the Rating Agencies.
The credit ratings reflect the Company’s financial discipline and
prudence.

Public Deposits

Your Company did not accept public deposits during the year
under review.

Subsidiaries

During the year under review, the following companies became
the subsidiaries of your Company:-

»  Edelweiss Financial Services Inc.

»  Edelweiss Metals Limited

»  Edelweiss Commodities Pte. Limited

>

Edelweiss Commodities Nigeria Limited

Subsequent to the year end, Forefront Capital Management
Private Limited and Forefront India Capital Management,
became the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company w.e.f.
April 30, 2014.

Ecap International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company in Mauritius, was wound up and, accordingly, ceased
to be the subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. April 3, 2014.

In terms of the General Circular No. 2/2011 dated February
8, 2011 (the Circular) issued by the Central Government in
respect of Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board
of Directors of the Company had accorded their consent for not
attaching the Balance Sheet of the subsidiaries with the accounts
of the Company.

Pursuant to the aforesaid Circular, the financial data of the
subsidiaries have been furnished under “Summary of Financial
information of Subsidiary Companies” and forms part of this
Annual Report.

The Annual Accounts of the subsidiaries shall be available to the
members of the Company on request and also for inspection at
the Registered Office of the Company.

Directors

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company
had appointed following Independent Directors:-

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri

Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam
Mr. Berjis Desai

Mr. Sanjiv Misra

Mr. Sunil Mitra

Mr. Navtej S. Nandra

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the approval of the members for
appointment of the aforesaid persons as Independent Directors
for the purposes of the Act is being sought at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (AGM). The necessary resolutions for
the appointment of the Independent Directors are set out in the
Notice convening the AGM.

The members at the 18" AGM of the Company held on July 26,
2013, appointed Mr. Rujan Panjwani as an Executive Director
of the Company for a period of 3 years w. e. f. June 24, 2013.
The members had also re-appointed Mr. Rashesh Shah as the
Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy
as an Executive Director of the Company for a further period of
3yearsw. e. f. April 1, 2014.

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah was appointed as an Additional
Director designated as an Independent Director w. e. f. October
1, 2013. The approval of members for the appointment of
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah, as an Independent Director, is being
sought at the forthcoming AGM.

The approval of the members for re-appointment of
Mr. Himanshu Kaji as an Executive Director for a further period
of 5 years w. e. f. November 1, 2014, is being sought at the
forthcoming AGM.

Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy retires by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the Board of Directors of the
Company have constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (CSR Committee) comprising of the following
Directors as its members:-

Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy

Mr. Himanshu Kaji

Mr. Rujan Panjwani

Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam (Independent Director).

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee include the matters
specified in Section 135 of the Act.

Auditors

B SR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the
Company, hold office till the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and are eligible for re-appointment.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, it is proposed to appoint
B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors
of the Company from the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM
till the conclusion of the 22" AGM of the Company to be held
in the year 2017, subject to ratification of their appointment at
every AGM.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, your
Directors confirm that:-

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed;

(i) they had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2014 and of the profit of the Company for the financial year
ended on that date;

(iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings/Outgo

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy Conservation measures taken - The operations
of your Company are not energy-intensive. However,
adequate measures have been initiated for
conservation of energy.

b)  Additional investments and proposals, if any, being
implemented for reduction of consumption of energy
- Not applicable in view of the nature of activities
carried on by the Company.

c) Impact of the measures taken at (a) & (b) above for
reduction of energy consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of goods - Not
applicable in view of the nature of activities carried
on by the Company.

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption
per unit of production as per Form A to the Annexure
to the Rules in respect of industries specified in the
Schedule thereto - Not applicable.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Not applicable in view of the nature of activities carried on
by the Company.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo (including dividend)
during the year under review were ¥ 112.75 million
(previous year ¥ 65.51 million) and % 28.69 million (previous
year ¥ 58.33 million) respectively.
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Particulars of Employees

The information required under Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended from time to time,
forms part of this Annual Report. In terms of the provisions of
Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Report
and Accounts are being sent to the members of the Company
excluding the aforesaid information.

Any member interested in obtaining a copy of this information
under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, may write to
the Company Secretary, at the Registered Office of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Report on
Corporate Governance together with the Certificate issued by
M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries
on compliance in this regard forms part of this Annual Report.
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NOTES: -
1. Details of options granted during the fiscal 2014:

Options granted under
ESOP Scheme 2011

(a) | Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri 50,000
Mr. Berjis Desai 50,000
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam 50,000
Mr. Sanjiv Misra 50,000
Mr. Sunil Mitra 50,000
Mr. Himanshu Kaji 8,00,000
Mr. Rujan Panjwani 2,00,000
Mr. S. Ranganathan 2,00,000
Mr. B. Renganathan 30,000

(b) | Any other employee who received a grant in any one year of options amounting to 5% or
more of the options granted during the year (includes ex-employees and group company
employees)
Mr. Durga Prasad Jhawar 12,00,000
(c) | Identified employees who are granted options, during any one year equal to exceeding 1% of --
the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the
time of Grant

2. Pricing Formula:

a)  ESOP 2004 (Scheme F)

Exercise price of options 31.04to% 16.67
b) ESOP 2006 (Scheme G)
Exercise price of options $792t0%16.67

c) ESOP 2007 Scheme (1)

Period during which vested

. . From October 1, 2010 to September 30, 2014
options are exercised

Exercise price payable

for such vested options 2170

ESOP 2007 Scheme (I1)

Period during which vested From July 1, 2010 From July 1, 2011
options are exercised to June 30, 2011 to June 30, 2015
Exercise price payable %50.00 %33.30

for such vested options

ESOP 2007 Scheme (1ll)

Period during which vested From January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2013
options are exercised

Exercise price payable % 51.70
for such vested options
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d)

e)

f)

g)

ESOP 2008 Scheme (1)
Period during which vested
options are exercised

Exercise price payable
for such vested options

ESOP 2008 Scheme (Il)

Period during which vested
options are exercised

Exercise price payable
for such vested options

ESOP 2008 Scheme (Ill)

Period during which vested
options are exercised

Exercise price payable
for such vested options

ESOP 2008 Scheme (IV)

Period during which vested
options are exercised

Exercise price payable
for such vested options

ESOP Scheme 2009

From January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

Price after 10% discount to the Reference price.

From January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012

Price after 10% discount to the Reference price.

From January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013

Price after 10% discount to the Reference price.

From the vesting date to From January 1, 2014 to
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2014

Higher of price after 10%

discount to the Market Price as | Price after 10% discount to the

on the exercise date or Reference price.
¥120.00.

The Exercise price of the Vested Options will be higher of the closing Market Price of the Shares on the date of the Grant
or Book Value of the Shares as per the last audited Balance Sheet as on the date of the Grant.

ESOP Scheme 2010

The Exercise price of the Vested Options will be higher of the closing Market Price of the Shares on the date of the Grant
or Book Value of the Shares as per the last audited Balance Sheet as on the date of the Grant.

ESOP Scheme 2011

The Exercise price of the Vested Options will be higher of the closing Market Price of the Shares on the date of the Grant
or Book Value of the Shares as per the last audited Balance Sheet as on the date of the Grant.

Diluted EPS for Fiscal 2014 -

% 0.95 per Equity Share

Difference, if any, between employee compensation cost (calculated using the intrinsic value of stock options) and the employee
compensation (calculated on the basis of fair value of options):-

The Company has calculated the employee compensation cost using the intrinsic value of stock options. Had the fair value
method been used, the employee compensation would have been higher by ¥ 142.81 million and the profits would have

been lowered by ¥ 142.81 million.

Impact on the profits and EPS for fiscal 2014, if the Company had followed the accounting policies specified in Clause 13 of the
ESOP Guidelines:-

Impact on Profit

Lowered by ¥ 142.81 million

Impact on Basic EPS Impact on diluted EPS

Lowered by ¥ 0.18 Lowered by ¥ 0.19

Directors' Report
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6.  Significant assumptions made during the year to estimate the fair value of options:-

i Risk-free interest rate 6.50% - 8.00%
ii. Expected life 3.19 years — 9 years
iii. Expected volatility 16.29% - 47.70%
iv.  Expected dividend yield 0.41%-2.27%

Following summarizes the information about stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2014:-

ESOP 2004 ESOP 2006 ESOP 2007 ESOP 2007 ESOP 2007 ESOP 2008

Scheme F Scheme G Scheme | Scheme Il Scheme Il Scheme Il

- Range of exercise price ¥ 1.04 7.92 Pricing Pricing Pricing Pricing 39.44 41.70 24.60
to 16.67 to 16.67 formula formula formula formula to 50.26 to 61.00 to 37.80
- Number of shares arising 300,000 4,416,000 1,798,500 4,038,000 - - 14,964,500 15,062,000 56,814,600

out of options

Weighted average life of 0.50 0.64 0.50 1.25 - - 2.18 2.41 4.20
outstanding options
(in years)

Weighted average exercise prices of stock options

- outstanding at the 13.35 10.75 21.70 33.30 51.70 34.82 40.14 48.89 32.63
beginning of the year ¥

- granted during the year ¥ N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 30.02

- forfeited/cancelled during 16.67 16.67 21.70 33.30 51.70 34.82 39.44 49.09 32.29
the year ¥

- exercised during the year ¥ 7.92 13.95 21.70 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 28.85

- outstanding at the end of 7.92 7.92 21.70 33.30 N.A. N.A. 40.19 48.87 31.60
the year 3

- exercisable at the end of 7.92 7.92 21.70 33.30 N.A. N.A. 40.19 48.87 33.98
the year %

The weighted average market share price during the year is ¥ 29.55 (previous year: ¥ 32.86).

Note: Exercise price of grants and number of options has been computed after making adjustment for splits, bonuses and consolidation,
since the institution of the Employee Stock Option Plans.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Rashesh Shah
Chairman, Managing Director & CEO

May 17, 2014
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Macro-economic environment

ECONOMY: REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Indian economy faced considerable macro challenges during
FY14, the most prominent being sharp deterioration in
Balance of Payments (BoP) situation. Fears of QE tapering by
the US Fed starting May 2013 sent jitters across the globe
with emerging markets witnessing sharp capital outflows and
India was no exception. Combination of very large current
account deficit and sudden outflow of capital especially from
bonds led to a precipitous decline of ~20% in the rupee
exchange rate in a short span of 3-4 months. Businesses were
impacted through currency depreciation, rise in input prices
and increase in cost of capital (as amidst falling rupee, RBI
responded with interest rate hikes). All these developments
impacted business sentiments severely. In some sense, one
could say that reverberations of the global financial crisis that
started in 2008-09 in US, spread to Europe in 2010-11,
reached the shores of the Emerging Markets (EMs) in 2013 in
the form of BoP crisis.

However, situation began to stabilise in late FY13 as the
government and RBI took several effective steps to curb gold
imports and attract foreign capital. Global concerns also
subsided that time, thus supporting domestic measures.
Further, as exchange rate moved into undervalued territory,
it began to assist exports and import-competing sectors, thus
helping narrowing of current account deficit. Today, India’s
BoP situation has improved significantly with Current
Account Deficit (CAD) for FY14 coming down sharply to 1.7%
of GDP from ~5% in FY13. Capital flows have recovered and
rupee has also stabilised at a comfortable level. In addition to
BoP situation, India has made considerable progress on fiscal
consolidation front too. For the last two years, government
has not only made significant attempts to reduce oil
subsidies but has also maintained sanctity of targets set out
at the time of Budget. To be sure, fiscal consolidation has
been achieved at the cost of cutting plan expenditure, but it
did send out a strong signal to businesses, investors and
ratings agencies alike that prudence is finally returning after
years of fiscal profligacy. Given the improvement in twin

deficit, India is not being counted in ‘fragile five’ anymore.

However, growth challenges continue to persist. We have
certainly emerged out of a phase of macro-vulnerability and
we have also arrested growth deceleration but signs of
economic turnaround are still few and far between. FY14
GDP growth is 4.7%, making it the second straight year of
sub-5% growth. Even high frequency indicators do not point
towards any imminent revival. The industrial production has
been stagnant for several quarters now, PMI-Services is in
contraction zone for last six or seven months, credit growth
and money supply have slowed considerably, non-oil and
non-gold imports have also been contracting and in recent
quarters, corporate commentary suggests that even rural
consumption has slowed down. What’s more, both the levers
of macroeconomic policy - monetary as well as fiscal are
contractionary at this stage. It is only exports which is
exhibiting a favourable trend but that too is highly dependent
on external demand.

And as we crystal gaze into FY15, one can only hope for a
modest acceleration in growth at best. The new government
which has received a clear mandate in the general elections
will have to contend with several challenges.

The first one is reviving stalled investment projects. Previous
Government had set up Cabinet Committee on Investment
(CCl) to fast track approval process around a year ago and
since then it is believed that projects worth 5-6% of GDP have
been cleared, but what is puzzling is that even three quarters
later, there are hardly any signs of improvement in industrial
and construction activity at ground level. It is possible that
stretched balance sheets of corporates, high interest rates
and poor consumer demand have now become binding
constraints on businesses. For example, net debt to equity for
industrial companies of BSE 500 universe is at a 20-year high
at around 1.5x. These companies are now paying around 60%
of their operating income as interest. Such dynamics of weak
demand, high debt and elevated interest rate may have
squeezed the ability of corporates to execute projects.

To overcome such situation, monetary easing can certainly
help. But central bank’s hands are tied because of elevated
inflation. In fact, it is also puzzling that despite broad-based
demand slowdown in the economy, high interest rates and
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decelerating money supply, retail inflation has remained
elevated and sticky. We think that inflation battle cannot be
won by RBI alone. It is the government that needs to do the
heavy lifting especially in view of the fact that steep MSP
hikes and large procurement of food grains over the last six to
seven years have contributed to adverse inflation dynamics.
Only if inflation cools down in a sustainable manner can one
hope that monetary authorities would look to stimulate
economy.

Another challenge would be continuing process of fiscal
consolidation in depressed growth environment. As
mentioned earlier, expenditure has been reined back
substantially over the last two years. Even fuel subsidies are
getting rationalised gradually. But deficit is still elevated
because tax revenues are highly sluggish amid weak
economy. Therefore, growth revival is crucial for successful
fiscal consolidation. In that sense, Union Budget 2014-15 will
be the real test for new government as it should serve as the
indicator of its priorities.

Overall, we think that extreme macroeconomic vulnerability
seen last year is behind us. To that extent, economy has
stabilised and we would likely see a modest rebound
gradually. However, sustained uptrend in economy will
require addressing lingering issues of inflation, fiscal deficit
and reviving investment cycle and business confidence
through faster project approval process and pragmatic
policies. The new Government with a clear majority has
generated huge optimism about return of growth.

Capital Markets

Capital markets witnessed a roller coaster ride during FY14,
but ended on a high note. The year FY14 started well as
commodity prices declined and stability on political front was
restored. However, fears of QE tapering and rupee
depreciation led to a sharp correction in markets. As rupee
stabilised normalcy was restored, resulting in a rally and
markets reaching back to levels prior to QE tapering. Last
quarter of FY14 saw markets breaking new highs owing to
increased optimism on the formation of a stable and
progressive government and also stable commodity prices.
Recent results gave a clear mandate in favour of NDA which is
positive as the country needs to get growth back. Going
ahead, we believe that these factors together with
reasonable current valuations, markets will remain well
supported.
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Emerging Markets

The volatility of Indian equities was also a story of emerging
markets. In FY14, MSCI EM declined by ~4%, compared to
17% gain of developed world. Apart from global factors,
concern with regards to China also surfaced in the last
quarter of FY14. Slowing growth and rising risk of debt
defaults in China led to bouts of risk aversion. However, of
late, there have been rumours of a possible China stimulus,
which has resulted in EM equities rallying by ~8% in the last
10 days of FY14. Going ahead, we believe that while China
related concerns will persist, Chinese authorities would not
let growth slip because any sharp slowdown could make the
process of re-balancing extremely challenging. Hence, a
sharp EM slowdown should not be among the possibilities,
thus resulting in higher risk appetite globally.

Commercial Credit Markets

Indian commercial banks' non-food credit grew around 14%
in FY14, similar to previous year. After a brief spell of easing
interest rates in the first half of CY2013, RBI had to again
resort to increasing rates in the middle of the year on the
back of elevated inflation. Higher interest rates coupled with
lack of investment demand due to slowing economy resulted
in subdued commercial credit growth, when seen in the
backdrop of 20%+ growth witnessed till about three years
ago. As a result of sluggish growth, high interest rates, rupee
depreciation and deteriorating economy, cash flows of
borrowers came under severe pressure leading to significant
worsening of asset quality in banks, especially public sector
banks. The number and quantum of references from mid and
large corporates to Corporate Debt Restructuring mechanism
also reached an all time high during the year. The worsening
asset quality prompted RBI to come out with stricter
guidelines for detection of accounts showing early signs of
sickness and time-bound action for immediate resolution.
High NPA ratios also spurred the banks into selling large
chunk of bad loans to Asset Reconstruction companies during
the second half of FY14. We expect the momentum for sale
of NPAs to ARCs to continue in FY15 resulting in improvement
in banks’ reported NPA ratios. Credit growth and asset quality
of PSU and private banks going forward is likely to continue to
show divergent trends. While PSU banks' slippages will
remain high in the near term, we expect private players to
fare well. Gradual improvement in economy coupled with
expected uptick in investment cycle is likely to result into pick



up in credit growth in latter half of FY15.

While commercial banks continued to remain dominant
source of debt capital in India, NBFC credit also supports
credit growth in the country in a large quantum. NBFCs have
been growing at a higher rate than banks due to a smaller
base and due to their ability to structure transactions to
satisfy needs of diverse cross section of clients. While the
banking sector was beset with worsening asset quality in
FY14, NBFCs could restrict the damage in their portfolios due
to their ability to respond quickly as well as availability of a
higher collateral cover. As a result, while their asset quality at
the end of FY14 was definitely worse than that at the end of
FY13, it nonetheless continued to be under control. Non-
bank credit availability through the medium of NBFCs will
continue to be an effective channel for meeting funding
requirements of corporate as well as retail clients going
forward and thus presents a large and growing opportunity
for NBFCs like ours.

Debt Capital Markets

Debt market had its fair share of ups and downs in a volatile
year whereby both global and domestic factors necessitated
swift action by policy makers, initially with a view to defend
currency volatility and later to fight inflationary pressures.
RBI and the government had to step in as currency
depreciated sharply on the back of US Fed tapering fears and
higher current account deficit. The measures bore fruit with
the currency stabilising in last quarter around comfortable
levels of T60. The rate cycle, which had earlier seen four rate
cuts aggregating 125 bps entering into FY14, was now
witness to three rate hikes aggregating 75 bps from
September 2013 to January 2014. RBI has firmly placed focus
on CPl inflation as the primary metric for its policy and hence
yields have been subject to an upward bias. The monsoon is a
crucial trigger to shaping rate cycle which can be in an
extended pause mode till clarity emerges on inflationary
impact, if any. As a result, debt markets are likely to maintain
cautious mood in first half of FY15 before a potential rate cut
cycle is incrementally priced in.

The highlight among debt market reforms has been the
launch of cash-settled, exchange-traded Interest Rate
Futures (IRF) which is a vital cog in fixed income ecosystem
globally. This version of IRF is simplistic with a liquid
underlying that addresses most of the concerns of earlier

avatars. Consequently, it has gained market-wide acceptance
at launch and volumes / open interest are on the rise as more
investor categories participate in this derivative product for
purposes of trading, hedging and arbitrage. While current IRF
contract is linked to 10Y benchmark as underlying, contracts
might be launched across other liquid segments of the curve
in due course of time. This can also drive participation in
other products like bond repos and credit default swaps
which have continued to be in a dormant phase. Introduction
of term repos as a liquidity infusion measure is another key
reform as it helps address spikes in liquidity tightness and can
soon pave the way for a term repo structure.

The currency depreciation in earlier part of FY14 was
accompanied by sizeable FIl debt outflows that aggravated
overall situation. However, with return of stability on
currency and macroeconomic fronts, almost two-third of
outflows were recouped in last quarter. In a bid to avoid
short-term investments that can lead to future volatility and
to encourage longer term stable investments, Fll investment
in T-Bills has been disallowed while investment limit in
commercial papers has been curtailed to USD 2 billion. The
effort to liberalise the overall FIl investment process
continues with all limits being available on-tap till 90% of
limits are utilised and institution of FPI investor categories to
replace FIl regime. Attractive India onshore valuations
coupled with expectations of greater stability can revive
foreign investment appetite and attract flow momentum as
observed in FY13.

Edelweiss is a fully diversified
financial service group.

Our aspiration is to be a large,
respected organisation with
high quality growth businesses
in financial services.

Increasingly, our profits are being

contributed by multiple businesses and we have
reduced concentration risk in our efforts to make
the profits more sustainable.
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Edelweiss Overview

A FULLY DIVERSIFIED FINANCIAL SERVICES
GROUP

Edelweiss was founded in November 1995 with an aspiration
to become one of the leading financial services groups in
India. With the economic liberalisation of the early 90s,
Edelweiss saw a huge opportunity in intermediating on
capital flows from savings into investments. From initially
providing advisory and investment banking services,
Edelweiss has grown by consciously and strategically
investing in expanding services in existing areas as well as
adding a presence in adjacent markets. Our entry strategy in
every new business has been to find growing but
underserved niches in the market. This has allowed the
Group to address a larger pool of savings. As Edelweiss
moved from wholesale to retail, and financial markets to
insurance, the Group also expanded access to the financial
savings pool from 5% to nearly 30%. Edelweiss’ belief has
been that we must add significant value by providing cutting
edge products and services by focussing on technology, risk,
research, analytics, robust processes and high quality people.
This strong focus has helped the Group grow from being an
Advisory house into a Credit and Financial Services
organisation.

Before the major phase of diversification of businesses until
2008, Edelweiss was earning about 70 to 75% of its revenue
and net profit from financial market-related activities and
wholesale segment accounted for almost 100% of its revenue
and net profit. However, in order to diversify and enter into
retail businesses which presented large scalable
opportunities, EFSL embarked upon a diversification phase
during the period 2008-12. As a result, today financial
markets related businesses account for only about 20% of the
consolidated revenue of EFSL. We are also gradually
achieving the objective of having a healthy mix of revenue
from wholesale and retail businesses.

From catering to a few hundred wholesale clients in 2008,
Edelweiss Group now has an account base of over 497,000
clients from retail and wholesale segments across
businesses. In addition, our Depository Participants
maintain over 262,000 DP accounts.
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With the diversification phase getting over in FY12, Edelweiss
has focussed on improving efficiency and productivity and
scaling up newer businesses during the period 2012-14. As a
result of this, despite macro-economic environment in the
country turning challenging in this period, country witnessing
two consecutive years of sub-5% GDP growth, Edelweiss has
recorded significant growth in the topline, which has moved
up from 316,707 million in FY12 to 321,840 million in FY13
(31% growth YoY) and to 25,555 million in FY14 (17%
growth YoY). During the same period, bottomline has moved
up from 1,277 million in FY12 to 1,785 million in FY13 (40%
growth YoY) and to 32,202 million in FY14 (23% growth YoY).

While diversifying and continually adding newer businesses
to its portfolio, EFSL has also demonstrated a strong track
record of growth over the last several years with its 11-year
CAGR for Revenue at 65% and PAT at 75% till the end of FY14.
The Company's phenomenal growth has been powered by
strategic vision, strong belief and adherence to its core values
and guiding principles, its ability to raise capital and deploy it
judiciously, attract talent and build leadership, and a strong
focus on technology, corporate governance and risk
management.

We are happy to share that Edelweiss has been voted
“India’s Best Managed Company” in the up to $500 million
market cap category by the investors and analysts readers
of Hong Kong based Finance Asia, Asia’s leading financial
publishing house, in its annual poll on India's Top
Companies - 2014. It is for second consecutive year that
Edelweiss has been ranked in a similar manner in the
Finance Asia Poll. This accolade is a recognition of our
strategy of growing in a calibrated and cost-efficient
manner while concentrating on areas like Risk
Management, Governance, Leadership Development and
Customer Centricity.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

At Edelweiss, we have constantly worked towards building
our product lines and managing our growth since inception.
As we pursue more business opportunities, and as the
Company grows and becomes more complex, we have to
ensure that we remain efficient and effective. This requires
constant effort towards organisation building, leadership
growth and sharpening our backend systems, processes and
technologies. Further, as our client base gets more retail and



geographically spread, we must find newer ways of meeting
their expectations in an innovative, customer-centric and
consistent manner. We also must remain on our toes to
identify and control newer risks. This makes it imperative to
ensure that our organizational set-up also keeps evolving in
line with the changes happening within Edelweiss and
outside to take care of the growing needs.

To meet future challenges, we have organised businesses of
Edelweiss around five broad business groups — Credit
including Housing and SME Finance, Commodities, Financial
Markets, Asset Management and Life Insurance. Each of
these five business groups is, in turn, organised around
Strategic Business Units (SBUs) catering to a specific vertical
within the business group, based on commonality of business
drivers, client segments, resources and backend support
required. Finally, each SBU comprises several lines or sub-
lines of businesses (LoBs) to impart greater focus on
customer-centricity and performance evaluation of their
specific business.

Credit Commodities Financial Asset Life
Market Managment Insurance
Dest in Bringing Strong Differentiated New age
class risk efficiency to franchies across offerings and player with
management commodities. product spectrum top quartile no legacy issue
performance
Corporate Agri Corporate Asset IV with
Collateral commodities Finance Reconstruction Tokio Marine
Based lending At Servi Advisiory oroorict )
gri Services roprietary nee
and Advisory Mutual Funds based selling
Precious Metals Broking and approach
Retail Wealth Offshore Funds
Housing Finance Credit Management
SME Finance and Distritubion Alternative Asset

Rural Finance
Management

eBalance sheet management & ALM

eLiquidity Management

*Capital Preservation with optimum
returns

Balance sheet
Management Unit

With the scaling up of our fund-based businesses, our
borrowing and consequently Balance Sheet size have also
grown over the past few years. This also means that the
Group has to also increasingly manage its liquidity and
liabilities as also to ensure proper asset liability match. The
Balance Sheet Management Unit (BMU) manages these vital
functions. The five business groups and BMU are controlled
and supported by a core of Enterprise groups that provide

consistent quality and rigour to key process functions. These
groups focus on improving efficiency and productivity and
enhance our ability to deal with increasing complexity. As a
part of organisation build out, we have also invested
significantly in our risk management systems, HR processes,
people and technology so that we are able to build a large
efficient organisation and manage its complexities well.

Our organisational structure is nimble and evolving. While all
the SBUs will drive synergies as well as address common
needs, at an overall Edelweiss level there is oneness on key
areas such as core value systems, culture, long-term strategy
and allocation of key resources. At the same time, in order to
build the SBUs into large independent businesses, some of
the enterprise functions are being gradually decentralised so
that they resemble, think and function like independent
companies. This will align the enterprise functions to specific
business requirements of respective SBUs and improve
decision-making process. We have achieved significant
progress in this direction and continue to work towards

achieving further decentralisation.

Taking another vital step towards strengthening the SBUs, we
have created internal Board of Directors for each of them
with independent members, i.e. senior management persons
not directly involved in managing that SBU. The SBU Boards
also meet quarterly with a structured agenda and entire
proceedings are conducted in the same manner as the
Company Board Meetings. This provides an opportunity for
independent review of SBUs. Clear benefits of doing this
have been seen in better performance of SBUs. SBU Board
members are drawn from a diverse skill set and are rotated

depending on requirements of SBUs.

Diverse businesses of Edelweiss are conducted through an
organisational structure consisting of 48 subsidiaries. These
subsidiaries are regulated by various regulators for financial
services industry such as RBI, NHB, SEBI, FMC and IRDA
depending upon the business handled by them. We have a
presence in 118 major cities through 216 offices including six
international offices as on March 31, 2014. Together with a
nearly 5,700 strong network of Authorised Persons and Sub-
brokers, Edelweiss footprint covers nearly every major town
or city in India. Edelweiss Group employs 4,001 employees,

leveraging a strong partnership and ownership culture.
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EDELWEISS STRATEGY

Ever since its inception, Edelweiss has successfully followed
the strategy of synergistic diversification in adjacent spaces
while focussing on people, processes, products and structure.
This approach to growth and diversification means that we
have grown steadily and consistently. The Group’s approach
is also characterised by its willingness to invest in the long
term to build long-lasting and sustainable businesses.
Edelweiss’ diversification has not only demonstrated its
capability of entering mature market segments and building
successful businesses but also helped mitigate volatility and

extreme risk.

Our broad strategy of diversification for long-term growth,
which has resulted in our success over the years, is founded

on the following eight key pillars:

e Strong Governance & Compliance Culture

e Focus on Risk Management

e  Strong and Liquid Balance Sheet

e Commitment to People and Leadership Development
e Leveraging Technology for Strategic Advantage

e Quality Customer Centricity

e Research & Analytics-based decision-making

e Culture of Social Responsibility

These pillars constitute key strengths of Edelweiss. They have
enabled us to launch new businesses, scale them up, gain
market share and achieve a leadership position over the past
18 years. As a result, we have a core leadership team, a broad
array of products and services, a strong foundation of large
financial capital, a brand that is well recognised, a set of core
values and most of all: clients who want to do business with
us repeatedly. At its core, the strategy is governed by the
aspiration to become a bridge between savers of capital and
users of capital, by channelising savings into investments
efficiently.  Following this broad strategy, despite
environment in recent past having been tough, we have
grown our share in financial services industry in both relative
and absolute terms as well as post perceptible improvement

in our financial and business performance.

As a part of the above strategy, during the year under review,
we decided to apply to RBI for a banking license. The

rationale for this decision arises out of our aspiration to be
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present in all forms of financial services in the country.
Currently, among our businesses credit is the largest business
and aligns well with the banking industry. While our lending
operations can be sustained easily for some more time
through market or debt borrowings and other sources which
we have tapped, in the longer run a banking license does give
access to low cost deposits by way of savings and current
deposits and also makes us part of payment system. Further,
at present, out of the Indian household savings channelled
through financial intermediaries, nearly 70% flows to the
banks and a banking license does help in covering the entire
addressable pool of Indian household savings. However, RBI
brought the current exercise to a close by granting only two
licenses and has said that they will frame fresh guidelines for
grant of banking licenses which could also include on-tap
license and differentiated licenses. We will examine the new
guidelines when issued and take an appropriate decision

with the approval of our Board in due course.
At the broader level, our strategy and key business tenets

going forward are:

e Profitability - taking our Return on Tangible Equity ex-
insurance to best in class levels

e Scalability - achieving scale and critical mass in all our
businesses, especially retail businesses

e Sustainability - improving the proportion of sustainable
earnings by scaling up stable businesses, further
de-risking and eliminating volatility in our performance

e Management - improving upon the excellent
management quality that we have and build leadership
for higher responsibilities in line with future growth

e Governance - strengthening the compliance function and

ensuring highest governance standards

Financial Performance

Highlights

In the post-global financial crisis era, year 2010-11 had
witnessed return of growth and higher levels of activity in
markets. As a result, most of the corporates had posted
slightly better earnings in FY11l compared to previous year
and there was a hope and optimism that the worst of the
impact of global financial crisis was behind us, at least in



India. However, improvement in business climate was short-
lived as towards the end of FY11, environment had again
turned challenging on the back of Eurozone sovereign debt
crisis and a weak U.S. recovery coupled with a host of
domestic governance issues. As a result, the next year i.e.
FY12 turned out to be significantly worse. At the same time,
we at Edelweiss were nearing the completion of our
diversification phase which entailed significant investment. As
this investment, which was crucial to our long-term growth
and reducing dependence on volatile capital markets
businesses, passed through our Profit & Loss account, our
profitability reached a trough in FY12 with Q2FY12 witnessing
a low PAT of 3263 million. As a result of these factors, our net
profit for FY12 was also low at 31,277 million.

However, with investment phase nearing its end and despite
no significant improvement in operating conditions, strategy
of diversification of businesses started paying out dividend
and our financial and business parameters started improving
since Q2FY12. While we were focussing on improving our
efficiency and productivity FY13 onwards, almost all our
newer businesses under Retail Financial Markets and Retail
Finance, broke even in FY13. This left only the life insurance
business with red ink in its Profit & Loss account at the end of
FY13. Contribution from the new businesses and efficiency
and productivity improvement resulted in our net profit for
FY13 going up to 1,785 million, a growth of 40% over FY12.

While we had the momentum generated in FY13 with us, we
continued to focus on improving capital and operating
efficiencies in FY14, besides scaling up our newer businesses
even though the business conditions remained challenging.
We therefore continued to post significant improvement in
all our business and financial parameters in FY14 and, as
mentioned earlier, over the last 11 years, our total revenue
has grown at a CAGR of 65% and net profit has increased at a
CAGR of 75% as at the end of FY14. Thus, our performance
across market cycles demonstrates our ability to withstand
impact of external forces and yet be able to build a robust
and agile Company that can exploit growth opportunities and
turn them into business whenever they appear.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR
FY14

A summary of our consolidated FY14 financial highlights is as
under:

* Total Revenue of 25,555 million (321,840 million for
FY13), up 17%

*  Profit after Tax of 32,202 million (31,785 million for FY13),up
23%

* Diluted EPS of 32.85 (32.31 for FY13) (FV ¥1)

Dividend

The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of
20.15 per equity share (on a face value of 1) for FY14,
subject to approval of members of the Company at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the vyear, the
Company had paid interim dividend of 0.55 per equity share
(on a face value of ¥1). The total dividend for FY14, therefore,
works out to 30.70 per equity share (FV X1), which is equal to
70% Dividend Rate.

Buy-back of Shares

Soon after the close of FY14, Board of Directors at its meeting
held on April 23, 2014 have approved the Buy-back of
Company’s equity shares of X1 each in accordance with the
applicable regulations. The buy-back will be made from open
market through Stock Exchanges at a price not exceeding 345
per equity share and for an aggregate amount not exceeding
21,350 million. The buy-back from the open market has
commenced with effect from May 05, 2014. The Buy-back is
intended to lead to better capital reallocation and improve
our capital efficiency.

INCOME HIGHLIGHTS

Fund-Based Revenue

Our fund-based businesses earned revenue of 320,625
million for FY14 (317,811 million for FY13), a growth of 16%.
Out of this, interest income was 317,760 million (315,355
million for FY13), up 16%.

Continuing our efforts since FY11, with scale-up of credit
book this year, interest on loans continued to be a major
revenue stream for us and accounted for over one-third
(38%) of our total revenue for FY14.

Agency Fee & Commission

Our agency businesses recorded a fee & commission revenue
of 3,556 million for the year, compared to ¥3,194 million in
FY13, up 11%. This included Broking Income of 1,565
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million (31,561 million for FY13) and Advisory & Other Fees
of 1,991 million (31,632 million for FY13). Broking income
accounted for around 6% of our total revenue for FY14.

The protracted slowdown in capital market activity levels,
which began in third quarter of FY11, continued through
Fyl4. Corporate Finance and Advisory services business
witnessed low levels of activity with most of the corporates
holding back capex investment in view of sluggish economy
and uncertain prospects. In addition, secondary market
volumes continued to be highly skewed towards options and
lack of retail investor interest also persists. Hence, the
industry witnessed its revenue pool being static and even
lower in some verticals in FY14 compared to previous years.
Despite this, we have been able to grow our Agency Fee &
Commission revenue due to higher advisory fees.

Premium from Life Insurance Business

Our life insurance business was launched in second quarter
of FY12 and it recorded a net premium of 31,062 million for
the year (3525 million for FY13 and 3107 million for FY12)
reflecting the planned scale-up of this business. Its gross
premium for FY14 was 31,109 million.

Insurance industry continues to fare below the potential. We,
however, being a new entrant, with no legacy issues, expect
the insurance business scale-up to continue and this revenue
stream to grow significantly in the years to come.

Net Revenue

With Credit business now being our largest business among
the five main businesses, the concept of Net Revenue (net of
interest cost) continues to be more appropriate to us. This is
because interest cost, as with all Banks and large NBFCs,
should reflect above the expenses line. On a net revenue
basis, our Agency fee & commission and insurance premium
for the year was 34,618 million (33,719 million for FY13) and
Fund-based net revenue, i.e. net of interest cost, all the
interest cost being for fund-based revenue, was 38,830
million (36,988 million for FY13). Thus the total net revenue
for FY14 was 313,448 million (310,707 million for FY13), up
by 26%. At the net revenue level, Agency & Insurance
revenue and Fund-based net revenue contribute a balanced
mix of 34% and 66% respectively.
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EXPENSES

Our total costs for FY14 was 322,040 million compared to
19,247 million in the previous year, up by 15%. Compared to
this, total revenue during this period has grown by 17%.
Despite economic downturn accentuating in FY14 with the
result that the year was second consecutive year of sub-5%
GDP growth, we continued to invest in build out of our new
and growth businesses and carried on hiring for some of the
new businesses like Life Insurance and Retail Finance. We
also continued to hire selectively in senior positions as part of
our organisation building process. As a result, we added
about 100 employees during the year. In addition, full year’s
impact of having added 800 employees in FY13 was also felt
in FY14, contributing partly to the 26% escalation in our
employee costs in FY14. We also calibrate the variable
compensation to the employees in line with their
performance. Our borrowings at the end of FY14 at 3129.48
billion were higher compared to the previous year by 314.15
billion, or up 12%, supporting the scale-up in credit book by
%20.56 billion. While the increase in borrowings was 12%, our
finance cost increasing by 9% only in FY14 over FY13. Our
operating expenses grew by 16% in FY14 more or less
matching the 17% growth in total revenue in the year.

PROFIT AFTER TAX

Our Profit after Tax and Minority for FY14 was 32,202,
million compared to 31,785 million for FY13, a growth of
23%.

Our Profit before Tax margin for the year was 13.8% and
Profit after Tax margin 8.6%. Since a larger share of revenue
is now coming from fund-based businesses (82%), the profit
margins are aligned with those of the banking and large
NBFCs industry.

Analysis of Profitability

Despite the operating environment being tough for second
year in a row, we have demonstrated consistent
improvement in profitability in each of the past two years
because of the diversification strategy that we have
consciously implemented through the years. While our
profitability is on an upward trajectory, it was still impacted
to some extent by the following factors:

e FY14 continued to witness challenging business conditions
for Financial Market businesses leading to industry



revenue pool remaining static or even shrinking in some
verticals. This reflected in our broking and investment
banking-related income remaining flat in FY14 compared
to FY13.

e The prolonged economic downturn also affected the cash
flows of corporate clients to some extent and there were
some slippages in our asset quality in the credit book
though the overall asset quality continued to be under
control. The need to create a sizeable buffer by way of
prudential loan loss provisions increased operating
expenses to some extent during FY14.

e While our investment phase for building new businesses
reached completion in FY12, the new businesses, namely
Retail platforms - Housing & SME Finance, Retail
Financial Markets and AMC are in the process of building
scale. Thus, they are yet to reach an optimum stage
where they can meaningfully contribute to the
bottomline.

e The life insurance business, which is less than three years
old, is still burning cash, as expected due to the inherent
nature of insurance business, and pro-rata impact of that
passes through our Profit & Loss account as we currently
hold 74% equity in the joint venture.

e With our various business groups being in the process of
achieving critical scale, it is imperative that we also invest
in building appropriate organisation around them and
build robust backend to handle increased scale of
operations. Accordingly, we continued to invest in
organisation building and infrastructure upgrade,
technology upgrade, risk management and senior hiring
in the organisation were a part of this investment to be
future ready. In addition, certain strategic investments
such as loan to our employee trust, which are currently
non-yielding but are long-term accretive, are also causing
a drag on our profitability.

Profitability ex-insurance

All the above factors, therefore, impacted our bottomline
and margins for the year, even though we recorded
significant improvement in our bottomline in FY14. Since the
costs associated with planned scale-up of insurance business
will continue to pass through our Profit & Loss account on a
pro-rata basis for some more years to come, it would be in
the fitness of things to assess the profitability of our core

business operations excluding the impact of life insurance
business. Accordingly, our net profit for FY14 would have
been around 32,715 million compared to 32,264 million in
FY13, a growth of 20%. With our Tangible Equity at 322,060
million as on March 31, 2014 (ex-insurance, minority,
deferred tax assets and preference shares), the return on
tangible equity ex-insurance thus comes to around 12.3% for
FY14, which is around 4% higher than the reported Return on
Equity of ~8%. Our cost-to-income ratio ex-insurance which
had peaked at 72% in FY12, has come down to 64% in FY14.

Improved Tangible RoE (Ex-Insurance)
12.3%

Outlook

While we were diversifying our businesses during 2008-12, it
impacted our profitability in the short-term. Given our focus
on long-term growth of the Company, we opted to suffer
short-term pains. With the investment phase complete, we
have focussed on improving operating and capital efficiency
during 2012-14. Though we have achieved these efficiencies
including improvement in our Return on Tangible Equity and
Cost-to-Income ratio excluding Insurance in some measures,
we need to still push these vectors for the next couple of
years to be best in class. Our new businesses along with the
mature businesses will continue to improve our overall

business and financial performance in the coming years.

The FY14 was thus a year of consolidation and incremental
improvements for us in the face of worsening economic
scenario in the country. However, with the improvement in
our business and financial performance since FY12, we feel
confident that we are in right position to garner our share of
growth when it returns. At the same time, we are now ready
to achieve scale in our various businesses as also improve
sustainability of our performance.
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Businesswise Analysis of Profitability

Continuing our efforts to constantly enhance our disclosure levels, we have been including an analysis on profitability and capital
efficiency of our main business groups in the Annual Investor Presentation since FY12. These presentations are shared with all the
stakeholders and are also available on our website. Continuing this endeavour, the businesswise financial data based on Management's

estimates for FY14/as on March 31,2014 isasunder:

Tangible Networth | Total CapitalEmployed | Pre-taxRoE | Pre-tax RoA

(X in billion) Revenue | Profit Before Tax
Credit 11.12 291
Financial Markets 4.64 0.30
Asset Management 0.60 0.15
Commodities 4.12 0.86
Balance Sheet Management Unit 3.44 0.40
Corporate & Unallocated# - (0.42)
Total - ExInsurance 23.92 4.20
Insurance 1.64 (0.69)
Total 25.56 3.51

12.00 79.05 24% 3.7%
2.11 13.62 14% 2.2%
2.43 7.19 6% 2.1%
3.62 13.44 24% 6.4%
2.53 29.81 16% 1.4%
1.89 10.95 N/A N/A

24.58 154.06 17% 2.7%
6.37 6.37 N/A N/A

30.95 160.43 11% 2.2%

Notes: Numbers are Management Estimates | Capital employed in Financial Markets includes Retail Loans against SecuritiesX7.23 billion

#lnvestments in office building, Strategic Investments and Advance tax paid

The above Table shows that all our existing businesses,
except Life Insurance, are now achieving acceptable
profitability and capital efficiency parameters. The Life
Insurance business, given its inherent nature, will take a
while before it breaks even. Increasingly our profits are
being contributed by multiple businesses and we have
reduced concentration risk in this in our efforts to make the
profits more sustainable.

Balance Sheetand Non-Linear Growth

For a financial services company like Edelweiss, financial
capital is one of the most important resources, besides
human resource. We believe that a strong balance sheet
imparts unique ability to our Company to be able to provide
growth capital for building and scaling up new businesses,
capture any episodic opportunities and be able to undertake
larger volumes of transactions. Edelweiss has a total net
worth of ¥30.95 billion as at the end of FY14 compared to
%26.91 billion at the end of FY13, including minority interest.
Amount of debt on the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2014
was 3129.48 billion (3115.33 billion as on March 31, 2013), a
Gearing Ratio of 4.18 times. However, a part of our
borrowings is backed by liquid assets like Bank Fixed Deposits
and Government Securities. Excluding such back-to-back
borrowings, our Net Gearing Ratio stands at 3.56x times as
on March 31, 2014. The comfortable leverage allows us
enough headroom to continue to grow and invest in
businesses.
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As mentioned earlier, it is appropriate to look at our financial
parameters ex-insurance as they present a truer picture of
the performance of our core business operations. The
following Table summarises our financial performance

ex-insurance:

Ex-Insurance FY14/as on FY13/as on Change in % Growth
(% in billion) Mar 31,14 Mar 31,13 Amount YoY
Revenue 2391 20.86 3.05 15%
Profit After Tax 271 2.26 0.45 20%
Pre-tax Return on 17% 15%

Tangible Equity

Pre-tax RoA 2.7% 2.4%

Balance Sheet (ex-ns) 154.06 137.68 16.38 12%
Borrowings 129.48 115.33 14.15 12%
Credit Book 86.28 65.72 20.56 31%

Thus, while our ex-insurance Balance Sheet increased by 12%
during FY14, our ex-insurance Net Profit increased by 20% in
the same period, clearly indicating the non-linear growth
that we have achieved evidencing improvement in capital
efficiency in FY14. We had also achieved non-linear growth
during FY13 in a similar manner. We hope to continue non-
linear growth going forward as well, though may not be at
the same percentage. The above Table also indicates that the
growth in Balance Sheet size or Borrowings is actually lower
than the growth in the Credit book.



Our long-term strategy of diversifying across businesses,
asset classes and client segments continues to stand us in
good stead as demonstrated by constant improvement in our
financial and business indicators as above.

Fortune India 500 Rankings

Based on the Fortune India 500 Rankings as on March 31,
2013, EFSL ranks at 404th largest company in India in terms
of Revenues and at 271st largest company in terms of Profit
after Tax.

Business Performance Highlights

CREDIT BUSINESS

Our Credit business includes Wholesale Finance and Retail
Finance. Wholesale Finance comprises collateralised
Corporate Finance and Debt Capital business including Fixed
Income Advisory (Syndication and Restructuring). Retail
Finance encompasses LoBs such as Housing Loans, Loan
against Property (LAP), Lease Rental Discounting (LRD), Rural
Finance and SME Finance. Mid-to-large corporates, HNI,
Retail including small rural borrowers and SME customers
constitute key clientele.

The experience of our transition from wholesale to retail
highlighted Credit as being the largest and fastest-growing
segment in financial services. The large need for Credit
underscored the existence of an underserved niche in a high
growth economy. Edelweiss’ Credit business is anchored in a
deep understanding of and investments in underwriting and
strong risk management practices. Underwriting is based on
a detailed analysis and appraisal of cash flow, collateral and
counterparty. Risk management involves establishing robust
processes around monitoring, communication and follow-up.

In the business environment, though commercial credit from
banks witnessed second consecutive year of subdued growth
in FY14, NBFCs were still able to grow their books selectively.
In addition, with equity capital raising being on the
backburner, debt markets presented ample opportunities for
scale-up of Credit business.

Total loans in Edelweiss’ Credit book touched 386.28 billion

as on March 31, 2014 compared to 365.72 billion as on
March 31, 2013, a growth of 31%. The book comprised

corporate loans of 58.15 billion and retail loans of 328.13
billion. Retail loans constitute 33% of credit book.

Composition and Growth of Credit Book
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During the five years period from FY09 to FY14, our Credit
book has grown at a CAGR of 69%. The credit book scale-up is
happening without diluting our risk standards.

Average collateral cover in our loans collateralised with
securities, was 2.6 times as on March 31, 2014. We continue to
enforce prudent risk management policies to ensure that our
capitalisalways preserved. As a part of this policy, we also avoid
undue sector/industry concentrationin our credit book.

The composition and growth of Credit Book since inception is
asunder:

Asset quality of our credit book continued to remain
satisfactory. However, economic downturn over the past two
years and pressure on corporate earnings resulted in cash
flow issues for some of the borrowers and, in sporadic cases,
the delinquencies went up. The situation was similar to that
of commercial banks where the asset quality came under
severe pressure, though the NBFCs in general managed the
situation far better. Our Gross non-performing loans thus
went up to 819 million at the end of FY14 compared to
3285 million at the end of FY13. The Gross NPA ratio was
0.95% as on March 31, 2014 compared to 0.43% as on March
31, 2013. The Net NPA ratio was 0.25% as on March 31, 2014
compared to 0.11% as on March 31, 2013 indicating a
healthy Provision Coverage Ratio of 74%. We provide general
loan loss reserve on standard assets as per the RBI
guidelines. Including this prudential provision, total provision
cover on our Gross NPLs stands at 100%. We hope to
maintain asset quality at these levels going forward provided
the environment does not worsen significantly.
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Retail Finance

As a part of our long-term strategy of diversifying into retail
segment, Edelweiss launched Housing Finance as a part of
Retail Finance business in the third quarter of FY11. This was
soon followed by adding Loans against Property (LAP) and
Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) finance in FY12. In
FY13, we added Small Ticket Housing Loans to our portfolio
and have now further diversified into Rural Finance in
December 2013 as a part of our conscious strategy to cover
all sections of society.

The business operates in 22 cities via Large Ticket, SME and
Small Ticket Home Loans and ~400 villages through the Rural
Financing business launched in collaboration with IFMR Rural
Channel and Services P. Ltd. We plan to expand our presence
to around 28 cities by the end of FY15 as also significantly
enlarge our footprint among Indian villages.

Housing Finance

The Indian housing finance market is currently witnessing a
very low penetration. To some extent, high interest rates and
high inflation, which raises the cost of inputs, during the past
couple of years have contributed to this situation. However,
housing finance market is expected to grow over four times
by the end of this decade given the young demographic and
large middle class profile that India enjoys and the fact that it
is the aspiration of every Indian to own a home. In addition,
migration of working class from rural to semi-urban and
urban cities will also drive demand for housing in these cities.
This business, therefore, presents vast opportunity to
Edelweiss for long-term growth together with designed
diversification in the revenue streams.

This business, including LAP, is also an integral part of our
strategy to diversify our asset classes and cover a larger retail
footprint together with significant opportunities to cross-sell
our other products to retail clients. Its client base as on
March 31, 2014 is over 15,000 including around 11,900
clients under Rural Finance.

SME Finance

SMEs account for a significant portion of India's economic
output and employment. The sector is underfinanced and
credit plays a crucial role in the growth of this sector.
Edelweiss, in 2012, expanded into SME Financing and has till
now disbursed around X5 billion covering over 1,000 SME

48 Management’s Discussion & Analysis Report

clients. The business currently operates in seven major cities
which account for a large part of the addressable SME
market. Given the sizeable contribution of SMEs to the Indian
Economy, this business presents a significant opportunity to
build a highly profitable and scalable business.

Retail Finance Business Performance

Credit industry grew at ~15% in FY14. First half of FY14 was a
difficult environment with reduced cash liquidity and rising
interest rates. We navigated through this period by actively
looking at new and adjacent markets, more profitable
products with strong and robust risk management and
conservative underwriting approach.

By the end of FY14, the Retail Finance business had built a
book of ¥20.89 billion compared to 316.27 billion at the end
of FY13 and %7.76 billion at the end of FY12. The retail book
included Housing Loans and LAP of ¥16.86 billion and SME
loans 4.03 billion at the end of FY14. Retail Finance
business’ Assets under Management as on March 31, 2014
are higher at ¥22.40 billion as a part of its loan portfolio was
securitised in the fourth quarter for the first time. In addition,
retail loans against securities were ¥7.23 billion.

The retail businesses of housing and SME finance follow
conservative underwriting standards and have healthy asset
quality with NPAs at 0.4% as at the end of the year under
review.

Debt Capital Business

As mentioned earlier, first half of FY14 witnessed huge
concerns regarding current account deficit which led RBI and
Government to tighten liquidity in markets followed by three
hikes in rates in second half of FY14. These conditions created
an upheaval in bond markets which had an impact on fund
raising activity as private placement volume dipped sharply in
second quarter and could not pick up significantly in second
half of FY14. However, higher yields on offer resulted in
superior market appetite for tax-free bonds and this segment
saw a large uptick in activity, particularly in public issue space.
The credit and investment cycle revival is long overdue and the
trigger can come by way of revival of economy on the back of a
stable and progressive Government at the Centre. Accordingly,
debt capital market activity is anticipated to take off from
second quarter of FY15 onwards.

Edelweiss Fixed Income Markets platform realigned its efforts
in tune with market appetite and focussed on tax-free and
public issue segments to keep up our superior market
positioning. As a result, we were able to maintain 11%+ sharein



private placement space (including tax-free bonds) raising over
%255 billion. Our performance in publicissue of bonds was even
more impressive with an almost 50% share as we were
managers to 11 issues that accounted for mobilisation worth
2210 billion. Tax-free issuers that we have been associated with
include large and reputed public sector giants like REC, PFC,
NHB, NHAI and HUDCO across multiple public issue tranches.
We have also been arrangers to private placement of tax-free
bonds by NHAI, REC, PFC, IIFCL and IRFC. The key NCD issuers
who have mobilised funds via us included REC, PFC, SAIL, EXIM
Bank, Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services, Sundaram
Finance and India Infoline Housing Finance etc.

Our sales and broking franchise kept up the momentum despite
market volatility and dip in trading volumes. We adopted a
nimble, dynamic approach in response to the uncertain
environment particularly in second and third quarters, which
enabled us to strengthen our counterparty network. We have
also been playing an active role as market makers in secondary
market for tax-free bonds. With Fll flows picking up momentum
in last quarter, we have been ramping up our sales efforts on this
front and aim to widen our existing client base to capture a
greater share of the inflows going forward. The research product
portfolio has undergone significant enhancement with the
publication of specialised research reports on State
Development Loans, Tax-free bonds and IRFs etc. with the
objective of enhancing investor awareness and achieving
detailed coverage across multiple product categories.

Fixed Income Advisory - Debt Syndication and
Restructuring Services

As a part of our overall Credit business, we also offer wide
ranging debt syndication and debt restructuring advisory
services to our corporate clients. This enables us to offer
complete range of solutions to the clients besides fund-based
assistance. During the year under review, this line of business
scaled upitsactivities and handled 19 advisory transactions.

Debt Capital Markets and Fixed Income Advisory taken together
handled 53 transactionsin FY14 comparedto39in FY13.

COMMODITIES

Edelweiss saw the opportunity in commodity-related
financial services as a new emerging need for the economy as
bridging the physical with the financial needs of the
commodities market. Commodities is now a strategically
important business and a relevant asset class for Edelweiss
which has helped us diversify our revenue streams as also tap
a significant emerging business opportunity. We continue to

build our commodities business across two large verticals -
agri commodities and metals.

Agriculture in India

Agriculture remains a key sector of the Indian economy and
continues to play a pivotal role in driving economic growth.
Also, in terms of volume of produce, India is the second
largest agri commodities producer nation in the world.

Government took upon itself to spread know-how, market
intelligence and the fruits of agricultural research to the
people at large. However, the well intentioned government
efforts suffered in execution. The ill-effects of
underinvestment and absence of fresh thinking can be easily
seen. Public investment in agriculture has stagnated over the
past few years as the government's subsidy bill for food,
fertiliser and fuel has risen.

Going forward, demand for energy, food, metals, and water
should rise as millions of new middle-class consumers
emerge. Now, in absence of public investment, Indian
agriculture is increasingly dependent on private outlays,
which account for three-quarters of total investment in the
sector. Private companies are finding alternative ways to help
the agri industry find scale and sustainability. In spite of
decades of under-investments in agri-related infrastructure,
irrigation, logistics, warehousing and food processing, we
have come a long way in moving towards self reliance.

Agri Commodities - Edelweiss Approach

We see agri business as a significantly large and untapped
opportunity in India. Essentially, we are looking at this from
value-creation perspectives - sourcing of commodities
through our infrastructure and intermediary network, making
credit available to the participants in the value chain; capacity
for storage and transit of agricultural produce leading to
efficient distribution and lower wastage. We see immense
value in creating an integrated business model that can be
captured in a statement - from farm to forks.

We believe that what would be visible in the foreground is
sourcing and distribution strength; however, the backbone of
this business is a deep understanding of value chain from an
operations and risk perspective. The entire space is very
operationally and logistics intensive and hence fraught with
many risks — from price risk to collateral risk to credit risk, and
last but not the least of all risks — fraud risk.

We need to build our infrastructure including storage and
transit capacity, people strategy, technologies and risk and
operations processes around the four vectors of growth -
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sourcing, logistics, credit and distribution. We are investing to
build a solid and robust backbone.

India imports many commodities - oil seeds, pulses, chana,
etc. and we see a large opportunity in the agri commodities
space - across the business models - storage/transit,
distribution, trading and trade financing. Increasing
disposable incomes, rapidly growing urbanisation and
demographic and socio-economic changes in India have been
pushing demand for agri commodities up and we believe that
such a trend is likely to continue.

What began four years ago as a quest to understand better
the agri commodities space, has become an area of focus and
interest for Edelweiss. We are in the flow business and
dealing in physical agri commodities. The flow book aims at
running a book with as low as possible price exposure at all
times with extremely rigid risk controls and limits. We have
access through our own licences in the mandis to our
network of brokers and intermediaries and serve end-user
clients of most large commodities such as chana, jeera,
mustard, pulses etc. We are also sourcing many commodities
from producing nations through our supplier tie-ups and
people presence in African region, Canada, Australia et al. We
intend to scale this part of the business to be able to serve
the growing needs of India in commodities where the
demand far outweighs local production.

We have also established extensive tie-ups with all large
warehousing service providers for the next step which is
storage. We, through our insurance cover, have taken
measures to mitigate any risk arising out of damage or
diminution to goods stored in warehouses. We believe that
our long-term edge is through better sourcing and
warehousing/logistics infrastructure tie-ups in the short term
and building our own expertise and experience in sourcing,
and logistics setup and financing business over the long term.

Access to all key commodities exchanges gives us the risk
management and hedging platform, a key requirement for
this business for minimising the price risk. Strict due diligence
on our buyers and adequate risk controls minimise the credit
risk.

While there are risks associated with narrow or local
commodities, we have chosen to be present in large, globally
relevant commodities with significant consumption in India.
We also believe that exploring international markets for
sourcing and trading could be a next large opportunity for
not only us but for the Indian agri industry and we are
evaluating such opportunities. As more investment takes
place in farm technology, better yielding crops are
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developed, and measures to reduce intermediation costs for
the industry take place, we are likely to see more
opportunities in the market.

Metals: Edelweiss Approach

The precious metals industry in India is undergoing a series of
changes - institutionalisation of business which has traditionally
been done in a particular way, entry of corporate players in most
verticals - import, processing, branding and retailing. Currently,
except refining of ore and conversion into metal bars - India has
the capability and prowess for all other activities. India has seen
avery robust demand for precious metalsin all forms - jewellery,
medallion, investments and now we are seeing that exchange
traded mutual funds are creating impact in a small but
meaningful manner to allow investors to access the asset class.
We have been closely watching the space for identifying
emerging opportunities.

We are currently in the business of procuring/import of metals
(gold and silver) and distributing it to our clients who are end-
users (jewellers, manufacturers or traders). A group company is
an associate member of LBMA the premier industry
organisation for precious metals business. We are now one of
the largest importers of gold into India with over 4-5% market
share in FY14. The year gone by has been a year of regulatory
flux and changes in the precious metals space - largely aimed at
bringing down import of gold into India to contain ballooning
current account deficit. Regulatory changes have also mandated
apresenceinjewellery export space to be able toimport gold for
domesticdistribution.

Our USP is to ensure door delivery of gold at a time and place of
our clients’ choice along with ensuring continuous availability of
material. Also, we service our clients through the day and our
business hours extend beyond traditional banking hours giving
clients more flexibility. Clients get to trade with us till the close of
trading on international exchanges since price discovery activity
extends beyond normal banking hours in India. We distribute
precious metals at more than 10 centres to over 400 active
customers. We are empanelled with most large bullion suppliers
including international banks for a continuous and ready supply
of metal.

We have access to key international and domestic commodities
exchanges for our hedging and risk management needs. We
have business relationships with a number of large domestic
and global banks either for supply of metal or for banking lines.

Our edge in the business continues to come from our sourcing
tie-ups, door delivery to clients, extended business hours
coveringinternational markets timings, our financial strength



that gives us access to lines of credit, ability to hold inventory,
and dedicated operations and risk managementinfrastructure.

We have experienced professionals in both the business
teams - agri and metals - and they are supported by a robust
backend. We are proactively investing in technology since we
believe it to be key determinant of success in both agri
commodities and metals businesses. All of this coupled with
Edelweiss’ financial strength, credit worthiness and
reputation will help us build a large and sustainable
commodities business.

FINANCIAL MARKETS

Edelweiss began its journey in 1996 with focus on Corporate
Finance Advisory and later forayed into Institutional Equities.
These two mature businesses continue to form the core of
our Financial Markets business comprising two SBUs, namely
Wholesale Financial Markets and Retail Financial Markets.

Wholesale Financial Markets

This SBU includes Corporate Finance Advisory and
Institutional Equities businesses. We harness natural
synergies between these two LoBs while maintaining
appropriate Chinese walls to avoid any conflict of interest
between them.

Corporate Finance Advisory

Corporate Finance Advisory business includes Equity Capital
Markets (ECM) business and Advisory Services supported by
Financial Sponsors Group. Our Financial Sponsors Group
builds and strengthens relationships with financial sponsors,
corporate and business groups. It is a significant part of our
strategy to reach a wider range of clients with products and
services across asset classes. Our client segments range from
the Private to the Public Sector and from Mid-caps to Large
caps across industries.

Equity Capital Markets (ECM)
The ECM LoB provides a wide range of services including IPO
transaction execution, FPOs, QIPs and Rights Issues.

Advisory Services

Advisory services offer mergers and acquisitions advisory,
capital raising advisory, real estate & infrastructure advisory
and transaction execution relating to structured finance.

Mergers & Acquisitions Advisory

Our Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A) team provides strategic

and financial advice to our clients in relation to mergers,
acquisitions, takeovers, tender offers, divestments, spin-offs,
restructuring, joint ventures, strategic alliances and
de-mergers. Our services encompass strategy formulation,
identification of buyers or targets, valuation, negotiations
and bidding, capital structuring, transaction structuring and
execution.

Capital Raising Advisory

Among our Capital Raising Advisory practice, Structured
Finance team provides a range of innovative structured
solutions, including acquisition financing and sponsor
financing. Our Private Equity Advisory arranges capital from
private equity funds for companies across sectors.

With investment in building capacities on backburner, Indian
corporates were hardly seen in the equities markets. The
industry therefore continued to witness extremely low levels
of activity. Despite this, we were able to close eight
transactions in FY14 including three PE placement. The deal
pipeline, however, continued to be strong and the outlook for
this business has improved significantly at the time of going
to press. We have successfully handled private equity
placements or strategic exits of over T50 billion since May ‘09
and continued to be one of the leading players in PE space.

During the third quarter of FY14, we arranged the third
edition of our conference, “Convergence — The Edelweiss
Private Companies Conference”, which witnessed huge
response and served as a platform for more than 40 unlisted
companies to present their vision and growth outlook to over
110 private and public markets investors. This, we believe,
was India's largest unlisted company conference.

Institutional Equities

Institutional Equities business that started in 2001 continued
to be a market leader. We provide equity and equity-
derivatives sales and trading services to a large and
diversified base of Flls and domestic institutional investors.
We continued to be among the largest Indian Institutional
Broking Houses in the country with a market share of 4 to
4.5% by revenue. The structural shift towards options
witnessed in the past three years coupled with increasing
competitive intensity in the industry resulted in broking
yields continuing to slide for the industry along with a
shrinkage of revenue pool for the industry. We continued to
be among leaders for Algo trading and have added Smart
Order Routing functionality to all our Directional Algos, which
allows execution on NSE or BSE wherever the price is better.
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Equities Research & Analytics

Edelweiss approach to Research has been part of the very
existence - keenly differentiated and many a times lateral in
thought. It has a formidable reputation of largest array of
research processes - from thematic to fundamental, from
primary to empirical, from quantitative to qualitative - at all
times providing a holistic view of economy, consumer,
sectors and consumption trends covering various sectors.
Our fundamental research covers 190 stocks among 20
sectors representing over 75% of total market cap.

Corporate Access

To complement the research effort in building a sustainable
Institutional Equities business, it is essential to provide
extensive corporate access to clients. Our clients depend on
access to management of companies in which they are
interested in order to be able to take informed investment
decisions. We fulfil this vital need through roadshows to
showcase Indian companies to clients and investor trips to
meet company managements.

In addition, we provide our clients opportunities to interact
with a large number of corporates through hosting of annual
Indian and International conferences. During the fourth
quarter, we held our flagship India Conference in Mumbai
with the “Anti-Fragile” theme. The conference met with
excellent response with participation of over 100 Indian
Corporates and over 500 global and Indian institutional
investors facilitating over 2,500 meetings among them. As
part of the theme, we launched our book “Thriving in
Adversity — Conversation with leaders of India’s Anti-Fragile
Companies” featuring conversation with top 22 iconic Indian
business leaders who have guided their companies in
uncertain times.

Retail Financial Markets

This SBU comprises Retail Broking and Global Wealth
Management (GWM) LoBs. Retail Broking includes the
organically built online broking format through our internet
portal www.edelweiss.in and offline broking format through
acquisition of Anagram in FY11.

Retail Broking

Retail Broking business was launched about five years ago as
a part of our articulated strategy of diversification in client
segments to include a larger retail footprint. It has continued
to gain scale in FY14. The online portal emerged as a popular
site among investors with over 10 million unique visitors
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viewing over 130 million pages during 64 million visits since
its launch. The Retail Broking business offers innovative
products along with one of the widest research
recommendations for individual clients.

We continue to build scale in this business with the aspiration
to emerge as a leading retail broking house.

Global Wealth Management (GWM)

GWM business offers Wealth Management Advisory and
investment services to HNI clients with an emphasis on
research and analytics. It offers clients customised value-
added services and asset allocation strategies with innovative
and structured solutions. We continued to be among the
largest domestic issuers of structured products with
outstandings touching ¥13.60 billion by the end of FY14
compared to 310.8 billion at the end of FY13. AuAs for GWM
increased to 348 billion by the end of FY14 compared to 332
billion at the end of FY13.

Financial Planning

GWM offers fee-based Financial Planning services for
individual clients that enable a client to prioritise financial
needs, goals and aspirations and guides to achieve the same.
This is part of conscious strategy to provide value-added
services to a wider set of clients including the mass affluent.

Including all the LoBs, Retail Financial Markets business had
427,000 clients at the end of FY14 having added over 18,000
clients in the year.

Retail Financial Market Clients
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Broking Volumes & Income

Our total clients’ broking average daily volume (ADV) for FY14
(including institutional equities, online & offline retail
volumes) was ¥31.3 billion in FY14 compared to



%29.4 billion in FY13. Our Securities Broking business earned
a broking commission of 31.41 billion in FY14, almost flat
compared to 1.39 billion in FY13. Thus, while clients’
broking volumes recorded a growth of 7% during FY14,
broking income was flat due to higher Options volumes and
higher competitive intensity. Our Securities Broking income
accounts for 5.6% of our total revenue for FY14 compared to
6.4% in FY13.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Asset Management business started around seven years ago
with Alternative Asset Management SBU and later on
diversified to include Retail Asset Management SBU.

Alternative Asset Management

Alternative Asset Management business was launched in
2007 and focusses on mobilising subscriptions from offshore
and domestic institutions and HNIs through funds structures
to invest in alternative asset classes in India. It also includes
our Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) and related
businesses. Our objective in creating this SBU is to offer
innovative and differentiated products to institutional and
HNI investors. We achieve this by combining Edelweiss
platform with investment capabilities to create a superior
investment performance.

Our product portfolio at the end of FY14 comprised EW
Special Opportunities Fund, EW SBIH Crossover Fund in joint
sponsorship with SBI Holdings, Inc. of Japan, EWI Special
Assets Fund, E-STAR - an Asset Reconstruction Fund and a
Real Estate Domestic Fund.

With the lingering downturn in Indian economy and
corporate earnings coming under pressure, asset quality of
banks, especially PSU banks, continued to worsen in FY14.
Taken together with the restructured loans, the percentage
of troubled assets with some of the banks is now in double
digits. While PSU banks were not enthusiastic in the past few
years about selling their NPAs to ARCs, incessant rise in bad
assets coupled with tightening of regulations by RBI made
them once again turn towards ARCs to offload a part of their
stressed assets in second half of FY14. Edelweiss ARC was
well positioned for this opportunity and acquired assets
worth around %90 billion to take its total AuMs to 392.4
billion as at the end of FY14. Edelweiss ARC is now among the
leading ARCs in the country and plans to further scale up its
AuMs in FY15 as the banks are expected to continue to resort
to ARCs for managing their NPAs.

We are excited about the ARC opportunity as it helps in
releasing productive assets for the Nation’s economy and
assists commercial banks by reducing their burden.

At the same time, scaling up size of the offshore funds has
proved to be a challenging task given lack of enthusiasm of
offshore investors to commit funds to India for medium-term
in view of declining GDP and depreciating currency.

The AUMSs/AUAs of this business now stand at about $1.96
billion or I119.76 billion equivalent as on March 31, 2014
compared to $490 million or X26.96 billion equivalent as on
March 31, 2013.
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This business represents a growth opportunity for Edelweiss
and we continue to invest in building this business.

Retail Asset Management

Edelweiss Mutual Fund, aimed at providing differentiated
asset management solutions to domestic retail customers,
was launched in September 2008. While growth in assets has
been muted given the challenges faced by Indian mutual
fund industry, various schemes have demonstrated excellent
performance. However, given low Indian penetration of MF
AuMs, which are just over 10% of bank deposits in India, we
are confident that the mutual fund industry has the potential
of a sustainable long-term growth.

It manages 10 funds across Equity and Debt Schemes, with
AuMs of X1.96 billion at the end of FY14. We now have an
active base of over 12,300 investors compared to about
9,030 investors at the beginning of this year. The distribution
network comprises a force of over 3,200 distributors. The
focus of this business continues to be on developing a variety
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of products and building investment track record. We will
continue to nurture our domestic asset management
business, an integral part of our overall retail strategy, and be
ready to capture growth when the industry fortunes change
for the better.

As a part of our efforts to build scale in this business, we
announced on May 1, 2014 acquisition of Forefront Capital
Management Pvt. Ltd.,, a high net worth focussed asset
management company that spans the alternative as well as
traditional investment space. Asset Management space is
slated to grow rapidly with increasing economic prosperity
and the move from savings to investment. Forefront’s high
quality management, innovative and multilayered product
portfolio, and deeply ingrained ‘process driven’ investment
philosophy is synergistic to Edelweiss’ existing asset
management business. With this, we will widen and deepen
our presence in Asset Management business and provide
additional innovative investment solutions to our clients.

LIFE INSURANCE

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance (ETLI), our joint venture with
Tokio Marine Holdings Inc. of Japan, one of the oldest and
biggest Insurance companies globally, was launched in July
2011 as a part of Edelweiss strategy to diversify its businesses
and to cover a larger footprint in the retail segment. ETLI was
launched with a capital of 5.5 billion - among the highest
start-up capital for any Indian life insurer, signifying our
commitment to building a long-term sustainable business.
The commitment of both the JV partners was further
demonstrated during the year under review as they infused
fresh capital of 2.50 billion taking the paid-up capital to
28 billion. Currently, Edelweiss holds 74% equity in this JV
with Tokio Marine holding the rest.

ETLI offers diverse products to meet the basic needs of
customers on education funding, wealth accumulation,
wealth enhancement, income replacement and retirement
funding. Currently, ETLI offers a bouquet of 21 products
comprising 18 individual products and three group products.
ETLI has a well spread out footprint in the country with 58
branches in 48 cities. It opened 13 new branches in different
regions of India during FY14. The scale-up of the Agency
channel continued with the number of Personal Financial
Advisors (PFAs) crossing 7,250 by the end of FY14 compared
to around 3,400 as at the end of the previous year. ETLI now
has a strength of about 1,401 employees compared to 1,275
at the end of the previous year. ETLI continued to strengthen
the senior management team with key senior experienced
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hires during the year. During the year, ETLI has also enhanced
its Bancassurance tie-up with The Catholic Syrian Bank
Limited and has activated 275 branches of the bank for sale
of ETLI products.

Its gross premium income for FY14 was 31,109 million
compared to 548 million in FY13 and 3109 million in FY12.
The business had a net loss of 690 million in FY14 compared
to a net loss of ¥647 million in FY13, which is in line with the
plan. Its net worth is 36,372 million at the end of FY14. Its
Solvency Ratio as on March 31, 2014 is 220% compared to
minimum regulatory requirement of 150%. During FY14, ETLI
issued about 32,999 policies. It had earlier achieved the
milestone of having issued over 50,000 policies within a short
period of just over two years of operations.

ETLI's distribution strategy is based on “Need-based Sales”
philosophy and the key message in its communication,
“Insurance se badhkar hai aapki zaroorat”, continues to
emphasise the core value of customer centricity.

Tokio Marine Group, Joint Venture partner in ETLI, has
actively contributed in various facets of building the
insurance business such as actuarial risk management,
product development and asset liability management.

ETLI has recently won “The Rising Star Insurer” Award in the
Indian Insurance Awards, 2013. This award is given to honour
a stand-out young insurer showing promise of becoming a
major force to reckon with in the years to come. ETLI has also
been adjudged as a winner of “Top 100 Infosec Maestros
Awards”. This award is given to information security leaders
in India.

Life insurance business offers exciting opportunities in India
given the current low level of penetration where India ranks
136" in the world. However, given the demographics in India,
it is expected to emerge as one of the top three markets in
the world by the end of current decade. Rising life expectancy
and absence of state social security will also propel demand
for insurance products. ETLI aspires to play a major role in
meeting the insurance needs of Indian populace in a
customer-centric manner in this growing market with its
“VijayPath” philosophy which has all its sales force and
customers excited about it.

BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT UNIT (BMU)

Edelweiss started treasury operations along with setting up of
Institutional Equities business in 2001-02 in order to optimally
utilise working capital employed in that business. Initial focus of
treasury operations was on equity arbitrage which wenton to



include special situation arbitrages. However, changes in
taxation laws in FY09 coupled with emergence of Options as the
dominating component of daily volumes significantly shrank
arbitrage opportunities. By this time, our credit and
commodities businesses also had started scaling up resulting in
increase in capital employed in those businesses. This was
followed in last three years with lengthening of asset side
duration as our retail finance book also started scaling up. With
the resultant increase in our levels of borrowings and assets
duration, it became imperative to focus on balance sheet
management including assets liabilities management and
liquidity management. Accordingly, treasury operations have
undergone a significant realignment of priorities in the last three
orfouryears and the treasury has transformed itselfinto Balance
Sheet Management Unit.

BMU now manages our Group's liquidity in a way similar to a
commercial bank, while also managing the balance sheet and
ensuring that maturing liabilities are repaid smoothly. It also
manages key components of assets and liabilities without
allowing any mismatches to creep in, monitors interest rate
sensitivity in our portfolio and takes preemptive steps to
mitigate any potential liquidity and interest rate risks.

Our BMU assets as at the end of FY14 were 329.81 billion,
which mainly include fixed income securities and bank fixed
deposits, compared to 329.95 billion as at the end of the
previous year. BMU assets form about 19% of our effective
Balance Sheet size as on March 31, 2014. BMU assets are
structured to maintain sufficient liquidity to address capital
needs of our businesses as also to manage interest rate risk. As
a result, we ensure that a large part of our book can be
liquidated within a short period with minimalimpact costs. Our
strong focus on enterprise wide risk management ensures
optimum returnsinthis business while preserving our capital.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

Edelweiss ALCO primarily manages allocation of capital among
businesses along with Asset Liability Management. It also
oversees implementation of an effective process for managing
the Group’s interest rate, liquidity, capital and other market
risks relating to the balance sheet and associated activities,
including adoption of policies, risk limits and capital levels from
timetotime. Some of the major functions of ALCO are as under:

e  Monitoring of various macro-economic indicators and
using them to take decisions regarding liquidity situation,
borrowing plans and deployment strategies.

e Monitoring of liquidity GAP and recommending
appropriate financing and asset deployment strategies,

depending on whether the GAP is a Net Asset position or
a Net Liability position respectively.

e Monitoring interest rate GAP and recommending re-
pricing options for asset and liability portfolios.

e Reviewing various “what-if” scenarios and preparing
contingency plans.

e Approving liquidity risk and interest rate risk tolerance
levels by reviewing how these risks may adversely affect
the Group’s earnings and capital.

e Monitoring capital management of the Group to ensure
that capital levels are maintained in accordance with
regulatory requirements and our policy.

e Considering product pricing for advances, desired
maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and
liabilities taking into account all available data.

e Deciding source and mix of liabilities or sale of assets, by
developing a view on future direction of interest rate
movements.

e Deciding on funding mixes between fixed vs. floating rate
funds, wholesale vs. retail funding, money market vs.
capital market funding, etc.

Balance Sheet Management

For any financial services firm, its capital is the bedrock on
which the entire edifice is constructed. From its earliest days,
Edelweiss has recognised this and has always focussed its
energies in creating a strong and liquid balance sheet. This
enables us to deploy capital for launching and scaling up new
businesses, which are integral to our core strategy of risk-
mitigation by diversification. A strong balance sheet also
enables us easier access to market borrowings on the back of
a strong credit rating. A liquid balance sheet simultaneously
permits Edelweiss to redeploy capital efficiently towards
business opportunities that appear at short notice. It also
helps in confidence building exercise with our lenders. At the
same time, a growing balance sheet like ours requires us to
be constantly on our toes to identify and manage newer risks
and adopt newer strategies.

In order to manage Balance Sheet actively, we prepare a daily
balance sheet for real time monitoring and adopt a process
of projecting a balance sheet rolling monthly, for end of the
quarter and year-end, which eliminates any surprises. Any
abrupt change in assets or liabilities is closely monitored and
situation rectified in time.

In order to manage liquidity, we employ a Liquidity Scenario
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Model to monitor environmental liquidity conditions based
on various market indicators. We also quantify our
consolidated liquidity position for all buckets, which gives us
a broad idea of our liquidity scenario for the next 90 days. We
take care to ensure an adequate liquidity cushion is
maintained by way of unencumbered assets and undrawn
bank lines to take care of immediate requirements of next
seven days. Thus, pro-active balance sheet and liquidity
management covers various possible scenarios in the short-
term and medium-term with a back-up plan.

Edelweiss has not only continued to maintain a liquid balance
sheet, but over the last three years has embarked on a
strategy of diversifying its sources of borrowings, reducing
dependence on market borrowings and adding liabilities that
match the lengthening duration of assets. We have also
contracted stable bank lines of funding and increasing
liabilities in the six months to five years bucket thereby
bringing down dependence on short-term borrowings to
within acceptable limits.

issue of retail bonds which mobilised 5 billion in maturities
varying from three to five years in January 2014. This issue
provided us stable medium term funds in a cost effective
manner. We plan to tap the alternative of public issue of
retail bonds including subordinated debt going forward too
as it provides a platform to grow our capital based businesses
with confidence.

During the year, two of our subsidiaries also raised Tier 2
capital by way of non convertible redeemable Preference
Shares amounting to X770 million which also strengthens the
balance sheet by providing medium term liabilities from a
new source besides providing Tier 2 capital.

Our Retail Finance business also securitised a part of its book
amounting to ¥1.48 billion for the first time during FY14 to
diversify its sources of funding and to release a part of its
resources for future growth. Securitisation also helps us in
managing risk.

Diversified Sources of Borrowings

FY11
Others - 5%
Retail 5%
ASB 14%

T T T T

3 78.58 bn

As a result of conscious efforts, we have reduced the
dependence on short-term money market borrowings over
the last three years as shown in the above chart.

Diversification of Sources of Funding

Continuing our efforts to diversify sources of borrowings and
reduce short-term market borrowings, ECL Finance, our main
NBFC subsidiary, accessed public markets through its maiden
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3129.48 bn

Outlook & Strategy

The year FY13 was beset with problems of stubborn inflation,

high fiscal and current account deficit, slow pace of reforms,
sluggish recovery of US economy and continued Eurozone
crisis. As aresult, Indian GDP growth nosedived to below 5% in
FY13. While the beginning of FY14 offered a ray of hope for



economic activities picking up, ballooning CAD led to a free fall
of rupee with the rupee dollar rate touching 369 in the month
of August 2013. This, on the one hand, compelled RBI to suck
out liquidity and raise policy rates, on the other forced the
Government to impose severe restrictions on import of gold
and to rein back expenditure. While, the CAD no doubt came
under control and rupee dollar rate settled around a
comfortable level of ¥60-61, these measures worsened the
already struggling economy and FY14 is the second
consecutive year of sub-5% GDP growth. While the WPI
inflation has moderated in recent times, RBI has indicated that
scope for reversing the rising rates cycle is limited as CPI
inflation is still above its comfort zone. The ensuing monsoon
and the likely impact of El Nino effect will be keenly watched by
both the weathermen and the economists to gauge its impact,
ifany, on our economy.

The results of the recently held elections to the Indian
Parliament gave a clear mandate to the NDA which is positive
as India needs to get back to growth. The capital markets have
also rallied since February 2014 on the hope of a stable and
decisive government at the Centre. With a secure and
progressive government at the Centre, the conditions are ripe
for gradual return of growth. Thus, FY15 promises to be a
turning pointin our economic history.

At Edelweiss, all our business Groups have responded well to
the tough and changing conditions during the past two years.
All the businesses have scaled up and shown significant
growth. In addition to scaling up, we have focussed on
improving operating efficiency and productivity besides
ensuring that most of our new businesses launched in the last
five years have broken even. Thus our established businesses
of Credit, Commodities and Financial Markets are at a mature
level, with only Life Insurance business remaining to break
even. Given the long gestation period required by insurance
companies, this anyway will take a few more years. Apart from
this, the corporate initiatives undertaken to strengthen the
organisation include making careful investment in
infrastructure & technology, risk management, governance,
customer centricity and leadership development and all the
SBUs are looking at FY15 with renewed optimism.

Edelweiss strategy focusses on long-term growth and
sustained value creation. We retain our long-term vision while
achieving short-term targets. At the same time, while taking
decisions which are ultimately in the long-term interest of the

stakeholders and the Company, we are also prepared to make
short-term sacrifices. Continuing to invest in building new
businesses despite challenging environment, which impacted
our short-term profitability during the diversification phase, is
atypical example of our long-term growth strategy.

With a lot of expectations going into FY15, starting with the
Indian Parliamentary elections, the building blocks of our
organisation, viz. people, technology, processes, risk
management and governance are expected to shift gears and
position themselves to garner our share of growth. In other
words, from a period of consolidation to a period of growth
and pace. Along with the above, our other organisational
priorities for FY15 include rigorous balance sheet
management, continue non-linear growth in assets and
profitability, instil customer centricity, gradual
decentralisation of decision-making and enterprise functions
to SBUs, organisational structure strengthening with
leadership development, institutionalisation of culture and
strengthening our riskand compliance functions. Through this,
what will remain unchanged are the Edelweiss value system
and the belief that our greatest assets are not the ones in the
balance sheet, but those forming the human capital of the
organisation.

Our aspiration is to be a large, respected organisation with
quality high growth businesses in financial services. Our core is
in identifying new exciting long-term opportunities in every
material segment of financial services and building great and
differentiated businesses in these areas based on the
Edelweiss value system. We will choose and enter new
segments slowly and carefully, as we have donein the past.

With the long-term India growth story intact and given the
diversified model of Edelweiss and various initiatives
undertaken, Edelweiss is a stronger, leaner organisation;
better poised to benefit from a cyclical uptick. We are
confident of capturing our share of growth and build Edelweiss
as per the aspiration that we have. For Edelweiss, FY15
promises to be a key inflexion point.

OPPORTUNITIES

While we were predominantly a capital market-led company
till 2008, the diversification phase during 2008-12 has
expanded the size of our addressable revenue pool by around
20 times. We firmly believe that long-term Indian economic
growth story isintact notwithstanding declining growth in the

Management's Discussion & Analysis Report 57



Edelweiss Annual Report 2013-14

past year or two and the market size for our diversified
businesses is expected to grow by around 5 times by the year
2020 overthesizein 2012. Thus, our addressable revenue pool
is likely to be around 100 times larger compared to what we
were present in the year 2008. The expected growth of
financial services sector thus presents exciting opportunities
asunder:

e India's long-term growth story presents exciting and large
opportunities for us to grow our various businesses in the
mediumto long term.

e Qur retail businesses are scaling up well and we have also
forayed into large and underserved segments like small
ticket housing loans and rural finance. These along with
our mature wholesale businesses ensure that we are
strategically placed to garner our share of growth in all
clientand market segments.

e Increasing use of internet or mobile-based technologies
for financial transactions presents vast opportunities for
techsavvy companies like ours to offer convenient
solutions to customers. Our online options in Life
Insurance and online & mobile options in retail broking
aimto capture this opportunity.

e With nearly 70% of Indian household financial savings
currently flowing to banks, potential for channelising
savings to other modes like mutual funds or insurance
and through diversification in other asset classes like
equities, bonds and commoditiesis enormous.

e We believe the policy liberalisation, much awaited
structural reforms and forward-looking regulatory
changes will help markets grow in size, thus making
available newer opportunities for all participants in
financial services.

e While the current run up in the markets in FY15 is due to
cyclical upturn, we believe the next wave of growth will be
unleashed by structural reforms in the days to come, and
as said earlier, FY15 promises to be an inflexion point for
Edelweiss.

THREATS

At the same time, we perceive following threats for growth of
financial services sectorin India:

e Macroeconomic environment including headline
inflation being above the threshold of RBI, limited scope
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to reverse the rising interest rates cycle in short term and
high fiscal deficit can derail the return of growth. The
investment cycle is going through a prolonged downturn
and corporate cash flows are under strain resulting in
subdued credit growth and worsening asset quality of
commercial banks. Monsoon is predicted to be below
normal this year and a larger than expected impact of El
Nino effect can cause a few worries for the Indian
economy.

e  Though we have a stable government at the Centre, delay
in taking action from Government to jump-start
investment cycle and carry on the reforms may continue
to affect the financial services sector.

Enterprise Groups

The five business groups of Edelweiss and BMU are controlled
and supported by a core of Enterprise Groups that provide
consistent quality and rigour to key process functions.
Following discussion highlights some of the initiatives taken
by us to improve efficacy of Enterprise functions.

RISK MANAGEMENT

With our presence in almost all the segments of financial
services and having more than 497,000 clients across
institutional, HNI and retail client segments, our business
activities expose us to a variety of risks in virtually all
aspects of our operations. The Group’s approach to risk is
practical and proactive. The core philosophy in risk
management centres on the identification and
quantification of risk - defining limits, monitoring them
actively and taking swift action when required. Risk
management is an ongoing, dynamic and integral part of
our genetic make-up. We manage risks by seeking to ensure
that business activities and transactions provide an
appropriate balance of return for the risk assumed and
remain within our risk appetite. Our management of risk is
supported by sound risk management practices and
effective enterprise risk management frameworks. The
cornerstone of these frameworks is a strong risk
management culture, supported by a robust enterprise-
wide set of policies, procedures and limits.

The importance of risk management in our operations and



our risk philosophy is aptly emphasised by its inclusion in our
Business Guiding Principles as “We will respect risk”. The
basic tenets of our risk culture are ingrained in our
employees as they are trained to ask the following questions
every time they are faced with a risk decision:

e Isitworthit?
e  Can we afford it?

The employees need to answer both these questions in the
affirmative before they can proceed with the transaction
facing them.

G, o
Obe "

The risk team at each business unit of Edelweiss ensures
implementation of risk practices and philosophy at business
level. The enterprise risk team, also known as Global Risk
Group, is focussed towards policy formation and managing
risk at the consolidated level. The enterprise risk team also
ensures that necessary action is taken to make certain that
identified risks are adequately addressed. The Board of
Directors oversees the risk management process at Edelweiss
by way of committees, specifically the Risk Management
Committee, which ensures execution of responsibilities of
risk management for the entire Group.

With an endeavour to strengthen risk culture and incentivise
proactive risk behaviour, we initiated annual Risk Reward and
Recognition programme to acknowledge and felicitate
performance in the area of Risk Management across
organisation. We continued to work towards bridging the
gaps identified in Tower Watson survey which was conducted
in the previous year.

Edelweiss follows a four-tiered Risk Management and
Oversight Structure:

Key Risks

Edelweiss deals in multiple asset classes and all client
segments across the financial markets and is thus exposed to
various risks that can be broadly classified as credit risk,
market risk and operational risk.

Credit Risk

The credit risk framework of Edelweiss ensures prior and
periodic comprehensive assessment of every client and
collateral. Exposure limits are sanctioned to counter-parties
based on their credit worthiness. Credit risk monitoring
mechanism ensures that exposure to clients is diversified and
remains within stipulated limits. Careful selection of
collateral is key for a client limit. Effective credit risk
management has enabled us to steer through environmental
stress conditions without any major impact.

Market Risk

Edelweiss deals in multiple asset classes which gives us an
edge in diversifying concentration risk. However, it has its
own associated complexities. These asset classes may move
in diverse directions due to a multiple of macroeconomic
factors, global developments and policy framework.

In order to monitor such market risk, a comprehensive
framework of reports and limits has been put in place that
track positions, value at risk and duration of assets. Limits at
various levels are defined to capture early warning signals.
The risk framework makes certain that the risks are
monitored and necessary timely action is taken for every
single instance of violation, in case they occur.

Additionally, the asset liability mismatch and margin
utilisations are regularly assessed. Liquidity requirements are
closely monitored and necessary care is taken to maintain
sufficient liquidity cushion for maturing liabilities and for any
unforeseen requirements. We also ensure diversification in
source of borrowing to reduce dependence on a single
source. We have diversified our borrowings by raising capital
through public offer of NCDs mainly targeting retail investors
in January 2014. We also pro-actively modify our liabilities
profile in sync with the changing assets profile to ensure that
we do not carry any material asset liability mismatch.

Operational Risk

Operational risk arises from the failure of systems, people
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and processes through which we operate. Operational risk
covers several sub-categories of risks such as fraud risk, legal
risk, reputational risk, environmental risk and physical risk
among others.

Operational risk framework of Edelweiss is designed to
balance and check operational risk at key manifestation
points. In addition to defining new processes, we have
initiated an ongoing review of all critical processes to
proactively identify weak controls and strengthen the same.

All of the above will also help us in ensuring our compliance
with Companies Act 2013 requirement of “adequate internal
financial controls system and operating effectiveness of
such controls”.

Edelweiss has state-of-the-art Data Centre at Edelweiss
House to ensure uninterrupted and reliable service to our
clients and businesses. We continue to have a comprehensive
Business Continuity Plan that is periodically tested.

TECHNOLOGY

Edelweiss has been able to create strategic competitive
advantage by leveraging technology. Technology has emerged
from being computation intensive (i.e. powering tasks and
transactions alone) to collaboration intensive (i.e. powering
organisational processes and relationships). This has helped
drive efficiency and growth, build robust risk management
systems, deliver accurate and timely MIS as well as foster
greater customer connect.

Technology initiatives are focussed towards bringing about
Business and digital transformation, providing robust and
scalable IT infrastructure, efficient service delivery,
automation for straight through processing and provide
information security.

Over the years, Edelweiss has constantly invested in building
and upgrading its technological infrastructure. Our current
technology capabilities include:

e Mission critical trading infrastructure Trading set-up with
connectivity to all major stock exchanges - NSE, BSE,
MCX, MCX-SX, NCDEX and USE

e ITIL framework based centralised service desk for
incident and service request handling

e Tier 3+ Energy efficient Green Data centre facility at
Edelweiss House that is built for 99.99+% availability
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e Secondary Tier 2 Business Continuity Plan (BCP) data
centre that offers infrastructure for continuous data
replication and operations encompassing availability,
reliability and scalability

e Fully Functional BCP seating Site setup leveraging
virtualisation and cloud technology

e Highly Resilient 3 Tier state-of-the-art and low latency
network infrastructure and connectivity

e Software applications across different lines of business
that cover Core Solutions, Risk Management, Customer
Relationship, Web Initiatives, Reporting & Business
Analytics, Servicing and Integration

e IS0 27001 certified Infrastructure and processes

Edelweiss technology infrastructure supports a network of
about 4,001 users across over 118 locations. On an average,
this infrastructure  handles approximately 300,000
transactions a day and at its peak has handled about 1.3
million transactions a day.

New Digital technologies are transforming every aspect of
our lives and also creating exciting opportunities in the
financial services industry. It has been continuous endeavour
at Edelweiss to leverage technologies and create a digital
edge for our business growth, improve productivity and
enhance customer experience.

We believe that data analytics and mobility are the two
biggest game changing new technologies that will have
impact on BFSI business models. Edelweiss Mobile Trader
solution offering mobile app for retail transactions has been
received very well by the investor community. The ensuing
focus will be to use innovative mobility solutions for
improving stakeholder productivity and enhancing customer
experience.

Data-driven insights are also becoming a priority for financial
services organisations. We aim to leverage analytics and big
data technologies to understand customer preferences and
needs with a view to increasing the value of each customer
interaction and also for building insights and decision
support for Risk Management.

Edelweiss will continue with its IT investment strategy that
encourages innovation to achieve customer-focussed
business objectives and drive future growth.



GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance simply put means that a corporate
should always act in the best interest of stakeholders.
Edelweiss believes in adopting global best practices in
corporate governance in letter and spirit. Strong corporate
governance and an ethical culture facilitate effective
management and control of businesses while achieving
constant growth. It also ensures that the Company maintains
highest levels of business ethics and creates value for all
stakeholders.

Among the ten Edelweiss Guiding Principles, one is “Our
Reputation is more important than any financial reward”
and another is “We will obey and comply with all the rules
of the land”. These guiding principles have always ensured
that we follow the best-in-class standards of governance at
all times. Given the multiplicity of regulators governing
Edelweiss, there is a greater need for ensuring high quality
oversight and highest standards of corporate governance.
This makes it imperative for us to conduct our business in a
manner which meets with strict regulatory oversight in all
fields. Strict adherence to the laws of the land is the key to
our clean track record on which we at Edelweiss take pride.

Edelweiss complies with all the provisions of Corporate
Governance as per Clause 49 of the Listing Arrangement with
the Stock Exchanges. The current Board of EFSL comprises
11 directors out of which seven directors are independent.
All of the seven external directors are persons of eminence
in their field and come with a wealth of experience in
financial services. The strength of independent directors
vis-a-vis management directors provides the much desired
independence to the Board.

Though Edelweiss is a listed company since December 2007,
the Company has always valued the immense contribution
brought in by the independent directors to the Company. The
concept of a Board as a body imposing independent
oversight and acting as a sounding board of third party
objective experts has been a part of Edelweiss structure and
DNA even before listing. Hence, even as far back as FYO1,
Edelweiss had a Board of Directors consisting of three
independent and two management directors even though
such was not a statutory requirement for an unlisted
Company.

The Edelweiss Board plays a vital role as:
e Policy maker

e Sounding board for strategic initiatives and strategy
formulation

e Anoversight body for corporate activities

e Body for protection of minority investors and other
stakeholders

e Body to ensure highest standards of corporate
governance and ethics

e Mentor for Management Committee members and
Senior Leadership Group of Edelweiss

With their diverse and rich background, the independent
directors’ contribution to Board deliberations is immense and
meaningful. Besides the Board meetings, the independent
directors are also actively involved in various Board
Committees and other initiatives including social
responsibility.

Given the strong track record of corporate governance,
Edelweiss has won the award for “Best Corporate
Governance, India 2013” from the London-based Capital
Financial International Jury.
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CUSTOMER CENTRICITY

While Edelweiss was predominantly handling wholesale
clients till 2008, the diversification phase since then has seen
addition of a large number of retail clients with the result
that by now we service over 497,000 clients across
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Institutional, HNI and Retail client segments. For all of these
segments and all our businesses, we believe that customer
centricity is going to be the key differentiator. Further, as all
our businesses are heavily regulated, scope for innovation
either in terms of products or marketing is limited. Even if
any innovation is introduced, India being such a hyper-
competitive market, it would be copied, blunting the
competitive edge in no time.

The only way, therefore, we can build a competitive
advantage is by enhancing customer experience. Customer
centricity goes to the heart of how we think and manage our
businesses and our relationships with the clients. It is about
how we design our products, how we build our internal
systems and processes, how we sell and finally how we
service our customers. Customer Centricity also builds a long-
lasting relationship with the clients based on trust and fair
play.

We feel that in Edelweiss we truly differentiate on Customer
Centricity. Great customer service transcends experience and
becomes a memory, which clients associate with a brand. If
we are able to provide each customer of Edelweiss a unique
experience that translates into a happy memory, we have the
potential to turn customers into brand ambassadors.

Three big insights that have helped us in enhancing customer
centricity are:

e Customer experience is not only about Retail
businesses! While retail businesses need a higher level
of customer experience, wholesale businesses have
similar challenges; customer feedback is usually
immediate and the tendency of wholesale customers to
walk away at the slightest instance is high if we are not
focussed on their needs.

e  Customer centricity starts with enterprise groups within
a company as they have “internal customers”. They too
need to provide great customer experience by aligning
their internal systems and support mechanism to this.

e  Customer centricity must become a way of life. It is core to
everythingwe dointernally and externally.

We have set up a central LoB to focus on Customer Centricity
which works with various SBUs on specific projects to measure
and enhance the customer experience. A system of measuring
customer feedback - internal as well as external customers - has
been developed using the Net Promoter Score (NPS)
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Methodology and improving upon the scores based on this
feedbackisanintegral part of the KRAs of each LoB.

Customer Vision Statement
We have a simple Customer Service promise:
“Edelweiss Customers will have a unique experience”

Four Pillars of Customer Centricity at Edelweiss help us in
enhancing the customer experience:

Our Customers will
have a UNIQUE experience

Listen to Understand ‘

Deliver as Promised

Respond Effectively
Go the Extra Mile

Our Motto to the Customer: “Listen to Understand. Respond
to Solve”

In Hindi, this motto is aptly stated as “2Jal, a7, Tz’

The above has also been produced in the form of a jingle to
spread the message in a popular way.

Some of the recent initiatives to institutionalise customer
centricity are as under:

e “Common Service Language” is a set of concepts that are
universally understood across an organisation and
frequently used by all employees. We have defined
common service language for six broad customer
experience points at organisation level to be used as
benchmark by all SBUs to define their own service
levels.

e An organisation-wide Reward and Recognition
programme for Customer Centricity has been rolled out
and exemplary customer centricity stories are circulated
to motivate all employees.

e Acentralised customer feedback calling system has been
put in place for Retail businesses using NPS
methodology.



HUMAN RESOURCES

At Edelweiss, we believe that our human capital is our
greatest strength and is the driver of growth, efficiency and
productivity. Year-on-year, we continue to deepen our
philosophy by investing in developing our talent and
leadership through a number of well designed measures.

Through the year 2013-14, the defined structures of
Wholesale and Retail clusters were further strengthened and
each SBU under them further scaled up to create a New and
Improved Edelweiss. The year has seen us grow in size and
reach both. The Group strength at the end of the year stands
at 4,001 employees with over 100 net new hires during FY14.
The attrition level among seniors remained stable around
11% during FY14. The diversification of our businesses has
presented a new challenge — need for high quality leadership
at senior and middle levels. Despite economic slowdown in
India in the past two years, we have continued to hire
employees for our new businesses as well as in senior
positions in enterprise functions to strengthen the
organisation and to be future ready. We also continued to
decentralise the HR function to the SBUs.

Continuing our focus on training and development of our
people and building bench strength of leaders, we
strengthened the Edelweiss Leadership Program (ELP) and
provided  structured inputs through  engagement,
communication and development. The Leadership group
underwent coaching on communication and strategic
thinking. ‘Fountainhead', our Leadership Centre at Alibaug,
was used extensively during the year to build employee
connect and teamwork across various levels in the
organisation covering base of 3,253 employees (13,692
participant man-days).

As the organisation continues to diversify and spread
geographically in India and abroad, weaving the organisation
with common Edelweiss Business Guiding Principles became
imperative. This year through experiential activities and skits,
our people were enrolled into the Guiding Principles of
Edelweiss. Launch of Learning Management System (LMS)
further propelled the learning culture and empowered
employees to take charge of their learning initiatives.
“EdelHealth” platform expanded and brought additional
focus to Women Health through “BizDiva” initiatives. Our
Edelweiss Level Reward and Recognition programme “E-
Titan” culminated with the celebrations where the winners

were recognised and honoured by the senior management.
This programme was attended by over 1,000 employees in
person and 2,500 through a webcast.

Automation of Survey for Employee Engagement (SEE) and
launch of new HRMIS will further strengthen the backend
and employee database. We also continued the required
efforts to deliver a 100% HR compliance on all statutory
audits and inspections.

CORPORATE FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

The business environment of today has brought lots of
opportunities to Edelweiss businesses and with it challenges
too. To cope with these challenges and give a robust platform
to all financial and regulatory reporting, Edelweiss has built a
core Finance & Accounts team to cater to dynamic business
environment requirements. This team functions as an
enabler to businesses by providing real time information for
decision-making, planning and reporting at zero tolerance
level.

Corporate Finance & Accounts group (F&A) in Edelweiss
comprises various functions and/or processes viz. Reporting,
Financial Control, Accounts Payable and Receivable, Audit,
Banking Transactions Control & Monitoring across all the
Group entities and Group Financial Consolidation. The F&A
group has professionally qualified members with
considerable experience. The function is further divided into
entity clusters based on business verticals. The team
manages accounting, auditing (internal & statutory) and
regulatory reporting for all group entities as a central unit.
The structure of our diversified varied businesses & legal
entities and various regulators requires the teams to have a
high quotient of synergy amongst them. The function caters
to the ever changing regulatory environment in India with a
proactive enabling approach.

The F&A group is also entrusted with regulatory compliance
responsibilities complementing the classic finance and
accounting controllership roles. The thrust has been on
improving the process efficiency by leveraging various
technologies available. As a port through which pass all
business transactions for reporting, it is at a vantage point to
be able to identify potential control risks and threats and
enable businesses to institutionalise robust controls around
them on a continual basis. It also is a valued contributor to
group-wide strategic projects.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Edelweiss has robust internal audit and control systems
across the Group. They are responsible for independently
evaluating the adequacy of internal controls and provide
assurance that operations and business units adhere to
internal policies, processes and procedures as well as
regulatory and legal requirements. Internal Audit and Control
team defines and reviews scope, coordinates and conducts
Risk-based Internal Audits with quarterly frequency across
Edelweiss through external audit firms as well as an in-house
team. Certain operational activities are also subject to
concurrent audit. Existing audit procedures are reviewed
periodically to enhance effectiveness, usefulness and
timeliness. The Internal Control Procedures include proper
authorisation and adherence to authorisation matrix,
segregation of roles and responsibilities, third party
confirmations, physical verification, checks and balances and
preventive checks on Compliance Risk and overseeing of
periodical financials etc.

The internal audit follows Generally Accepted Audit
Practices, Internal Audit Standards and Analytical
procedures. It entails risk assessment and detailed
verification of processes, adequacy of maintenance of
accounting records, documentations and supporting,
authorisations, review of internal controls, compliance with
management policies and laid down procedures, compliance
with applicable accounting standards etc. and to verify
adherence with applicable statutes, rules, regulation,
byelaws and circulars of the relevant statutory and regulatory
authorities. It includes consideration of Laws and Regulations
in an audit of Financial Statements, system audit, control
over assets of the Company, review of related party
transactions and reporting them to the Audit Committee,
among other things.

Edelweiss has institutionalised a strong compliance culture
across the Group recognising that transparency and trust
amongst all its stakeholders can be achieved only through
this. We have a centralised Compliance Department that
ensures compliance with all the applicable laws. It also
provides advice on general regulatory matters including
formulating policies on the Prevention of Insider Trading with
the help and guidance of the Board of Directors.

Edelweiss has formulated Conflicts of Interest Policy as per
SEBI circular for SEBI registered intermediaries, which will
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guide Intermediaries for fair treatment of clients and
elimination of conflicts of personal interest with the client’s
interest and not to deal in securities, in case of availability of
client’s material non published information.

Edelweiss believes in conduct of its affairs in a fair and
transparent manner by adopting highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. To
this end, Edelweiss has put in place a strong Whistleblower
Policy that not only encourages employees to report
wrongdoing within the organisation, but also ensures that
their identity is protected so that they do not face any
adverse repercussions. Edelweiss was one of the first
Indian financial services companies to sign up for
Corporate Whistleblower Initiative (CWI), via a portal
(www.cwiportal.com) that facilitated complete anonymity of

whistleblower and aimed at encouraging and protecting
whistleblowers in the corporate sector.

Know Your Client Process

Edelweiss group provides diversified financial services to a
wide cross section of clients. The individuals/entities desiring
to become clients of Edelweiss Group open an account to
carry out those specific activities. The clients are registered
separately for separate activities. These individuals/clients
are required to complete the Know Your Client (KYC) process
including the KYC compliant application form and submission
of required proof of identity & address and other
documentary requirement before opening their account. In-
Person Verification (IPV) of these clients is carried out to
verify the actual identity of the client. IPV process is aligned
to the regulatory requirements.

Politically Exposed Persons (PEPs) are also identified at the
time of account opening and monitored subsequently. A
more rigorous checking process is carried out for
identification of clients coming under this category.
Additionally, the clients are also scanned through (1) List of
SEBI debarred clients and (2) Financial Action Task Force
(FATF) list issued by RBI. If the client name appears in any of
these lists, further scrutiny is carried out before taking a call
to register them as per instructions of the
regulators/Government. In the event of the clients being
registered for availing credit services, these clients are also
scanned through various lists such as CIBIL list, Watch-out
Investor list and other data available in public domain to



ascertain their credit worthiness.

The KYC details of clients are also uploaded to KYC
Registration Agency (KRA), which has a centralised database
to avoid hassles of clients going through same KYC
registrations again.

To sum up, Edelweiss group of entities follow very stringent
client registration process with zero tolerance before any
individual/entity is accepted as a client by any of Edelweiss
Group of entities.

Prevention of Money Laundering

The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 (PMLA) and
its relevant Circulars issued by the regulators / exchanges
from time to time has imposed certain responsibilities on
various financial institutions and intermediaries with regard
to preventing terrorist financing and money laundering.

Edelweiss has put in place required internal controls for
preventing and impeding money laundering and terrorist
financing as per the guidelines of regulators.

Credit Ratings

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL) and five
subsidiaries, namely Edelweiss Securities Limited (ESL), ECL
Finance Limited (ECLF), Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
(EHFL), Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited (ECSL) and
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited (EFIL) enjoy the
highest short-term credit rating of “Crisil A1+”.

EFSLhasalong-term debt rating of “CARE AA”.

ECLF has a long-term debt and bank facilities rating of “CARE
AA”. It also has a long-term debt rating of “BWR AA” and “Crisil
AA-/Crisil AA-r”.

EHFL has a long-term debt rating of “CARE AA” and long-term
debtand bankfacilities rating of “Crisil AA-".

ESL and ECSL have a long-term bank facilities rating of “Crisil
AA-“.ECSLalso has a Preference Shares rating of “Crisil AA-“.

All the long-term ratings from Crisil have a Stable outlook.
Allthe above ratingsare currentasonMarch 31,2014.

Stakeholder Relations

Stakeholders Relations at Edelweiss is an integral aspect of our
business as we believe in building a transparent, honest and
open channel of communication with all our stakeholders. As a
listed company, we consider it to be our duty to provide our
investors, analysts, lenders, rating agencies and other
stakeholders with a complete and accurate picture of the
Company’s past and current performance and the prospects
and strategies for the future. We continue to build upon a
foundation of accurate and consistent communication with
them. It will play animportant role in our future success, as we
scale up our businesses and expand our reach to the
investment community, enabling them to understand and
appreciate our business model fully and the long-term strategy
intrue perspective.

Our Stakeholder Relations efforts include frequent interaction
with institutional investors, analysts, lenders and rating
agencies through one-on-one meetings and attendance at
investor conferences. These efforts are complemented by the
earnings conference call, dissemination of quarterly
performance updates via Press Release and Investor
Presentation and constant and immediate updating of
information useful to stakeholders on our corporate website.
Following the best practices, we keep archives of transcripts
from all our earlier Earnings Calls on our website. Our website
www.edelweissfin.com provides a facility to Investors and

other stakeholders to subscribe to receive quarterly updates
automatically. During the year, we held more than 200
interactions with our stakeholders.

We continued to consciously enhance our disclosure levels in
respect of our business performance metrics and will continue
to work towards achieving greater transparency about our
operations. For the past three years, we have been focussing
on more discussion on businesses which are growing and are
more relevantin the current context to Edelweiss. The informal
feedback from investors and other stakeholders in this regard
has been quite encouraging. We are committed to engaging
with all the stakeholdersin an open and transparent manner to
enable them to understand and appreciate our diverse
businesses and our long-term strategy for value creation.
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Regulatory Structure

Edelweiss Group has 56 companies including EFSL, 48
subsidiaries and seven associate companies as at March 31,
2014 spread across various business lines in India as well as
outside India.

EFSL (formerly Edelweiss Capital Limited) commenced
operations in 1996 as a Merchant Banker governed by SEBI
(Merchant Banking) Regulations, 1992. Over the next 18 years,
the Company has diversified into a number of financial services
businesses run by separate subsidiaries and a JV, which are
regulated by different regulators.

The non-banking financing activities are mainly conducted
through subsidiaries ECL Finance Limited, Edelweiss Finance &
Investments Limited and Edel Finance Company Limited.
These entities are registered with RBl as Non-Banking Financial
Companies not accepting public deposits. Housing finance
business is conducted through subsidiary Edelweiss Housing
Finance Limited, registered with National Housing Bank as a
non deposit accepting housing finance company.

The business of commodities broking and trading is mainly
carried out through subsidiaries Edelweiss Commodities
Services Limited, EC Commodity Limited and Edelweiss
Comtrade Limited, governed by Forward Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1952 under the oversight of FMC.

The stock broking activities are mainly conducted through
subsidiaries Edelweiss Securities Limited (ESL), Edelweiss
Broking Limited (EBL) and Edelweiss Financial Advisors Limited
(EFAL), governed by SEBI (Stock Brokers and Sub Brokers)
Regulations, 1992. While ESL is a SEBI registered Depository
Participant with CDSL, EBL is SEBI registered participant with
NSDL. The wealth management business is mainly carried out
through Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited and
the custodial services business through Edelweiss Custodial
Services Limited, both governed by SEBI.

The mutual fund business is conducted through subsidiary
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited, registered with SEBI.

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited, the life
insurance Joint Venture with Tokio Marine Holdings, is
regulated by IRDA. Insurance advisory business is conducted
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through subsidiary Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited,
whichis also regulated by IRDA.

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd., an associate
company, is regulated by RBI.



REGULATORY CHANGES POSING CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

We are constantly aware of regulatory changes and related challenges and opportunities that affect our business environment. We

are also proactive in aligning ourselves in terms of adherence to compliance requirements and to make the most of opportunities

that arise from regulatory changes.
Regulation/Act

Changes Implication

Reserve Bank of India e In June 2013, RBI issued guidelines on e The step has brought clarity onissuance of

raising debt through Private Placement by
NBFCs.

In July 2013, RBI allowed NBFCs,
categorised as Asset Finance Companies
(AFCs) to avail of ECB under automatic
route subject to certain conditions.

In January 2014, RBI issued revised
guidelines on Restructuring of Advances by
NBFCs.

In January 2014, RBI issued guidelines to
NBFCs on “Early Recognition of Financial
Distress, Prompt Steps for Resolution and
Fair Recovery for Lenders: Framework for
Revitalizing Distressed Assets in the
Economy”.

debentures on private placement basis by
NBFCs.

This step provides an additional avenue
for NBFC—AFCs to raise funds.

This brings clarity with respect to
restructuring of various advances by
NBFCs, asset classification and NPL
provisioning.

This requires NBFCs to give periodic and
time bound disclosures of Special Mention
Accounts (SMA) and formation of Joint
Lenders’ Forum (JLF) for collective and
timely resolution of SMA-2 accounts. This
will bring more transparency and greater

discipline in credit management by NBFCs.

RBI In April 2014, RBI issued guidelines on
Uniform Accounting Standards at ARCs.

This will bring in uniformity in the preparation
ofaccounts of ARCs.

The Interim Union Budget
2014-15 Direct Taxes

The Interim Budget presented in February
2014 did not contain any major
announcements.

The Interim Budget presented in February
2014 did not contain any major
announcements.

The Interim Union Budget
2014-15 Indirect Taxes

US - Foreign Account Tax
Compliance Act (FATCA)

Registration of entities for US FATCA
compliance is required to be done.

Indian Govt. has consented to sign Model 1
Inter Government Agreement and this will be
implemented through CBDT.

The Companies Act, 2013 The Companies Act, 2013 has come into
force and several sections have been

notified to be effective from April 01, 2014.

While it is a welcome revision, several grey
areas remain posing a number of questions.
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Regulation/Act

SEBI

SEBI

SEBI

SEBI/Exchanges

SEBI/Custodian

SEBI/Depositories

Changes

In October 2013, SEBI issued notification
under the Securities Contract (Regulation)
Act, 1996 (SCRA) on contracts for call or put
option, pre-emption rights including right of
first refusal, or tag-along or drag-along
rights etc.

e PMLA Act and PMLA Rules are modified to
cover Risk Assessment, reliance on third
party for carrying out Client Due
Diligence, Record Keeping requirements
and Designated Director.

e SEBI introduced SCORES system for
Redressal of complaints.

e Guidelines are provided by SEBI for
dealing with Conflicts of Interest of SEBI
registered Intermediaries.

e SEBI introduced regulatory framework
for public issuance of non-convertible
redeemable preference shares and for
listing of privately placed non-convertible
redeemable preference shares.

e SEBI has made IPO grading optional for
public issues.

Participation in Simulated session has been
introduced instead of Compulsory Mock
session for certain categories of changes in
testing of software.

SEBI has issued Foreign Portfolio Investor
(FPI) Regulations to put in place a
framework for registration and procedures
with regard to foreign investors.

SEBI has introduced simplification of Demat
account opening process and strengthen the
supervisory and monitoring role of the
depositories and their participants with
respect to Delivery Instruction Slips (DIS).
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Implication

This step brings in more clarity on the put
and call options etc. in Securities.

e Designated Director’s appointment and
intimation to FIU is required. Intermediary
can rely on third party for due diligence of
client. Record keeping period reduced to 5
years.

e Reduced the period of Redressal of
Investor complaints to 30 days.

e SEBI registered Intermediaries will now
have a more detailed policy in place to
address any Conflicts of Interest situation.

¢ This creates a new business opportunity for
Merchant Bankers.

e Thisreduces cost for Issuers.

This will facilitate faster approval process
from Exchanges.

Regulation will simplify the process for
foreign portfolio investment in India and
help in faster registration process for foreign
clients.

This will harmonise the account opening
process for Demat accounts and will ensure
DIS is standardised across all DPs.



Regulation/Act

FMC/Exchanges

IRDA

IRDA

Cautionary Statement

FinanceAsia

Changes

e As per FMC directive, all the Commodities
Exchanges shall keep their trading
platform closed on Saturdays for all the
futures contracts with effect from April
01, 2014.

e As per FMC directive, the trade timings in
the future contracts of selective
commodities will be extended till
11.55 PM.

IRDA issued directive to all insurers that they
should not accept any business from
insurance brokers who do not hold a valid
license.

e IRDA  has amended  Reinsurance
Regulations  which amongst others
prescribe the insurers retention limits.

e The Regulation permits opening of new
branches in Tier 2 cities and below
centres without prior approval of IRDA.

¢ Design of a Standard Format is mandated
for filing of Policy documents with IRDA at
the time of product approval.
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Implication

e This is welcome step bringing commodity
markets at par with global markets and is
in the interest of investors and members.

e This will align domestic futures prices
better with international prices in
internationally linked agricultural
commodities.

This restricts Insurance brokers from
booking business between expiry of their
broking license till the date of renewal of
license.

e Insurance companies are required to
retain more mortality risk which may now
be factored in pricing of products.

o |t will facilitate easier expansion with
deeper penetration of the Business.

e Standardisation of Policy Document
would make it convenient for speedy
clearance of the products at IRDA.

Edelweiss voted a winner two years in a row!

¥

SIS
BEST
COMPAMNIES
2004

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis contain certain forward-looking statements based on various assumptions on the
Edelweiss Group's present and future business strategies and the environment in which it operates. Actual results may differ substantially or materially
fromthose expressed orimplied due to risk and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political conditions in India
and abroad, volatility in interest rates and in the securities market, new regulations and Government policies that may impact the company's businesses
as well as the ability to implement its strategies. The information contained herein is as of the date referenced and Edelweiss does not undertake any
obligation to update these statements. Edelweiss has obtained all market data and other information from sources believed to be reliable or its internal
estimates, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. The discussion relating to financial performance of various businesses of
Edelweiss contains some data, which may be based on Management estimates or internal Management Information System.
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Corporate Governance Report

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is about promoting corporate fairness, transparency, accountability and integrity of the management. It
also aims to align as nearly as possible the interests of individuals, corporates and society and enhancing the stakeholders’ value.
Best results are achieved when the companies begin to treat the Corporate Governance system not as a mere structure but as a
way of corporate life. Good corporate governance practices have always been an integral part of your Company’s philosophy and is
committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors provide strategic direction and thrust to the operations of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the
stakeholders.

Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and is in conformity
with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board
Meetings held during the financial year 2013-14 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), as also the number of directorships
and Committee positions held by them in other public limited companies as on March 31, 2014 are as under:-

Name of the Directors Category Relationship No. of Board Attendance No. of Committee Position*
with other Meetings at the directorships
Directors Held |Attended| lastAGM in other Member | Chairman
held on public limited
July 26,2013 | companies
Mr. Rashesh Shah Executive None 5 5 Yes 4 1 -
[Chairman, Managing (Promoter)
Director & CEQ]
Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy Executive None 5 5 Yes 4 1 -
(Promoter)
Mr. Himanshu Kaji Executive None 5 5 Yes 2 - -
Mr. Rujan Panjwani* Executive None 4 4 Yes 6 3 -
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah* | Independent None 5 3 Yes - - -
Mr. Narendra Jhaveri Independent None 5 3 Yes 6 2 1
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam Independent None 5 5 Yes 6 2 2
Mr. Berjis Desai Independent None 5 3 No 7 4 1
Mr. Sanjiv Misra Independent None 5 4 Yes - - -
Mr. Sunil Mitra Independent None 5 5 Yes 6 1 3
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra® Independent None 5 2 Yes - - -

" Mr. Rujan Panjwani was appointed as an Additional Director and Executive Director by the Board on June 24, 2013.

$ Mr. Navtej S. Nandra was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board on May 15, 2013.

# With effect from October 1, 2013, Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah was appointed as an Additional Director designated as an Independent
Director. The Table includes the meetings attended by him as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

* Only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee, in other public limited companies, have been considered

for the Committee positions.

The Board met five times on the following dates during the financial year 2013-14:-

May 15, 2013; June 24, 2013; July 26, 2013; October 30, 2013 and January 24, 2014.
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None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees (as per Clause
49(1)(C)(ii)) of the Listing Agreement, across all the public limited companies in which he is a Director. All the Directors have made the
requisite disclosures regarding the Committee positions held by them in other public limited companies.

Board Procedure

The annual calendar of Board Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of the year. The agenda is circulated in advance to the Board
Members. The items in the agenda are backed by a comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take appropriate
decisions.

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

The Company has a Code of Conduct (‘Code’) for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel including all Functional Heads,
which is in compliance with the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Code has been posted on the Company’s
website.

Further, all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to this
effect signed by the Chairman and CEO forms part of this Annual Report.

Committees:
Audit Committee

Composition as at March 31, 2014:-

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri - Chairman
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam - Member
Mr. Berjis Desai - Member
Mr. Sanjiv Misra - Member
Mr. Sunil Mitra - Member

All the members of the Committee are Independent Directors and have financial management expertise. The constitution and terms
of reference of the Committee are in compliance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and revised Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement which will come into effect from October 1, 2014.

Brief Description of the Terms of Reference

1.  Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of the financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Reviewing with the management, the annual, half yearly and the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval.

3. Discussion with the Internal Auditors any significant finding and follow-up there on.

4.  Review of the matters listed in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Meetings held
During the financial year 2013-14, four meetings were held on May 15, 2013; July 25, 2013; October 30, 2013 and January 24, 2014.

Attendance:
Name of the Member No. of meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri 4 3
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam 4 4
Mr. Berjis Desai 4 2
Mr. Sanjiv Misra 4 3
Mr. Sunil Mitra* 2 2

*Mr. Sunil Mitra was inducted as a member of the Committee w.e.f July 26, 2013.
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The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Chief Financial Officer and the Sr. Vice-President (Finance) are invited to attend the meetings
of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri, the Chairman of the Committee, was present at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on July 26, 2013.
Remuneration Committee (now known as Nomination and Remuneration Committee)

Composition as at March 31, 2014:-

Mr. Berjis Desai - Member
Mr. Sanjiv Misra - Member
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah - Member
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra - Member

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on May 17, 2014, had re-christened the Remuneration Committee as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, to comply with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (the Rules).

Meetings held
During the financial year 2013-14, three meetings were held on May 15, 2013; June 24, 2013 and July 26, 2013.

Attendance:
Name of the Member No. of meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Berjis Desai 3 2
Mr. Sanjiv Misra 3 2
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah 3 2
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra* 1 1

* Mr. Navtej S. Nandra was inducted as a member of the Committee w. e. f. July 26, 2013.

The terms of reference of the Committee is in accordance with the Act and includes identification of the persons who can become
Directors; to ensure ‘fit and proper’ status and credentials of proposed/existing Directors; formulate the criteria for determining the
qualifications, positive attributes etc. and independence of a Director; recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration
for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, for the approval of the Board.

Remuneration to the Directors
Non- Executive Directors

The Company pays sitting fees of ¥ 20,000/- per meeting to the Independent Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and
Committees thereof. The members of the Company have authorised the payment of Commission of upto 1% of the net profits of
the Company to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Commission is distributed amongst the Non-Executive Directors
interalia based on their attendance and contribution at the Board and various Committee Meetings.

The details of sitting fees, Commission paid and the ESOPs granted to the Independent Directors during the year ended
March 31, 2014 are as under:-

Name of the Director Sitting fees (3) Commission No. of Options granted
(for the financial year 2012-13) (3) under ESOP 2011

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri 2,20,000 12,50,000 50,000
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam 2,60,000 12,50,000 50,000
Mr. Berjis Desai 2,40,000 12,50,000 50,000
Mr. Sunil Mitra 1,40,000 12,50,000 50,000
Mr. Sanjiv Misra 2,40,000 - 50,000
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra 40,000 -- --
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah 40,000 -- --
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Executive Directors

The details of the remuneration paid to the Managing Director and the Executive Directors during the financial year ended

March 31, 2014 are as under:-

Service Contract

No. of Stock Options granted
Notice period

Severance fee

April 1, 2014 to
March 31, 2017
NIL

N.A.

N.A.

April 1, 2014 to
March 31, 2017
NIL

N.A.

N.A.

November 1, 2011 to
October 31, 2014

8,00,000
N.A.
N.A.

(in%)
Particulars Mr. Rashesh Shah, Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy Mr. Himanshu Kaji Mr. Rujan Panjwani*
Chairman, MD & CEO Executive Director Executive Director Executive Director
Basic Salary 79,30,525 53,40,152 77,86,739 32,09,332
Perquisites 54,383 8,750 1,21,355 41,720
Bonus 2,83,00,000 68,00,000 1,28,00,000 -
Total 3,62,84,908 1,21,48,902 2,07,08,094 32,51,052

June 24, 2013 to
June 23, 2016

2,00,000
N.A.
N.A.

* For the period June 24, 2013 to March 31, 2014.

The shareholding of the Directors in the Company as on March 31, 2014 is as under:-

No. of Equity Shares*

% of the paid up capital

Sr. No. Name of the Director
1. Mr. Rashesh Shah
2. Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy
3. Mr. Himanshu Kaji
4. Mr. Rujan Panjwani
5. Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah
6. Mr. Narendra Jhaveri
7. Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam
8. Mr. Berjis Desai
9. Mr. Sanjiv Misra
10. | Mr. Sunil Mitra
11. | Mr. Navtej S. Nandra

13,43,01,730

5,30,26,560

1,01,61,380
78,000
20,000

7,924,180

17.46
6.90

1.32
0.01
0.00

1.03

* Shares held singly or as a first shareholder are only considered

Shareholders’ /Investors’ Grievance Committee (now known as Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee)

Composition as at March 31, 2014:-

Mr. Berjis Desai
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah
Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy

- Member
- Member
- Member

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on May 17, 2014, had re-christened the Shareholders’/Investors’
Grievance Committee as the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, to comply with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (the Rules).

Meetings held

During the financial year 2013-14, two meetings of the Committee were held on May 15, 2013 and October 30, 2013.
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Attendance:

Name of the Member No. of meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Berjis Desai 2 2
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah 2 1
Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy 2 2

Mr. B. Renganathan is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company.

Based on the Report received from Link Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, the Company has received
24 requests/complaints during the finaincial year ended March 31, 2014 which were satisfactorily resolved/replied to. As on
March 31, 2014, there were no pending requests/complaints.

General Body Meetings

The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below:-

Financial Date Time Venue No. of special
Year resolutions passed
2012-13 | July 26,2013 | 3.00 p.m. | Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098. 5
2011-12 | July 26,2012 | 3.00 p.m. | Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098. 2
2010-11 | July 25,2011 | 3.00 p.m. |Y. B. Chavan Auditorium, Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan, 2
General Jaganath Bhosale Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.

Postal Ballot

The following two Postal Ballots were conducted during the financial year 2013-14:-

1. Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot on August 26, 2013

The following resolutions were passed on August 26, 2013 through postal ballot, pursuant to Section 192A of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Companies (Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2011, in respect of the following items:

i) Special Resolution for alteration of the Main Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company under
Section 17 of the Act; and
i)  Ordinary Resolution for transfer of the Merchant Banking business of the Company to a subsidiary.

Mr. Keyoor Bakshi, Partner, KBNT Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, was appointed as the Scrutinizer to conduct the
postal ballot process.

The Notice dated June 24, 2013 was sent to the members and the last date for receipt of postal ballot forms was August 20,
2013. According to the Scrutinizer’s report, the Resolutions were passed as under:-

Sr. Business Postal Ballot forms received Valid votes casted
No. (Physical + Electronic) (Physical + Electronic)
Total Valid Total In favour Against
1. | Special Resolution for alteration of the Main 362 331 331 | 39,28,58,668 3,484
Objects Clause of the Memorandum of (99.999%) (0.001%)
Association of the Company.
2. | Ordinary Resolution for transfer of the Merchant 361 325 325 | 39,28,56,673 4,544
Banking business of the Company to a subsidiary. (99.999%) (0.001%)

The result of the postal ballot was declared on August 26, 2013 and published on August 27, 2013 in an English daily and a
Marathi daily for the information of the members.
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2. Resolution passed through Postal Ballot on February 20, 2014

A special resolution was passed on February 20, 2014 through postal ballot, pursuant to Section 192A of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Companies (Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2011, to enable Foreign Institutional Investors
(Flls) registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) to acquire and hold, on their own account and on behalf
of their SEBI approved sub-accounts, Equity Shares of the Company, upto 28% of the total paid-up Equity Share Capital of the
Company.

Mr. Keyoor Bakshi, Partner, KBNT Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, was appointed as the Scrutinizer to conduct the
postal ballot process.

The Notice dated January 6, 2014 was sent to the members and the last date for receipt of postal ballot forms was February 14,
2014. According to the Scrutinizer’s report, the Resolution was passed as under:-

Business Postal Ballot forms received Valid votes casted
(Physical + Electronic) (Physical + Electronic)
Total Valid Total In favour Against
Special Resolution to increase the limit for 461 432 432 45,40,05,669 7,826
investment by FlIs in the paid up share capital of (99.998%) (0.002%)
the Company from 24% to 28%

The result of the postal ballot was declared on February 20, 2014 and published on February 22, 2014 in an English daily and a
Marathi daily for the information of the members.

Resolution, if any, to be passed through Postal Ballot during the current financial year will be taken up as and when necessary.

Disclosures

i The Company did not have any material significant related party transaction having a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the Notes to accounts.

ii.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards and policies generally accepted in
India.

iii. There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to the capital markets, resulting in
disciplinary action against the Company by the Stock Exchanges or Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other
statutory authority, during the last three years, except that the Company had submitted an offer of settlement with Securities
and Exchange Commission, USA (SEC) and the same has been accepted by SEC without admitting or denying the findings, in
relation to their charges of non registration as a broker dealer while acting as a Book Running Lead Manager/Co lead manager
in the private placement/initial public offering/ further public offering of Indian issuers, wherein shares were sold or marketed
and also for providing brokerage services to U.S. investors during the period 2008-2011.

iv.  The Company has implemented the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as set out in the Listing Agreement.
In respect of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements, the Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee,
the details whereof are given under the heading "Remuneration Committee (now known as Nomination and Remuneration
Committee)".

v.  The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of our code of conduct or ethics policy and confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

vi. The Company has a Risk Management Policy for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated
with the business of the Company.

vii. CEO / CFO Certification

The CEO and the CFO have certified to the Board, the requirements of Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement.
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viii. Compliance Certificate

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a certificate from a Practising Company Secretary, certifying the compliance by
the Company with the provisions of the Corporate Governance of the Listing Agreement is given as an Annexure to this Report.
Means of Communication

i The quarterly/annual financial results are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the Listing Agreement
and published in an English daily and a Marathi daily. The quarterly/annual results, press releases and the presentation made to
the institutional investors/analysts are also uploaded on the website of the Company www.edelweissfin.com.

ii. ~ The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, in compliance with the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is
annexed to the Directors’ Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

iii. The consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with ‘Accounting Standard — 21’ forms part of
this Annual Report.

iv.  General Shareholder Information

i. AGM : Date, time and venue Friday, July 25, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai — 400098.

ii.  Financial Year April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014

iii. Book Closure dates July 15, 2014 to July 25, 2014 (both days inclusive)

iv. Dividend payment date between August 5, 2014 and August 12, 2014

v.  Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The
Company has paid the listing fees, to these Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2014-15.

vi. Stock Codes (Equity Share)
Trading Symbol

BSE Limited 532922
National Stock Exchange of India Limited EDELWEISS
ISIN with NSDL and CDSL INE532F01054

vii. Market Price Data: Stock Market price data for the financial year 2013-14. High/ Low of daily closing market price of the
Company’s shares traded at BSE and NSE during each month in the financial year ended March 31, 2014 are as under:-

BSE NSE
Month High (%) Low (%) No. of shares traded High (%) Low (%) No. of shares traded
Apr-13 31.25 29.95 1,96,976 31.20 29.95 16,42,881
May-13 33.15 29.55 9,61,014 33.20 29.50 37,56,413
Jun-13 32.00 30.05 15,82,515 32.00 29.95 45,17,398
Jul-13 30.75 29.75 5,37,129 30.65 29.75 18,82,238
Aug-13 30.40 27.95 45,49,441 30.35 28.00 36,67,229
Sep-13 33.30 28.05 28,80,542 33.65 28.21 21,87,321
Oct-13 32.30 29.85 59,04,472 32.40 29.75 53,51,027
Nov-13 31.05 25.25 3,95,448 31.10 25.00 19,63,420
Dec-13 29.80 26.55 10,38,240 29.70 26.70 27,06,639
Jan-14 29.40 27.00 5,95,546 29.40 27.05 22,52,661
Feb-14 28.50 26.75 3,00,714 28.60 26.80 10,06,661
Mar-14 30.60 27.30 9,00,304 30.60 27.25 34,23,923
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viii.

Xi.

78

Performance of share price in comparison with the broad — based indices viz., NSE Nifty & BSE Sensex

Price Comparison with NSE S&P CNX Nifty
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: Link Intime India Private Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.
The Registrar and Share Transfer Agent acknowledges and executes the transfer of shares and arranges for issue of dividend
warrants and also undertakes the dematerialisation/rematerialisation of Equity Shares. The Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
also accepts, deals with and resolves complaints of the shareholders.

Share Transfer System: The Company’s shares are traded on the Stock Exchanges in compulsory demat mode. The transfer
of physical shares are processed and returned to the shareholders within a period of 15 days. With a view to expediting the
process of share transfers, transmissions etc., the Managing Director, Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, have been
severally empowered to approve the same.

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2014

No. of Equity Shares No. of Shareholders % of Total Total No. of % of Total Shares
Shareholders Shares held

1 - 500 1,23,975 94.73 1,25,76,806 1.64
501 - 1000 3,574 2.73 29,11,652 0.38
1001 - 2000 1,587 1.21 24,00,285 0.31
2001 - 3000 554 0.42 14,05,803 0.18
3001 - 4000 235 0.18 8,46,502 0.11
4001 - 5000 254 0.20 12,20,103 0.16
5001 - 10000 300 0.23 21,82,811 0.28
10001 and above 388 0.30 74,55,01,368 96.94

Total 1,30,867 100.00 76,90,45,330 100.00
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Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2014

Sr. Category No. of Shares % of
No. Shareholding
1. Promoters & Persons acting in Concert 32,33,10,960 42.04
2. Mutual Funds / FIs / Banks / Insurance Companies 1,71,045 0.02
3. FIl’s / QFl's 17,36,55,134 22.58
4, NRIs / Foreign Nationals / Foreign Bodies Corporate 14,18,93,668 18.45
5. Public and Others 13,00,14,523 16.91
Total 76,90,45,330 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares: As on March 31, 2014, 76,76,58,120 Equity Shares representing 99.82% of the issued share capital
of the Company were held in dematerialised form and 13,87,210 Equity Shares representing 0.18 % of the issued share capital
were held in physical form. At the end of each quarter, reconciliation of share capital audit is conducted by a Practising Company
Secretary to reconcile the total issued capital, listed capital and capital held by the Depositories in dematerialised form.
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other instrument convertible into Equity.

Details of shares lying in the suspense account (pursuant to Clause 5A of the Listing Agreement)

Sr. Particulars Details
No. No. of No. of
Shareholders Shares
1. Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 112 8,970
suspense account lying at the beginning of the year
2. Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares 1 80
from the suspense account during the year
3. Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense 1 80
account during the year
4. Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the 111 8,890
suspense account lying at the end of the year

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.
Plant locations — Not Applicable

Address for correspondence: For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of shares and
debentures, dematerialisation of shares, change of address, non receipt of Annual Report, dividend warrant and any other query
relating to the shares and debentures of the Company, the investors may please write to the following address:

Link Intime India Private Limited

Unit: Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

LBS Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai — 400078, India
Tel: +91 22 2594 6970 Fax: +91 22 2594 6969
e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

The Company Secretary

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road,

Kalina, Mumbai — 400 098, India.

Tel: +91 22 4009 4400

Fax: +91 22 4019 4890

E-mail: efsl.shareholders@edelweissfin.com

For queries relating to the financial statements and investor information, other than those relating to shares/dividend, please
write to:

Mr. Shailendra Maru

Associate Director - Investor Relations

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai — 400 098, India. Tel: +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4890

E-mail: ir@edelweissfin.com
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Declaration by the CEO under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement regarding adherence to the Edelweiss Code of Conduct

In accordance with Clause 49 (I) (D) of the Listing Agreement, | hereby declare that for the financial year ended March 31, 2014
the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Edelweiss Code of Conduct
applicable to all the Directors and Senior Management.

For Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Rashesh Shah
Chairman, Managing Director & CEO
May 17, 2014

Certificate on Compliance of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

To the members of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
(“the Company”’), for the financial year ended on 31%t March, 2014, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered
into with the Stock Exchanges. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company, nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries

Manish L. Ghia
Partner
M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17" May, 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

The accompanying abridged consolidated financial statements, which comprise the abridged consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2014, the
abridged consolidated statement of profit & loss, and abridged consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively
referred to as ‘the Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2014. We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements in our report
dated 17 May 2014.

The abridged consolidated financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section
(3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) applied in the preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Reading the abridged consolidated financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Management’s Responsibility for the Abridged Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with Rule 7A of
the Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms, 1956 read with Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms
(Amendment) Rules, 2012 and are based on the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements, Accounting Standard 23 - Accounting for Investment in
Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard 27 — Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures, prescribed by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the abridged consolidated financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in
accordance with Standard on Auditing (SA) 810, “Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Opinion

In our opinion, the abridged consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with Rule 7A of the Companies (Central Government’s) General
Rules and Forms, 1956 read with Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms (Amendment) Rules, 2012 are derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and are a fair summary of those consolidated financial statements.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of certain subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of
% 59,143 million as at 31 March 2014; total revenues of X 5,804 million and net cash inflow of ¥ 1,542 million for the year then ended. These financial
statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and in our opinion, in so far
as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of certain associates which have been audited by other auditors and whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it relates to share of profit of ¥ 81 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to the
amounts included in respect of these associates is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

The actuarial valuation of insurance liabilities is the responsibility of the Group’s life insurance subsidiary’s appointed actuary (‘the Appointed Actuary’).
The actuarial valuation of these liabilities as at 31 March 2014 has been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary. The Appointed Actuary has certified
to the life insurance subsidiary that in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (‘IRDA’) and the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with IRDA. The statutory auditors of
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited have relied upon Appointed Actuary’s certificate in this regard.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh
Mumbai Partner
17 May 2014 Membership Number: 042554
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries and
associates (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated statement
of profit and loss and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014;
(ii)  inthe case of the consolidated statement of profit and loss, of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that date; and
(iii)  in the case of consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of certain subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets of
3 59,143 million as at 31 March 2014; total revenues of X 5,804 million and net cash inflow of ¥ 1,542 million for the year then ended. These financial
statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and in our opinion, in so far
as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of certain associates which have been audited by other auditors and whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it relates to share of profit of ¥ 81 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to the
amounts included in respect of these associates is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

The actuarial valuation of insurance liabilities is the responsibility of the Group’s life insurance subsidiary’s appointed actuary (‘the Appointed Actuary’).
The actuarial valuation of these liabilities as at 31 March 2014 has been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary. The Appointed Actuary has certified
to the life insurance subsidiary that in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (‘IRDA’) and the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with IRDA. The statutory auditors of
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited have relied upon Appointed Actuary’s certificate in this regard.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh
Mumbai Partner
17 May 2014 Membership Number: 042554
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Abridged Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

(Statement containing salient features of consolidated Balance Sheet as per section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital (refer note 2.14)
Equity 724.15 718.94
(b) Reserves and surplus
(i)  Capital reserves 3,682.39 2,359.53
(i)  Securities premuim account (refer note 2.14) 10,442.73 10,504.80
(i) ~ Statutory reserves 1,860.53 1,440.56
(iv) General reserves 749.23 559.46
(v)  Surplus in statement of profit and loss 9,834.22 8,969.97
27,293.25 24,553.26
2 Minority interest 3,656.99 2,333.10
3 Share application money pending allotment (refer note 2.4) 0.08 22.50
4 Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 35,503.48 19,800.83
(b) Other long-term liabilities 269.33 135.45
(c) Long-term provisions 1,401.94 722.18
37,174.75 20,658.46
5 Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 87,256.81 89,737.45
(b) Trade payables 8,722.85 10,230.31
(c)  Other current liabilities 14,827.12 14,186.25
(d)  Short-term provisions 1,363.65 570.21
112,170.43 114,724.22
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2+3+4+5) 180,295.50 162,291.54
1l ASSETS
6 Non- current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i)  Tangible assets (original cost less depreciation) 4,507.54 4,808.76
(i)  Intangible assets (original cost less depreciation/amortisation) 305.20 151.80
(iif) ~ Capital work-in-progress 504.13 17.16
(iv)  Intangible assets under development 27.04 4.35
(b)  Non-current investments 8,724.14 8,086.57
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 517.62 359.64
(d) Long-term loans and advances 39,570.70 27,163.50
(e) Other Non-Current assets 3,557.89 3,051.82
57,714.26 43,643.60
7 Current assets
(a)  Current investments 12,538.98 4,026.00
(b) Stock-in-trade 37,909.94 31,520.81
(c) Trade receivables 4,203.00 1,583.23
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 19,637.06 37,089.79
(e) Short-term loans and advances 43,151.12 39,566.12
(f)  Other current assets 5,141.14 4,861.99
122,581.24 118,647.94
TOTAL ASSETS (6+7) 180,295.50 162,291.54

See accompanying accounting policies and notes to the financial statements.
Compiled from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company referred to in our report dated 17 May 2014.

Complete Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, other statements and notes thereto prepared as per the requirements of Revised Schedule VI
to the Companies Act, 1956 are available at the Company's website - www.edelweissfin.com

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh
Partner

Membership No.: 042554

Mumbai

17 May 2014
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Himanshu Kaji Executive Director

Rujan Panjwani Executive Director

S Ranganathan Chief Financial Officer

B Renganathan EVP & Company Secretary
Mumbai
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Abridged Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2014

(Statement containing salient features of consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as per section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies
Act, 1956)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

1 Income

Revenue from operations

(a) Fee and commission income 3,556.28 3,193.71

(b) Income from treasury 2,865.02 2,456.36

(c) Interestincome 17,759.67 15,354.56

(d)  Premium from life insurance business 1,062.08 524.77

(e) Other operating revenue 219.05 243.35

Net Revenue from operations 25,462.10 21,772.75
Il Other income 93.22 67.49
Il Total income (I+1) 25,555.32 21,840.24
IV Expenditure

(a) Employee benefits expense 4,580.20 3,639.13

(b)  Finance costs 12,106.70 11,133.29

(c) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 524.10 514.26

(d) Change in life insurance policy liability 608.73 314.87

(e) Other expenses 4,220.60 3,645.44

Total expenditure 22,040.33 19,246.99
\Y Profit before tax (l11-1V) 3,514.99 2,593.25
VI  Tax expense

(a) Current tax 1,748.95 1,094.95

(b)  Minimum alternate tax (245.35) (117.82)

(c) Deferred tax (157.53) (95.62)
VIl Profit for the year 2,168.92 1,711.74
VIl Share of minority interest in profit for the year (33.54) (72.87)
IX  Profit for the year after minority interest 2,202.46 1,784.61
X Earnings per equity share: (refer note 2.3)

(a) Basic 2.86 2.35

(b)  Diluted 2.85 2.31

See accompanying accounting policies and notes to the financial statements.

Compiled from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company referred to in our report dated 17 May 2014.
As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh Rashesh Shah Chairman & Managing Director
Partner Venkat Ramaswamy Executive Director
Membership No.: 042554 Himanshu Kaji Executive Director

Rujan Panjwani Executive Director

S Ranganathan Chief Financial Officer

B Renganathan EVP & Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
17 May 2014 17 May 2014
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Abridged Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
| Cash flow generated from operating activities 5,562.22 2,740.03
1] Cash flow (used in)/generated from investing activities (10,204.87) 1,548.68
Il Cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 5,511.64 (30.80)
IV Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (I + Il + 1) 868.99 4,257.91
Vv Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,250.88 2,992.97
VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 2.15) 8,119.87 7,250.88

See accompanying accounting policies and notes to the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh
Partner
Membership No.: 042554

Mumbai
17 May 2014
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rashesh Shah Chairman & Managing Director
Venkat Ramaswamy Executive Director

Himanshu Kaji Executive Director

Rujan Panjwani Executive Director

S Ranganathan Chief Financial Officer

B Renganathan EVP & Company Secretary
Mumbai

17 May 2014



Notes to the abridged consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis
of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in millions.

1.2 Principles of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements relate to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries and associates
(together ‘the Group’). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

In respect of subsidiary enterprises, the financial statements have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after as far as possible eliminating intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial
Statements prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

In case of associate enterprises, the financial statements have been consolidated as per Accounting Standard 23 - Accounting for
Investment in Associates prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

Investments in subsidiaries where control is intended to be temporary or where the objective of control over the subsidiary is not
to obtain economic benefits there from, have not been consolidated.

Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the balance
sheet date. Revenue and expense are translated into Indian Rupees at the average exchange rate prevailing during the year and the
resulting net translation adjustment has been disclosed as foreign exchange translation reserve in Reserves and Surplus.

The excess of cost over the Company’s investments in the subsidiaries is recognised in the consolidated financial statements as
Goodwill. The excess of Company’s share in equity and reserves of the subsidiaries over the cost of acquisition is treated as Capital
Reserve.

The share of minority interest in the net profit of subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of the Group
to arrive at the net income attributable to the Group.

The share of minority interest in net assets of subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated financial statements
separate from liabilities and the equity of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

b) Investments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per Accounting Standard 13 - Accounting for Investments
prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

c) The subsidiaries and associates considered in the consolidated financial statements :

Sr. No. Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of
Incorporation ownership interest

as at 31 March 2014

Subsidiaries
1 Edelweiss Securities Limited India 100.00%
2 Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited ° India 100.00%
3 ECL Finance Limited India 92.20%
4 Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited India 100.00%
5 EC Global Limited ? Mauritius 100.00%
6 Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited India 100.00%
7 Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited India 100.00%
8 Edelweiss Web Services Limited 3 India 100.00%
9 Edelcap Securities Limited * India 100.00%
10 Edelweiss Asset Management Limited India 100.00%
11 ECap Equities Limited India 100.00%
12 Edelweiss Broking Limited India 100.00%
13 Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited India 100.00%
14 Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited India 100.00%
15 Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited ° India 100.00%
16 Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss India 100.00%
Investment Advisors Limited)

17 EC Commaodity Limited India 100.00%
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Sr. No. Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of
Incorporation ownership interest
as at 31 March 2014
18 Edel Commodities Limited ° India 100.00%
19 Edel Land Limited India 100.00%
20 Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited * India 100.00%
21 EC International Limited Mauritius 100.00%
22 Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore 100.00%
23 Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte. Limited © Singapore 100.00%
24 Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited © Singapore 100.00%
25 Aster Commodities DMCC? United Arab Emirates 100.00%
26 ECap International Limited ’ Mauritius 100.00%
27 EAAA LLC’ Mauritius 100.00%
28 EW Special Opportunities Advisors LLC & Mauritius 67.00%
29 EW India Special Assets Advisors LLC & Mauritius 90.00%
30 Edel Investments Limited India 100.00%
31 Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited India 74.00%
32 Edelweiss Investment Advisors Private Limited © Singapore 100.00%
33 Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited India 100.00%
34 Edelweiss Financial Advisors Limited 3 India 100.00%
35 Edelweiss Comtrade Limited * India 100.00%
36 Edel Finance Company Limited ° India 100.00%
37 Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited ® India 100.00%
38 EW SBI Crossover Advisors LLC ® Mauritius 60.00%
39 EFSL Commodities Limited *° India 100.00%
40 Edel Commodities Trading Limited *° India 100.00%
41 EFSL Comtrade Limited *° India 100.00%
42 Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 2 India 100.00%
(formerly known as Affluent Dealcom Private Limited)
43 Edelweiss Securities (Hong Kong) Private Limited * Hong Kong 100.00%
44 Edelweiss Metals Limited ° (formerly known as Edelweiss Metals Private  India 100.00%
Limited)
45 Edelweiss Financial Services Inc * United States of America 100.00%
46 Edelweiss Commodities Pte. Limited ** Singapore 100.00%
47 Edelweiss Commodities Nigeria Limited Nigeria 100.00%
Associates
48 Allium Finance Private Limited * India 46.13%
49 Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited ** India 49.91%
50 Edelweiss Fund Advisors Private Limited India 40.00%
51 Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited * (formerly known as Dahlia India 50.00%
Financial Services Private Limited)
52 Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited * (formerly known as India 50.00%
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited)
53 Arum Investments Private Limited * India 39.39%
54 Aeon Credit Services India Private Limited ** India 25.00%

*held through Edelweiss Securities Limited

2 held through Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
% held through Edelweiss Broking Limited

“held through ECap Equities Limited

® held through Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited
¢ held through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited
" held through EC International Limited

8 held through EAAA LLC

° held through Edelweiss Financial Advisors Limited

1 held through Edel Commodities Limited

1 held through Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

12 held through Edelcap Securities Limited

1 held through ECL Finance Limited

1 held through EFSL Comtrade Limited
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Principles of consolidation (Continued)

d)  Edelgive Foundation, a 100% subsidiary and a company registered under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956, with the sole objective
of philanthropy, where no economic benefit shall be derived by the Group, has not been consolidated.

e) With effect from 29 May 2013, Edelweiss Financial Services Inc became a subsidiary of the Company and has been consolidated from the
said date.

f) With effect from 1 July 2013, Edelweiss Metals Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Metals Private Limited) became a subsidiary of the
Company and has been consolidated from the said date.

g) With effect from 20 September 2013, Edelweiss Commodities Pte. Limited became a subsidiary of the Company and has been consolidated
from the said date.

h) With effect from 17 December 2013, Edelweiss Commodities Nigeria Limited became a subsidiary of the Company and has been
consolidated from the said date.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities
on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from the estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods.

Current/non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

b. It is held primary for the purpose of being traded;

c. It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d. Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a. It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle.

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms
of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, results in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

8)

h)

Fee income including investment banking, advisory fees, syndication fees, processing fees (other than on housing loans and loans against
property) and other fees is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Group
and the counterparty.

Brokerage income on securities and commodities broking business is recognised as per contracted rates at the execution of transactions
on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of related sub-brokerage expenses, service tax and stock exchange
expenses. Brokerage income on insurance broking business is recognised on an accrual basis at the inception of the insurance policy once
the policy is issued by the insurance company based on the terms agreed with the insurance companies and is exclusive of service tax.

Investment management fees are recognised net of service tax on an accrual basis in accordance with the Investment Management
Agreement with Edelweiss Mutual Fund (‘the mutual fund’) and comply with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds)
Regulations based on average Assets Under Management (‘AUM’) confirmed by the mutual fund.

Portfolio management fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with portfolio management agreement entered with
respective clients.

Revenue from fund management services (excluding mutual fund business) is recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the investment management agreement between the Group and the Fund for which the Group acts as a fund manager.

Revenue from rendering of trustee services is recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Compensation Agreement
between the trustee company and the fund. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of service tax.

In case of housing loans and loans against property, processing fees is amortised over a pre-determined tenor arrived on an industry
average or original contractual tenor, whichever is shorter. In the event of a loan being foreclosed or written off, the unamortised portion
of such processing fees is recognised as income at the time of such foreclosure or write-off. The unamortised balance is disclosed under
"Other current liabilities" and "Other long-term liabilities" based on amortisable tenor.

Income from treasury comprises of profit/loss on sale of securities and commodities and profit/loss on derivative instruments.

i) Profit/loss on sale of securities and commodities is determined based on the weighted average cost of the securities/commodities
sold.

i) Realised profit/loss on closed positions of derivative instruments is recognised on final settlement on squaring-up of the contracts.
Outstanding derivative contracts in the nature of forwards/futures/options are measured at fair value as at the balance sheet date.
Fair value is determined using quoted market prices in an actively traded market, for the instrument, wherever available, as the
best evidence of fair value. In the absence of quoted market prices in an actively traded market, a valuation technique is used to
determine the fair value. In most cases the valuation techniques use observable market data as input parameters in order to ensure
reliability of the fair value measure.

iii)  In respect of currency forward contracts entered with banks, the premium or discount arising at the inception of the contract is
amortised over the life of the contract in the statement of profit and loss. The difference in the opening and closing exchange rate
as on the Balance Sheet date rates (mark to market) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any profit or loss arising on
cancellation or renewal of such contracts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iv)  In respect of interest rate derivatives, realised profit/loss on maturity/termination of contract is recognised as ‘Profit on interest
rate derivatives’ in the statement of profit and loss and the realised profit/loss on settlement during contract period is recognised
as ‘Interest income on interest rate derivatives’ in statement of profit and loss.

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis. Interest income in case of lending business in the non-banking financial companies is
recognised on accrual basis except in case of non - performing assets, wherein it is accounted on realisation, as per Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) and National Housing Bank (NHB) guidelines. In case of commercial papers, deep discount bonds and certificate of deposits, the
difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value is apportioned on time basis and recognised as interest income.

Profit/loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss on sale of investments is determined based on the
weighted average cost of the investments sold.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

As per RBI guidelines the interest spread under par structure of securitization/direct assignment of loan receivables is recognized on
realization over the tenure of securitized/direct assigned loan.

Unrealised gain on securitisation comprises of future interest receivable under par structure of securitisation/assignment.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Securitisation deferred consideration receivable comprises of Company’s share of future interest strip receivables in case of a par structure
securitised/assigned deals.

m)  Profit/loss on error trades in broking business is included in “Income from treasury”.

n) Profit/loss from share in partnership firm is accounted for once the amount of the share of profit/loss is ascertained and credited/debited
to the company’s account in the books of the partnership firm.

o) In case of Life Insurance business:

i) Premium income from traditional policies is recognised when due from policyholders, if there is no uncertainty of collectability.
For Unit linked business, premium income is recognised as when the associated units are created.
Premium income on lapsed policies is recognised as and when such policies are reinstated.
Income from Unit linked policies, which include asset management fees and other charges, if any, is recovered from the linked funds
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the policies and is recognised as and when due.

i) Reinsurance premium ceded is accounted in accordance with the treaty or in principle arrangement with the reinsurer.

iii)  Acquisition costs such as commission, policy issue expenses etc. are costs that vary with and are primarily relatable to the acquisition
of new and renewal insurance contracts. Such costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred.
iv)  For claim and benefit paid, claim costs consist of the policy benefit amount and claim settlement costs, where applicable.
Death, rider and surrender claims are accounted for on receipt of intimation.
Maturity and survival claims are accounted when due.
Surrenders/withdrawals under unit linked policies are accounted when the associated units are cancelled/redeemed.

Surrenders under traditional policies are accounted on the receipt of consent from the insured to the quote provided by the
company.

Reinsurance claims receivable are accounted for in the same period as the related claim.

v) The policyholders’ liabilities are determined by the Company’s Appointed Actuary in accordance with the accepted actuarial
practices, requirements of the Insurance Act, 1938 and Actuarial standard issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India.

Loan origination costs

In case of housing loans and loans against property, origination costs directly attributable to disbursed loans are amortised over a pre-
determined tenor arrived on an industry average or original contractual tenor, whichever is shorter. Where the loan is foreclosed or written
off, the unamortised portion of such loan origination costs is recognised as a charge in the statement of profit and loss at the time of such
foreclosure or write-off. The unamortized balance is disclosed as part of "Long-term Loans and advances" and "Short-term loans and advances"
based on amortizable tenor.

Benchmark linked debentures

The Group has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of specified indices/commodities over
the period of the debentures. Such debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at year end. The resultant
‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The debt
component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Securitisation

The Company enters into securitization transactions and assets are derecognized upon sale only if the Company surrenders control over the
contractual rights that comprise in the financial assets.

In case of ECL Finance, the Company adopted the accounting policy for securitization transactions, as notified by RBI in its circular “Revisions to
the Guidelines on Securitisation Transactions” issued on 21 August 2012.

In case of Edelweiss Housing Finance, the Company adopted the accounting policy for securitization transactions based on the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Securitisation issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date of disposal.

Depreciation is charged at the rates prescribed in the Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 as given below:

Class of asset Rate of depreciation
Flat and building 5.00%
Furniture and fixtures 18.10%
Office equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%
Vehicles 25.89%
Vessel 20.00%

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the period of lease whichever is
shorter.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangibles such as software is amortised over a period of 3 years or its estimated useful life whichever is shorter.

Jewellery Designing are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years or its estimated useful life whichever is shorter.

All fixed assets, tangible and intangible, individually costing less than X 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of installation.
Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors.
If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical
cost.

Stock-in-trade

a) The securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading positions are considered as stock-in-trade and disclosed as
current assets.

b)  The securities, including from error trades, held as stock-in-trade are valued at lower of weighted average cost or market value.
c) In case of units of mutual funds held as stock-in-trade, net asset value is considered as fair value.
d) Inventories in the form of commodities are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

e) Debt instruments are valued at cost or fair value whichever is lower. In case of debt instruments for which direct quotes are not available,
they are valued at the lowest of the quotes as on valuation date as provided by market intermediaries.

f) Commercial papers, certificate of deposits and treasury bills are valued at carrying cost.
g) Inventory in the form of land is valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

h) Purchase and sale of bullion is recorded at the price which is fixed between the buyer and the seller at the future date including the
contracts where the price is fixed subsequent to the balance sheet date. In case of unfixed purchase/sale contracts as at the reporting
date, the price is recorded at the forward rate for the residual maturity period of the contract.

Investments
a) Investments of Life Insurance Business

In case of Life Insurance business, investments are made in accordance with the Insurance Act,1938, the IRDA (Investment) Regulations,
2000, and various other circulars/notifications/amendments issued by the IRDA in this context from time to time.
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1.12 Investments (Continued)

b)

Investments are recorded on trade date at cost, which includes brokerage and related taxes, if any and excludes pre-acquisition interest,
if any.

Any impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the revenue/statement of profit and loss to the extent of the difference between the
re-measured fair value of the security/investment and its acquisition cost as reduced by any previous impairment loss recognized as an
expense in the revenue/statement of profit and loss. Any reversal of impairment loss, earlier recognized in revenue/statement of profit
and loss, is recognized in the revenue/statement of profit and loss.

Broken period interest paid/received is debited/credited to interest receivable account and is not included in the cost of purchase/sale
Value.

Debt securities
i) Non linked, non unit reserve investments and shareholders’ investments

Debt securities are considered as “held to maturity”. Debt securities are stated at amortised cost. Discount or premium on purchase
of debt securities is amortised over the remaining period to maturity on straight line basis and is recognised in the revenue account
or the profit and loss account, as applicable.

ii) Linked business

All debt securities, including government securities under linked businesses are valued at market value, using CRISIL Bond Valuer/
CRISIL Gilt Prices, as applicable. The discount or premium on money market instruments which is the difference between the
purchase price and the redemption amount is amortized and recognized in the revenue account on a straight line basis over the
remaining period to maturity of these securities. Unrealised gains or losses arising on such valuation are recognised in the revenue
account.

Equity Shares
i) Non linked, non unit reserve investments and shareholders’ investments

Listed equity shares are stated at fair value, being the last quoted closing prices on National Stock Exchange (in case it is not traded
on National Stock Exchange then last quoted closing price on the Bombay Stock Exchange is used) as at the balance sheet date.
Unrealised gains/losses arising due to change in fair value are recognised under the head ‘Fair Value Change Account’ in the balance
sheet.

Unlisted equity shares and other than actively traded equity shares are stated at historical cost subject to provision for diminution,
if any, in the value of such investment determined separately for each individual investment.

ii) Linked business

Listed equity shares are valued and stated at fair value, being the last quoted closing prices on National Stock Exchange (in case it is
not traded on National Stock Exchange then last quoted closing price on the Bombay Stock Exchange is used) as at the balance sheet
date. Unrealised gains or losses arising on such valuation are recognised in the revenue account.

Unlisted equity shares and other than actively traded equity shares are stated at historical cost subject to provision for diminution,
if any, in the value of such Investment determined separately for each individual investment.

Mutual Funds
i) Non linked, non unit reserve investments and shareholders’ investments

Mutual Fund units as at balance sheet date are valued at previous day’s net asset values. Unrealised gains/losses arising due to
changes in the fair value of mutual fund units are recognized under the head ‘Fair Value Change Account’ in the balance sheet.

ii) Linked business

Mutual Fund units are valued at previous day’s net asset values and unrealised gains/losses arising due to changes in the fair value
of mutual fund units are recognised in revenue account.

Investments other than Life Insurance Business

Investments are classified into long-term investments and current investments. Investments which are intended to be held for one year
or more are classified as non-current investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are classified as
current investments.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Long-term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined separately for each
investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each
investment. In case of investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is considered as the fair
value.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences, if any arising
out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on
that date. The exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and related assets and liabilities are accordingly
restated in the balance sheet.

Employee benefits

The accounting policy followed by the Group in respect of its employee benefit schemes in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised
2005), is set out below:

Provident fund

The Group contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual
basis and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. Such benefit is discounted
to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are
based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance company approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA).

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which they arise.

Compensated absences and leave encashment

The eligible employees of certain companies of the Group are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave entitlement to
subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Group recognises the charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account
of such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.

Certain companies of the Group provide for the encashment of leave subject to rules. The liability is provided based on the number of days of
unutilised leave at each balance sheet date based on a valuation by an independent actuary.

Tax

Tax expense comprises income tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax
charge or benefit (reflecting the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Income tax

Provision for current tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after adjusting for allowances, disallowances and exemptions
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and minimum alternate tax.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax

The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty
that the asset can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred
tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet
date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonable/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) Credit

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be realized in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

Operating leases

Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Earnings per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share prescribed by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or
converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at year end.

Provisions and contingencies

The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow
of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain
that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Provisioning on receivables from financing business

Provision for non-performing assets is based on the management’s assessment of the degree of impairment of the loan asset and the level of
provisioning required as per the prudential norms prescribed by RBI and NHB.

Provision for standard assets is made on the basis of prudential norms laid down by RBI and NHB.
Mutual Fund expenses

Expenses incurred on behalf of schemes of the mutual fund are recognised to the statement of profit and loss unless considered recoverable
from schemes of the fund in accordance with provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations.

Employee stock option plans (ESOPs)

The Group follows the intrinsic value method to account for compensation cost of the stock based employee compensation plans of the
Company. The compensation cost is amortised on a straight-line basis.

Presentation of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts are presented in the Balance Sheet where the Company has a legal right to set off
the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Such legal rights
are by virtue of a binding legal contract or by an irrevocable undertaking executed by the Company. The aforesaid policy is generally applied
to offset receivables from and payables to same counterparties; to offset fixed deposits specifically pledged with banks against the borrowings
availed from them; to offset receivables against payables in the case of the same broking clients in multiple segments and other such similar
qualifying arrangements.
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2.1 Segment reporting (refer note 2.30 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group’s business is organised and management reviews the performance based on the business segments as mentioned below:

Segment Activities covered

Agency business Broking, advisory, product distribution and other fee based services
Capital based business Income from treasury, investment income and financing

Life Insurance Represents results of Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual
segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis.

Based on such allocations, segmental balance sheet as at 31 March 2014 and segmental profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March
2014 have been prepared.

Since the business operations of the Group are primarily concentrated in India, the Group is considered to operate only in the domestic segment.
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2.2 Related parties (refer note 2.31 of the consolidated financial statements)

(A) Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise that gives them control or
significant influence over the enterprise

Rashesh Shah
Venkat Ramaswamy
Vidya Shah
Aparna T.C.
(B) Relatives of individuals exercising significant influence
Kaavya Venkat
Shilpa Mody
AV Ramaswamy
Sejal Premal Parekh (With effect from 9 July 2012)
Meena Subramanian (With effect from 30 January 2013, upto 29 May 2013)
Sneha Sripad Desai (With effect from 30 January 2013)
(C) Enterprises where significant influence is exercised, with whom transactions have taken place
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Fund Advisors Private Limited
Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited (formerly known as Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited)
Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited (formerly known as Magnolia Financial Services Limited)
Arum Investments Private Limited
Allium Finance Private Limited
Aeon Credit Service India Private Limited
(D) Subsidiary Companies
Edelgive Foundation
(E) Enterprises which exercise significant influence over subsidiary, with whom transactions have taken place
Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co. Limited (Subsidiary of Tokio Marine Holdings Inc.)
(F)  Enterprises which exercise significant influence over group, with whom transactions have taken place
Oak Holdings Private Limited
Spire Investment Advisors LLP
(G) Key Management Personnel
Himanshu Kaji

Rujan Panjwani (with effect from 24 June 2013)
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2.2 Related parties (refer note 2.31 of the consolidated financial statements) (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties :

Particulars Individual| Relatives| Enterprises| Subsidiary| Enterprises| Enterprises Key
exercising of| in which/|Companies which which| Management
significant| individuals where exercise exercise| Personnel and

control| exercising| significant significant| significant relatives of
significant|influence is influence| influence KMP
influence| excercised over| over group
subsidiary

Capital account transactions

Investment in Equity shares

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 124.77
(277.93)
Aeon Credit Service India Private Limited -
(102.50)

Investment in Preference shares
Allium Finance Private Limited -
(105.85)

Equity share capital issued by subsidiary (including

securities premium)

Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co. 1,939.70
Limited (-)
Disinvestment in Equity shares
Allium Finance Private Limited -
(0.79)
Share Application Money received by subsidiary
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited -
(124.77)
Debentures subscribed by
Arum Investments Private Limited 275.00
(308.71)
Loans given to
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 4,582.95
(773.65)
Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited 1,174.35
(143.88)
Others 188.97
(378.62)
Loans repaid by
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 3,830.33
(827.15)
Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited 1,126.91
(68.99)
Edelweiss Metals Limited 165.30
(259.16)
ICD given to
Arum Investments Private Limited 1,500.00
()
ICD repaid by
Arum Investments Private Limited 1,500.00
()
Reimbursement paid
Edelgive Foundation -
(0.01)
Reimbursement recovered
Arum Investments Private Limited 36.79
(17.57)
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2.2 Related parties (refer note 2.31 of the consolidated financial statements) (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued) :

Particulars Individual| Relatives| Enterprises| Subsidiary| Enterprises| Enterprises Key
exercising of| in which/|Companies which which| Management
significant| individuals where exercise exercise| Personnel and

control| exercising| significant significant| significant relatives of
significant|influence is influence| influence KMP
influence| excercised over| over group
subsidiary
Allium Finance Private Limited 9.20
(5.28)
Others 10.51 0.08 0.01
(19.69) (-) (0.02)
Dividend paid
Rashesh Shah 87.30
(116.88)
Venkat Ramaswamy 34.47
(45.07)
Spire Investment Advisors LLP 27.27
(32.94)
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust 24.44
(31.96)
Others 26.88 9.80 6.61
(35.16) (12.51) (-)
Advisory Fee received
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 7.34
(2.14)
Others 0.00*
()
Rental Income
Arum Investments Private Limited 5.73
(5.81)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 3.90
()
Allium Finance Private Limited 0.78
()
Interest income
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 24.41
(23.27)
Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited 12.02
(8.53)
Magnolia Commaodities Services Private Limited 12.21
(6.17)
Others 0.01
(18.24)
Interest income on debentures
Arum Investments Private Limited 89.80
()
Interest income on ICD
Arum Investments Private Limited 5.53
()
Amount paid/debits with broker
Vidya Shah 1,340.19
(144.31)
AparnaT. C. 296.72
(43.09)
Others 127.65 22.39 - 0.39
(110.24) (2.21) (0.01) ()
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2.2 Related parties (refer note 2.31 of the consolidated financial statements) (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued) :

Particulars Individual| Relatives| Enterprises| Subsidiary| Enterprises| Enterprises Key
exercising of| in which/|Companies which which| Management
significant| individuals where exercise exercise| Personnel and

control| exercising| significant significant| significant relatives of
significant|influence is influence| influence KMP
influence| excercised over| over group
subsidiary
Amount received/credits with broker
Vidya Shah 1,338.01
(144.57)
Aparna T. C. 297.37
(43.09)
Others 128.69 82.69 - 0.39
(110.24) (2.21) (0.00)* (96.17)
Purchase of Commodities
Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited 132.06
()
Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited 132.36

()

Sale of Commodities

Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited 77.14
(54.68)
Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited 77.15
(54.98)

Loss on forward contracts (net)
Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited -

(22.59)
Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited 49.51
(22.56)
Brokerage earned
Vidya Shah 1.14
(0.59)
Aparna T. C. 0.75
(0.21)
Others 0.01 0.01 - 0.00*
(0.07) (0.00)* (0.00)* (0.06)
Remuneration
Rashesh Shah 60.47
(21.27)
Venkat Ramaswamy 18.30
(14.75)
Himanshu Kaji 27.83
(20.29)
Rujan Panjwani 20.90
()
Donations given
Edelgive Foundation 18.50
(31.40)
Cost reimbursements recovered
Arum Investments Private Limited 42.97
(0.31)
Others 2.10
(1.92)
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2.2 Related parties (refer note 2.31 of the consolidated financial statements) (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued) :

()

Particulars Individual| Relatives| Enterprises| Subsidiary| Enterprises| Enterprises Key
exercising of| in which/|Companies which which| Management
significant| individuals where exercise exercise| Personnel and

control| exercising| significant significant| significant relatives of
significant|influence is influence| influence KMP
influence| excercised over| over group
subsidiary
Balances with related parties
Investments
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 529.75
(402.71)
Arum Investments Private Limited 1,072.44
(797.44)
Others 250.06 0.10
(250.11) (0.10)
Advances
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 850.00
(105.58)
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust 1,323.85
(1,348.35)
Others 331.50
(403.09)
Trade Receivables
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 1.73
()
Others 0.00*
(68.41)
Accrued interest on loans given
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 6.25
()
Others 0.93
(1.19)
Accrued interest on debt instruments
Arum investments Private Limited 49.04
(2.94)
Bonus payable
Rashesh Shah 37.50
(13.30)
Venkat Ramaswamy 10.00
(6.80)
Himanshu Kaji 20.00
(12.80)
Rujan Panjwani 15.00
(-)
Trade Payables
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.99
(0.21)
Arum Investments Private Limited -
(0.00)*
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited 49.51

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers
* Amount is less than % 0.01 million
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23

2.4

2.5

2.6

Earnings per share (refer note 2.32 of the consolidated financial statements)

In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the computation
of earnings per share is set out below:

2014 2013
a) Shareholders earnings (as per statement of profit and loss) 2,202.46 1,784.61
b) Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of X 1 each:
— Number of shares at the beginning of the year 763,842,280 756,799,280
— Number of shares issued during the year 5,203,050 7,043,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 769,045,330 763,842,280
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 767,977,731 760,388,845
(based on the date of issue of shares)
) Number of dilutive potential equity shares 3,911,331 13,015,804
d) Basic earnings per share (in %) {a/b} 2.86 2.35
e) Diluted earnings per share (in ) {a/(b+c)} 2.85 2.31

Share Application money pending allotment (refer note 2.38 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Company has received ¥ 0.08 million (Previous year: ¥ 22.50 million) towards share application on exercise of ESOPs which will result in an
issue of 10,500 shares (Previous year: 2,929,800 shares). Of the total receipts, ¥ 0.07 million (Previous year: ¥ 19.57 million) has been received
towards share premium. These shares have since been allotted.

Capital commitment (refer note 2.39 of the consolidated financial statements)

Uncalled liabilities on non-current investments ¥ 1,623.75 million as at balance sheet date (Previous year: ¥ 1,882.23 million).

Undrawn committed credit lines ¥ 3,012.94 million as at balance sheet date (Previous year:¥ 1,767.52 million).

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for ¥ 198.19 million (Previous year X 25.03 million).

Contingent liability (refer note 2.40 of the consolidated financial statements)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL)

a.

b.

Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 115.15 million (Previous year: ¥ 52.61 million).

EFSL has issued corporate guarantees to the extent of ¥ 41,366.38 million (Previous year: ¥ 38,268.76 million), in favour of banks
to secure the credit facilities sanctioned by these banks to Edelweiss Securities Limited, Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited,
ECL Finance Limited, Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited, Aster Commodities DMCC, EC Global Limited and Edelweiss International
Singapore Pte Limited (subsidiary companies) and ¥ 14,757.20 million (Previous year: ¥ 13,735.90 million) in favour of IDBI
Trusteeship Services Limited for non-convertible debentures issued by ECL Finance Limited and Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
(subsidiary companies) and ¥ 470.70 million (Previous year: X Nil) in favour of Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited for the
Preference shares issued by it against due discharge of debt.

Edelweiss Securities Limited (ESL)

a.

b.

ESL has provided bank guarantees aggregating to ¥ 3,000 million (Previous year: ¥ 6,950 million) as on 31 March 2014 to The
National Stock Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements. ESL has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating
¥ 1,500 million (Previous year: X 3,475 million) for obtaining the above bank guarantees.

ESL has provided bank guarantees aggregating to ¥ 100 million (Previous year: ¥ 400 million) as on 31 March 2014 to The Bombay
Stock Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements. ESL has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating I 50
million (Previous year: X 200 million) for obtaining the above bank guarantees.

Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 459.93 million (Previous year: ¥ 95.53 million).

Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited (ECSL)

a.

b.

Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 208.27 million (Previous year: ¥ 4.63 million).

ECSL has provided stand-by letter of credit aggregating to T Nil (Previous year: X 250 million) as on 31 March 2014 to The Bank of
Nova Scotia for meeting margin requirements for buying bullion. ECSL has pledged fixed deposit with banks amounting to ¥ Nil
(Previous year: X 62.50 million) for obtaining the above stand-by letter of credit.
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2.6 Contingent liability (refer note 2.40 of the consolidated financial statements) (Continued)

vi.

vii.

viii.

ECSL has provided bank guarantee aggregating to ¥ 500 million (Previous year: ¥ 400 million) as on 31 March 2014 to The Multi
Commodity Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements. ECSL has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to
¥ 250 million (Previous year: ¥ 200 million) for obtaining the above bank guarantee.

Corporate Guarantee has been given by ECSL to bank for ¥ 2,350 million (Previous year: X 1,650 million) for availing Fund based
Banking facilities by its subsidiary company Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited.

ECSL has provided bank guarantee aggregating to ¥ 0.20 million (Previous year: % Nil) as on 31 March 2014 to VAT authorities for
meeting statutory requirements. ECSL has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to ¥ 0.20 million (Previous year: ¥ Nil) for
obtaining the above bank guarantee.

ECSL has provided bank guarantee aggregating to X 49.90 million (Previous year: ¥ Nil ) as on 31 March 2014 to Custom authorities
for meeting statutory requirements. ECSL has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to X 49.90 million (Previous year: % Nil) for
obtaining the above bank guarantee.

ECSL has provided bank guarantee aggregating to % 3.71 million (Previous year: % Nil ) as on 31 March 2014 to Reliance Infra Ltd. ECSL
has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to ¥ 3.71 million (Previous year: ¥ Nil) for obtaining the above bank guarantee.

ECL Finance Limited (ECLF)

a. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 0.54 million (Previous year: ¥ 0.54 million).
b. Litigation pending against ECLF amounting to ¥ 10.76 million (Previous year: ¥ 0.51 million).
Edelweiss Broking Limited (EBL)

a. EBL has provided Corporate guarantee X Nil (Previous year: ¥ 500 million) to banks on behalf of ESL.
b. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending X 7.67 million (Previous year: ¥ 0.26 million).
[ Claims not acknowledged as debt ¥ 11.11 million (Previous year: ¥ 0.65 million).

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited (Edel Com)

a. Edel Com has provided bank guarantees aggregating to ¥ Nil (Previous year: ¥ 50 million) to The Multi Commodity Exchange of India
Limited for meeting margin requirements. Edel Com has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating to ¥ Nil (Previous year: ¥ 25
million) for obtaining the above bank guarantees.

b. Claims not acknowledged as debt ¥ 2.86 million (Previous year: % 0.19 million).

c. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending X 3.55 million (Previous year: % 8.16 million).

Edelweiss Financial Advisors Limited (EFAL)

a. Corporate guarantee % Nil (Previous year: X 50 million) given to banks on behalf of Edelweiss Comtrade Limited.
b. Claims not acknowledged as debts ¥ 11.08 million (Previous year: ¥ 17.58 million).

[ Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 112.76 (Previous year: X 113.77 million).

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

a. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 19.70 million (Previous year: ¥ 19.69 million).

Edel Finance Company Limited

a. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending X 0.03 million (Previous year: ¥ 0.03 million).

2.7 Provision on standard assets (refer note 2.41 of the consolidated financial statements)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out on paragraph 1.19 of significant accounting policies, provision for standard assets created in the
books as at 31 March 2014, is ¥ 215.51 million (Previous year: ¥ 168.30 million).
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2.8 Movement of NPAs (refer note 2.42 of the consolidated financial statements)

2.9

2.10

With regard to the financing business of the Group in subsidiaries regulated by RBI and NHB, the following table sets forth, for the periods
indicated, the details of movement of Gross Non-Performing Assets (NPAs), net NPAs and provisions:

(% in millions)

Particulars 2014 2013
i) Gross NPAs
a) Opening Balance 284.78 226.18
b)  Additions during the year 602.58 138.23
c) Reductions during the year * 68.07 79.63
d) Closing balance 819.29 284.78
i) Net NPAs
a) Opening Balance 74.55 68.19
b)  Additions during the year 196.28 50.34
c) Reductions during the year* 56.60 43.99
d) Closing balance 214.23 74.55
iii)  Provisions for NPAs
(excluding provision on standard assets)
a) Opening Balance 210.23 157.99
b)  Additions during the year 406.31 87.88
c) Reductions during the year * 11.47 35.64
d) Closing balance 605.07 210.23
* Includes NPA written off during the year amounting to ¥ Nil (Previous year: ¥ 30.54 million).
Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) (refer note 2.43 of the consolidated financial statements)
The CRAR for the key NBFC of the Group namely ECL Finance Limited is as follows:
Items 2014 2013
i CRAR (%) 16.06% 18.40%
ii. CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 15.56% 18.17%
ii.  CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 0.50% 0.23%

Details of Single Borrower Limit and Group Borrower Limit by the NBFCs’ within the Group (refer note 2.44 of the consolidated financial

statements)

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, all the NBFCs credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were within

their respective limits prescribed by RBI.

Policy Liabilities — Insurance Business (refer note 2.48 of the consolidated financial statements)

(Forming part of the Policyholders’ Funds)

(% in millions)

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Par Non Par | Unit Linked Total Par Non Par | Unit Linked Total
At start of the year 90.67 136.66 145.12 372.46 1.81 30.96 24.82 57.59
Add: Change in valuation against 212.45 238.48 129.83 580.76 83.09 105.70 120.30 309.09
policies in force (Mathematical
reserves excluding cost of bonus)
Add: Bonus to policyholders 27.98 - - 27.98 5.78 - - 5.78
At end of the year 331.10 375.14 274.95 981.20 90.67 136.66 145.12 372.46
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2.12 Long-term bank borrowings secured by charge on loans receivable (refer note 2.49 of the consolidated financial statements)

Following is the repayment terms of term loans:

Term Loans from Banks — Secured

(Z In millions)

Maturities 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years TOTAL
Rate of interest
10.00-10.99% 1,926.00 803.00 - 2,729.00
11.00-11.99% 8,214.00 4,116.00 1,657.00 13,987.00
12.00-13.00% - 250.00 - 250.00
Debentures — Secured (% In millions)
Maturities 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years TOTAL
Rate of interest
8.00-8.99% 1,579.06 - - 1,579.06
11.00-11.99% 5,351.16 - - 5,351.16
12.00-12.99% 300.00 1,425.85 - 1,725.85
Various (benchmark linked) 13,394.47 - - 13,394.47
20,624.69 1,425.85 - 22,050.54

2.13

2.14

Certain companies in the Group have received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning
exempt income under section 14A of Income Tax Act, 1961, read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Group has filed appeals and
is defending its position. Due to the lack of clarity on the legal position relating to the application of Rule 8D, the outcome and quantification of
the eventual tax liability on the Group, if any, at this stage cannot be estimated. The Group has been advised by its tax counsel that it has a good
chance in sustaining its position. (refer note 2.50 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Company has provided loans to its employees’ welfare trusts aggregating to T 1608.15 million as at 31 March 2014. The trusts have utilised
this fund in the acquisition of shares of the Company with the objective of utilising the same to allocate shares to employees on exercise of
employee stock options and for other employee welfare activities. The Company has, in accordance with the Expert Advisory Committee of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India's published opinion in March 2014, presented the investment in shares of the Company underlying
the loan as a deduction from share capital and securities premium Account. Previous year's figures have also been regrouped to conform to the

above presentation. (refer note 2.51 of the consolidated financial statements)

2.15 Details of Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer note 2.52 of the consolidated financial statements) (% in millions)
Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013
Cash in hand 24.17 12.11
Cheques in hand 84.30 85.41
Balances with banks 5,548.67 6,233.36
Short-term deposits with bank 2,462.73 920.00
Total 8,119.87 7,250.88

2.16 Details of quoted investments (refer note 2.53 of the consolidated financial statements)

(X in millions)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2014

As at 31 March 2013

Book value of quoted current investments
Market value of quoted current investments
Book value of quoted non-current investments
Market value of quoted non-current investments

11,406.10
11,445.26
2,485.85
2,495.82

3,410.92
3,520.90
2,078.71
2,048.52

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N Sampath Ganesh
Partner
Membership No.: 042554

Mumbai
17 May 2014

106 Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements

Rashesh Shah
Venkat Ramaswamy
Himanshu Kaji
Rujan Panjwani

S Ranganathan
B Renganathan

Mumbai
17 May 2014

Chairman & Managing Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer
EVP & Company Secretary



- - - - - - - - - - €5°€8T - puapilp pasodoud
(zo'8g) (95°6L¥'T) | (98'1) 1SvL LLSTT €0'T SLv8T (55°09) '€ SY'009‘T | 0S°0Th 8€6TY uonexe} Jaye (sso1)/1yold
(auswapInua 1pasd 1YIN
pue xe] pat4ayaq Suipnjoul)
(sz°0) 9t's [44l0] 68'V€ L0'S LY'0 80°9€ L8V SO'LT 81°689 SL°06T ¥6°L0T uoLexe) J0j UOISIAOI
(Lz'8¢€) (0T'vLY'T) | (¥9°D) 0’601 ¥8'0€¢C 0S'T €8°02¢ (89°59) 15°0S €9°682°C | ST'TT9 TE'LTS uonexe) 210jaq (ss017)/14oid
89'88 (v LTET) | 87 ¥Y9 86°LET 0STET'T |€LT ¥0°06€ 9'1S v8EVT 9/°TTT'8 | 6£°006'C | OVLI8'E Janouuny |ejoL
(se1uedwo) Aseipisqng
6L°9€T LL°609°0T |9T'OV9'T | 99°T¥C ¥56T - vL€E - - 8T'vv0'S | 66'€TL'T | T8409'T Ul UBY} J3Y10) SIUBWISIAU
98'TY 6S°TCSOT |ST099'T | TOTE v6'vvy'6 | 050 0€'0T€E 79'STC 60'G€E 05'889C9 | TC'06L°6T |OT'OV8‘ET Asepisqns aya jo saujiqer eloL
L8°0VL 75°02SCT | 61794 | LT'T29 LY'6YT'TT | 00°0T 18825 0€'L1T 09°€ST S0'0/LT'8L | 6EL8E'€T | 9€'8578T AJeipisgns ay3 Jo s3assy |ejoL
10°61¢C €9'GET TTYE0T | ST'88S ¥1'999'T |66'8 15°80C (65°0¥T) 99°TTT TL'689°CT |€8'95T€ | EVESTY AJeIpisqns 3y} jo sanJasay
- 6T°798'T |168T - 00°9€ - - - - - 08'€T€E 09'C |ende) aleys aduasajald dn-pied
0005t 0Tt 18'8Y 00°€ or'e 0S°0 00°0T YAarad S69 S8'T68'T | SS'9C ¥1°29¢ |ende) aseys Aunb3 dn-pied
paywi payuir paywi payuir paywi
ucwEwum:mS_ paywn paywi] SIIINIDS ucwEmmm:ms_ paywi] si9)o.g9 SJUBWISaAU| paywn
1985y pal Sunjoig $a11INIAg a9jsnu) Y3|ea\ [BGO|D |SIIAIBS B | @Iueinsu| paywn 3 ueuly $3131IN23S
ssiam(ap3 [eqo|9 53 SsIam|ap3 deajap3 1aMm| 13M[3p3 19M|ap3 1aM[3p3 aoueuli 103 |sslemjap3 sslam|ap3 Auedwo) Aseipisqng ays jo auieN

(suoljiw ur seadnu uelpuj : Aduaiin))

956T ‘Y saluedwo) ay3 Jo ZTZ uondas o3 Juensind sajuedwo) Aseipisgng Jo uorjewsolu] jedueuld jo Atewwng

107

Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements



puapialp pasodoid

6 (zavy) (t8°¢) (ve'8) (sz2) (19°22) £V'8Y WLy (€g5°az) (evozt) 670 uonexey Jaye (sso1)/14old
(auawapyua
1UP3ID |V pue xe| padiajed
800 - - (¥1°0) - (T6°L8) £V'TT €9'ST 12€6 (£1°0) 020 Suipn|aul) uoyexey 4oy UOISIAOIG
6v'6 (zs'vy) (18°€) (8v°8) (sz2) (zg'stT) | 98°0L SO'EL 89°LT (6s°02T) | 690 uonexe} 21043q (ss07)/140.d
1068 0597 - 6L°6T 8T'S LL'YV6 LEETT EVEIT'T | 9T'€SE ¥6'60S'T | ¥0T Janouun] |ejoL
(seuedwo)
- - - SL'6CS - - 0s'L - - 69°C 18T AJelpisqns ul uey Jay1o) SUBWISIAU|
£v'T 12°09T YO'TEE SS°L0T 18'L6 00v69'T | LT'€0T 89'6TE0T | €9'CSO'T |90°820'¢ | LT0 AJelpisqns ayy jo sanl|iqery |e3ol
69'6€ §8'80¢ SLTEE S6'vL %9912 LST68'T | 98LT€E YT'8LTCT |S0'690'T |99°L60°€ |€€'€ Aseipisgns ay3 jo s3assy |ejoL
9L (sz'vS) (sz7zT) 0v'L8S LT°9TT [4:X4) €T°Z6T S6'6LF'T | S89 (06'0¢6) 9T’ Asepisqns ay) Jo santasay
- - - - ST [ordd 2 - - - - - |eade) aieys aoualayaid dn-pled
¥9°0€ 8870T LY'ET 000§ GE'T 0S50 95°TC 05°8L€ 856 050 00T |ende) aseys Aunb3 dn-pied
panwr ‘ald pajwi ad | panwn pajwn panwn pajwn panwn
J115408IApY | (3iodeduis) (as0desuis) | seaintas 13sIApY SI0SIAPY 135Sy | aueuly payw] paywr] Auedwo)
1910S501) |euoyeusau) lende) |eipoisn) payw JUBWISIAU| EIVTIIEN TV SuisnoH Aypowwo) | sapowwo) | diysasisniy
185 M3 13M[3p3 19Mm[3p3 13M[3p3 puet j3p3 sslam[ap3 SSIam|ap3 sslam|ap3 23 13p3 sslam[ap3 huedwo) Aselpisqns ays jo aweN

Edelweiss Annual Report 2013-14

(suoljjiw ur seadnu uelpuj : Aouaiun))

(panuyuo))

966T ‘Y saluedwo) ay3 Jo ZTZ uondas 0} Juensind sajuedwo) Aseipisgng Jo uorewsolu] jedueuld jo Atewwng

108 Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements



- #9981 - - - - - - - - - puapialp pasodoid
6TYT 8L ¥8'S¢C (e€sz) ¥T°0 070 (68°8) (£5°269) (€T°0) ¥0'9€8 ¥S'S uonexe} Jaye (sso1)/14old
(quawapnus
1UpPaJId IVIN pue xe| padiajedg
59 6T YT 09°0 - - - - (9z°0) (s0°0) - LT0 Suipn|oul) uoyexe} 4o} UOISINOIG
€807 LY'8SL 792 (e€7s2) [2%0) 0z0 (68°8) (€8'269) (81°0) 70'9€8 AL uonexe} 21043q (ss07)/140.d
¥6 70t 8T°09€'€9T |75°L0T (80°8€) 850 [4A13 86'8C 6°TY9'T - 99°'18€'S9  (89°0L Janouun] |ejoL
(seiuedwo)
- 88'690°S 100 - - - - oTveL'y - - 61°798'T AJelpisgns ul uey3 Jay3o) s)usWISIAU|
67°09€'T 6€'GES'0E  |00°T0T 88'99T - 20°LST 6T'SY T9'v2S'T GE'SPE 19TUT'Y €1°188'C AJeipisqns ayy jo sani|iqery |ejol
8T EV0'C ETVIV'SE  |9L°06 67°€6 Teee ¥7°89T 79°09 87°968'L v1°8€€ S0'9€9°9 18°€6'C Aseipisgns ay3 jo s3assy |ejoL
ST'Te9 80'8SEY (96°2T) (€€°88) SE0 (og'6T) €99 08895V (tr1) S9'67C°C 68'6C Aselpisqns ay3 Jo santasay
_ 06'2LT _ _ _ _ - - - - - |eade) aieys aoualayaid dn-pled
¥9°09 SL°L6T LT YL YT L6'TE 75°0€ 0L'8 £8708'T 050 €LEET 0’9 [eyde) aseys Aunb3 dn-pied
payuin
panwiI] s3JIAIBS |JTISI0SIAPY I paywi Auedwo) 20Na

|enueuly sapipowwo)  |samunpoddQ  |SJOSIAPY S1BSSY | [euoneuldiul SJUBWISAAU| 20UBINSU|BYIT  [paNWI S|EB  [SALIpOWIWO)  |paywi]

ssilam|ap3 ssilam|ap3 129ds W3 |edads eipuj m3 [ded3 PLRAAE] 12p3 onjo) ssiam|ap3 [sstam|ap3 1915y |euoneusaju| )3 Auedwo) Aseipisqng ay; jo awey

(suoljjiw ur seadnu uelpuj : Aouaiun))

(panuyuo))

966T ‘Y saluedwo) ay3 Jo ZTZ uondas 0} Juensind sajuedwo) Aseipisgng Jo uorewsolu] jedueuld jo Atewwng

109

Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements



Edelweiss Annual Report 2013-14

A403134235 Aubdwio) 1 dAT
4a24fo ooupuld fa14D

1032317 aALIN23XF
103231 aALIN23XT
103231 aALIN23XT
1012241 buiboupip % ubwidinyd

¥T0C ABIN LT
lequiniy

ueyjeuesuay g
ueyjeueSuey s

luemfued uelny

Ifey nysuewny
Awemsewey jequap
Yeys ysaysey

$1012341Q JO pAeog 3y} JO }jeyaq uo pue 104

- R - - - - - - - - - - puapiAlp pasodoud
(zve) (t9°0) (eL's) (68°€) L6°0 YL vy 08°€CT (t99e1) | (vL'1) 85°9¢C 9T'TT 79°1€ uonexey Jaye (sso01)/1yoid
(wuswapnus
1paJd 1VIA pue xe| patiajeq
- - - - €50 €8'6 1961 9T'L - 0L0 0g's LTST 8ulpnoul) uonexe} Joj UOISIAOIG
(zve) (t9°0) (eL'9) (68°€) 0S'T LSS TV EvT (se'61T) | (PL'T) 8C'LT 99T 689t uopexe) a10aq (ss01)/14oid
TTYE (z€0) - - €€°0¢ TLLTS S0'L¥0‘C | 6L°0CT - 8STIT'T |€8°96 YT€9T Janoudny |elo
(sa1uedwo) Aseipisqns
- - - - - - - - - - - - ul Uey) Jay31o) sjuswisaAu|
0€0 650 - 890 €T CEY SSyL 1T°29€ G8°€6C 69°€ 9,0 TT'LSL 81°S0S Aseipisqns ay3 jo sanijiger] [eloL
19°0T A3 L0'YS wiy 75 TP9 0T'z6L vT'80% 10°8ST ST'0 Tv°9¢ S9°S6L €¥'8/9 Aseipisgns ay3 4o s1assy |e30L
12°0T (t90) (9z'6) (86's) Ov'6LT S8'SY vy (rs'8eT) | (88°€) ¥8'€€ YSYE szeeT Asepisgng ay3 Jo sansasay
- - - - - - - - - - - - |exde) aJeys aaualtayald dn-pled
01’0 7’8y - 1597 66'6C 0Lt 0LT 0L¢C ¥€'0 08T 00'Y 00°0S |exde) aieys Aunb3 dn-pied
(a40deduis)
paywi pajwi
91eAld paywn paywn ajenlld paywn
pajwIlald | JulsadInas | (Suoy SuoH) | sdueuld panwi Suipesy panwiy SI0SIApY s1eN panwiy panwi

uouepunod | saBipowiwo) | |elueuly $3131IN23S |leay apenwo) SaLIPOWWO) | saupowwo) | Juawisaau] | [ende) Auedwo) apenwo)

ENDIENE] Ssiam|ap3 ssilam|ap3 sslam|ap3 Ssiam|ap3 1543 19p3 1843 sslam|ap3 sslam|ap3 ddueuld [9p3 | sslam[ap3 Auedwo) Aseipisqns ayj jo awey

(suoljiw ul seadnu uelpuj : Aduaiin))

(panuyuo))

966T ‘DY saiuedwo) 9y Jo ZTz uondas ol yuensind sajuedw o) Aselpisgns Jo uorewsolu| jelpueuldy jo Atewwng

110 Abridged Consolidated Financial Statements



Abridged Standalone Financial Statements

Abridged Standalone Financial Statements 111



Edelweiss Annual Report 2013-14

Independent Auditors’ Report on abridged financial statements

To the Members of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

The accompanying abridged financial statements, which comprise the abridged balance sheet as at 31 March 2014, the abridged statement of profit
& loss, and abridged cash flow statement for the year then ended, and related notes, are derived from the audited financial statements of Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2014. We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements
in our report dated 17 May 2014.

The abridged financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211
of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of the Company. Reading the abridged financial
statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements of the Company.

Management’s responsibility for the abridged financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial statements in accordance with Rule 7A of the Companies
(Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms, 1956 read with Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms (Amendment) Rules,
2012 and are based on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards
referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the abridged financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with
Standard on Auditing (SA) 810, “Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Opinion

In our opinion, the abridged financial statements, prepared in accordance with Rule 7A of the Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and
Forms, 1956 read with Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms (Amendment) Rules, 2012 are derived from the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 and are a fair summary of those financial statements.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh
Mumbai Partner
17 May 2014 Membership No.: 042554
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 March 2014, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
(“the Act’). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2014;
(ii)  inthe case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(iii)  in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(4A) of section 227 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.
2 As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
the audit;
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of
those books;
(c) The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;
(d) Inouropinion, the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement comply with the accounting standards referred to
in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;
(e)  Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31 March 2014, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2014 from being appointed as director in terms of clause (g) of sub
section (1) of section 274 to the Act.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh
Mumbai Partner
17 May 2014 Membership No.: 042554
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Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report — 31 March 2014

(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

114

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)  Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial, and therefore, do not affect the going concern assumption.

The Company is a service company primarily engaged in the business of rendering merchant banking services. Accordingly, it does not hold any
physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 4(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)  During the year, the Company has granted unsecured demand loan to one subsidiary company which is covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Act. The maximum amount outstanding during the year was ¥ 9.81 million and the year-end balance of such
loans was % Nil.

(b)  In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which loans have been granted to the companies listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c)  Theloan granted to the aforementioned company is repayable on demand. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
borrower has been regular in the payment of interest as stipulated.

(d) The loans granted to the companies listed in the register maintained under section 301 are repayable on demand. Accordingly, there is
no overdue amount of more than X 1 lakh in respect of loans granted to any of the companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 301.

(e) The Company has not taken any loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with
the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of fixed assets and with regard to sale of services. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control
system.

(a)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in
section 301 of the Act have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that section.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of contracts and
arrangements referred to in (a) above and exceeding the value of ¥ 5 lakhs with any party during the year have been made at prices which
are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)(d) of the Act for any of the activities conducted
by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Service tax and
other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Employees’ State Insurance, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax, Custom Duty,
Excise Duty, Cess and Investor Education and Protection Fund.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Service tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2014 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Service tax and other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in
the immediately preceeding financial year.
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Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report — 31 March 2014 (Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its bankers
or debenture holders.

The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a chit fund, nidhi or mutual benefit fund/society.

The Company has maintained proper records of the transactions and contracts in respect of dealing in securities and timely entries have been
made therein. Further, such securities and investments have been held by the Company in its own name except to the extent of exemption
granted under section 49 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions on which the Company has given
guarantees for loans taken by others from banks are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken by the Company have been applied for the
purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we are of the
opinion that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long-term investments.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to companies/firms/parties covered in the register maintained under section

301 of the Act.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not issued any secured debentures during the year.
(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.
(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W
N Sampath Ganesh
Mumbai Partner
17 May 2014 Membership No.: 042554
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Abridged Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

(Statement containing salient features of Balance Sheet as per Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital (refer note 9)
Equity 724.15 718.94
(b) Reserves and surplus
(i)  Stock options outstanding 5.03 13.12
(i) Securities premium account (refer note 9) 10,725.06 10,646.36
(iii) General reserve 397.16 323.86
(iv)  Surplus in statement of profit and loss 326.20 205.29
12,177.60 11,907.57
2 Share application money pending allotment (refer note 5) 0.08 22.50
3 Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 3,057.09 2,304.06
(b) Long-term provisions 3.06 13.53
3,060.15 2,317.59
4  Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 5,431.85 6,728.54
(b) Trade payables 65.42 65.79
(c) Other current liabilities 156.63 398.55
(d) Short-term provisions 249.31 150.16
5,903.21 7,343.04
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2+3+4) 21,141.04 21,590.70
Il ASSETS
5 Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i)  Tangible assets (original cost less depreciation) 40.49 45.90
(i) Intangible assets (original cost less depreciation/amortisation) 19.04 18.86
(b) Non-current investments 13,639.55 14,297.98
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 75.32 27.55
(d) Long-term loans and advances 1,417.67 536.73
(e) Other non-current assets 4.14 -
15,196.21 14,927.02
6 Current assets
(a) Trade receivables 213.71 122.88
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 146.31 193.93
(c) Short-term loans and advances 5,225.47 6,062.56
(d) Other current assets 359.34 284.31
5,944.83 6,663.68
TOTAL ASSETS (5+6) 21,141.04 21,590.70

See accompanying accounting policies and notes to the abridged financial statements.
Compiled from the audited financial statements of the Company referred to in our report dated 17 May 2014.

Complete Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, other statements and notes thereto prepared as per the requirements of Revised Schedule VI
to the Companies Act, 1956 are available at the Company's website - www.edelweissfin.com.

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W
N Sampath Ganesh Rashesh Shah Chairman & Managing Director
Partner Venkat Ramaswamy Executive Director
Membership No.: 042554 Himanshu Kaji Executive Director

Rujan Panjwani Executive Director

S Ranganathan Chief Financial Officer

B Renganathan EVP & Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
17 May 2014 17 May 2014
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Abridged Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2014

(Statement containing salient features of Statement of Profit and Loss as per Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2014

For the year ended
31 March 2013

1 Income

Revenue from operations

(a)  Revenue from services provided 1,279.00 931.33
(b)  Income from investments and dividend 794.73 542.17
(c)  Other operating revenue 75.36 94.58
Net revenue from operations 2,149.09 1,568.08
1 Other income 1.73 0.61
n Total income (I+11) 2,150.82 1,568.69
\% Expenditure
(a) Employee benefits expense 311.19 388.94
(b)  Finance costs 611.79 390.35
(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 27.14 19.49
(d) Other expenses 397.93 298.81
Total expenditure 1,348.05 1,097.59
Vv Profit before tax (llI-1V) 802.77 471.10
Vi Tax expense
(a)  Current tax 143.88 10.76
(b)  Minimum alternate tax (26.29) -
(c) Deferred tax (47.78) (7.57)
VIl Profit for the year 732.96 467.91
VIl Earnings per equity share (%) (Face value % 1 each) (refer note 4):
(a) Basic 0.95 0.62
(b)  Diluted 0.95 0.60
See accompanying accounting policies and notes to the abridged financial statements.
Compiled from the audited financial statements of the Company referred to in our report dated 17 May 2014.
As per our report of even date attached.
For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W
N Sampath Ganesh Rashesh Shah Chairman & Managing Director
Partner Venkat Ramaswamy Executive Director
Membership No.: 042554 Himanshu Kaji Executive Director
Rujan Panjwani Executive Director
S Ranganathan Chief Financial Officer
B Renganathan EVP & Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
17 May 2014 17 May 2014
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Abridged Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2014

For the year ended
31 March 2013

| Cash flow from operating activities

1] Cash flow from investing activities

Il Cash used in financing activities

IV Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + Il + 1)

Vv Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10)

449.14

1,328.69

(1,825.45)

(47.62)

193.93

146.31

15,216.17

884.22

(15,918.68)

181.71

12.22

193.93

See accompanying accounting policies and notes to the abridged financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W

N Sampath Ganesh

Partner
Membership No.: 042554

Mumbai
17 May 2014
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rashesh Shah
Venkat Ramaswamy
Himanshu Kaji
Rujan Panjwani

S Ranganathan
B Renganathan

Mumbai
17 May 2014

Chairman & Managing Director

Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer
EVP & Company Secretary



Notes to the abridged financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of abridged financial statements

The accompanying abridged financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Rule 7A of the Companies (Central Goverment's) General
Rules and Forms, 1956 and are based on the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014. The abridged financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees in millions.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the abridged financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the abridged financial statements. Actual results could differ from the estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Current/non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a.
b.
c.

d.

It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a.

b.

It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle.
It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

Revenue recognition

a.

Investment banking fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between
the Company and the counterparty. Guarantee commission and other fees for services rendered to group companies is recognised
on an accrual basis.

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Profit earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss on sale of investments is determined based on the
weighted average cost of the investments sold.

The rating support fee for the borrowing programme of the subsidiaries is accrued on straight line basis over the rating period and
as per the contractual terms agreed with the subsidiaries.
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

1.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Benchmark linked debentures

The Company had issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of specified indices/
commodities over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at
year end. The resultant ‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises of purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use, whichever is
earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

Depreciation is charged at the rates prescribed in the Schedule XIV to the Act, as given below:

Class of asset Rate of depreciation
Flat 5.00%
Office equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%
Furniture and fixtures 18.10%
Vehicles 25.89%

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the period of lease,
whichever is shorter.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years or over the estimated useful life, whichever is shorter.
All fixed assets individually costing less than % 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal/
external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Investments

Investments are classified into long-term investments and current investments. Investments which are intended to be held for one year or
more are classified as long-term investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are classified as current
investments.

Long-term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined separately for each
investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each
investment. In case of investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is considered as the fair
value.

Foreign currency transactions and currency derivatives

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences, if any,
arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange
rates on that date. The exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and related assets and liabilities are
accordingly restated in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

1.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.9

1.10

1.11

Foreign currency transactions and currency derivatives (Continued)

The Company enters into currency derivative transactions to economically hedge its foreign exchange exposure. These derivative
transactions are measured at fair value as at the balance sheet date. Fair value is determined using quoted market prices in an actively
traded market, for the instrument.

In respect of currency forward contracts entered with banks, the premium or discount arising at the inception of the contract is amortised
over the life of the contract in the statement of profit and loss. The difference in the opening and closing exchange rates (mark to market)
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such contracts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits

The accounting policy followed by the company in respect of its employee benefit schemes in accordance with Accounting Standard 15
(Revised 2005), is set out below:

Provident fund

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on
an accrual basis and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the
obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is
measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value are based on the
market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance Company approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
(IRDA).

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Compensated absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave entitlement to subsequent
years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account
of such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises income tax (i.e. amount of tax for the year determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred
tax charge or benefit (reflecting the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year) and
minimum alternate tax.

Income tax

Provision for income tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after adjusting for allowances, disallowances and
exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax

The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognised using the tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that the asset can be realised in future, however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss
under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain, as
the case may be, to be realised.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit asset is recognised where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be realised in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

1.

122

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

Operating leases

Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share prescribed by
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at year end.

Employee stock option plans (ESOPs)

The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for compensation cost of its stock based employee compensation plans. The
compensation cost is amortised on a straight-line basis.

Provisions and contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the abridged financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

2.  Segment reporting (refer note 2.26 of the financial statements)

The Company’s business is organised and management reviews the performance, based on the business segments as mentioned below:

Segment Activities covered
Agency business Advisory and transactional services
Holding company activities Development, managerial and financial support to the businesses of Edelweiss group entities

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identifiable with individual
segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis.

Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.
Since the business operations of the Company are concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment.

The following table gives information on segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2014 and the segment revenue, expenses and result for
the year ended on that date:
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements)

(A)

Subsidiaries which are controlled by the Company and with which transactions have taken place:
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)

ECap Equities Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited (through ECap Equities Limited)

EC Commodity Limited

Edel Commodities Limited (through Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited)
Edel Land Limited

Edelweiss Web Services Limited (through Edelweiss Broking Limited)

EC International Limited, Mauritius

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited (through Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited (through Edelweiss Financial Advisors Limited)
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited

Edelweiss Financial Advisors Limited (through Edelweiss Broking Limited)

EFSL Commodities Limited (through Edel Commodities Limited)

EFSL Comtrade Limited (through Edel Commodities Limited)

Edel Commodities Trading Limited (through Edel Commodities Limited)

Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited (through Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Allium Finance Private Limited (upto 21 August 2012) (through Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
EC Global Limited (through Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)

Aster Commodities DMCC (through EC International Limited, Mauritius)

Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited (through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited)
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3.

Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

(A)

(8)

(@

(D)

(E)

Subsidiaries which are controlled by the Company and with which transactions have taken place (Continued):

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (formerly known as Affluent Dealcom Limited) (with effect from 19 July 2012) (through Edelcap Securities
Limited)

Edelweiss Metals Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Metals Private Limited) (with effect from 1 July 2013) (through Edelweiss
Commodities Services Limited)

Subsidiaries which are controlled by the Company and with which no transactions have taken place:

ECap International Limited (through EC International Limited, Mauritius)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte. Limited (through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited)

EAAA LLC, Mauritius (through EC International Limited, Mauritius)

EW Special Opportunities Advisors LLC (through EAAA LLC, Mauritius)

EW India Special Assets Advisors LLC (through EAAA LLC, Mauritius)

Edelweiss Investment Advisors Private Limited (through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited)

EW SBI Crossover Advisors LLC (through EAAA LLC, Mauritius)

Edelweiss Securities (Hong Kong) Private Limited (with effect from 6 February 2013) (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Inc (with effect from 11 June 2013) (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Edelweiss Commodities Pte. Ltd (with effect from 20 September 2013) (through EFSL Comtrade Limited)
Edelweiss Commodities Nigeria Limited (with effect from 17 December 2013) (through EFSL Comtrade Limited)
Associates:

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (through Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Edelweiss Fund Advisors Private Limited

Dahlia Commodities Services Private Limited (formerly known as Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited) (through Edelweiss Securities
Limited)

Magnolia Commodities Services Private Limited (formerly known as Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited) (through Edelweiss
Securities Limited)

Arum Investments Private Limited (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Edelweiss Metals Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Metals Private Limited) (upto 30 June 2013) (through Edelweiss Commodities
Services Limited)

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (formerly known as Affluent Dealcom Limited) (upto 18 July 2012) (through Edelcap Securities Limited)
Allium Finance Private Limited (with effect from 22 August 2012) (through Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Aeon Credit Service India Private Limited (with effect from 25 June 2012) (through ECL Finance Limited)

Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them control or significant influence
over the Company:

Rashesh Shah

Venkat Ramaswamy

Vidya Shah

Aparna T. C.

Key managerial personnel (KMP):
Himanshu Kaji

Rujan Panjwani (with effect from 24 June 2013)
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3.

Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

(F)

(Q)

(H)

Note:

a)

b)

c)

Relatives of individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them control or
significant influence over the Company and relatives of KMP:

Kaavya Venkat

Shilpa Mody

Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah (upto 11 May 2012)

AV Ramaswamy

Sejal Premal Parekh (with effect from 9 July 2012)

Meena Subramanian (with effect from 30 January 2013 and upto 29 May 2013)
Sneha Sripad Desai (with effect from 30 January 2013)

Shabnam Panjwani (with effect from 24 June 2013)

Enterprise over which significant influence is exercised:

Edelweiss Employees Welfare Trust

Enterprises which exercise significant influence over the Company:
Spire Investment Advisors LLP

Oak Holdings Private Limited

With effect from 1 April 2013 (being the appointed date):

the Derivatives Business of EC Commodity Limited (“Demerging Company”) has been merged with Edelweiss Securities Limited (“Resulting
Company”) vide an order of the Hon. High Court of Andhra Pradesh. The effective date of the order is 11 May 2014;

the Derivatives Business of Edel Commodities Limited (“Demerging Company”) has been merged with Edelweiss Commodities Services
Limited (“Resulting Company”) vide an order of the Hon. High Court of Andhra Pradesh. The effective date of the order is 11 May 2014;

all related party outstanding balances as at the end of the year relating to these demerged businesses have been disclosed as being
outstanding to/from the respective Resulting Companies. All related party transactions other than that of revenue nature from the
Appointed Date in relation to the demerged business accounted in the Balance Sheet have been disclosed to have been transacted with
the respective Demerging Companies.

the Demerged Business of Edelcap Securities Limited has been merged with ECap Equities Limited (Ecap) vide an order of the Hon. High
Court of Andhra Pradesh. The effective date of the order is 11 May 2014. All related party transactions transacted during the year and the
outstanding balances thereof as at the end of the year relating to the Demerged Business have accordingly been disclosed to have been
transacted by Ecap.
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties:

Commercial papers redeemed to
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

(111,635.58)

28,750.00
(44,200.00)
253.00

()

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise | Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Capital account transactions
Investments in equity shares
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 560.30
(-)
Others 0.85
(13.03)
Investments in preference shares
EC International Limited 9,184.90
()
ECap Equities Limited 18.00
(-)
Redemption of preference shares
EC International Limited 9,184.90
()
Disinvestment in equity shares
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited -
(229.35)
Purchase of investments from
Rashesh Shah 0.98
()
Venkat Ramaswamy 0.98
(-)
Sale of investments to
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 840.50
()
Edelweiss Securities Limited 517.50
(-)
ECap Equities Limited 13.00
()
Long-term non convertible debentures redeemed to
ECap Equities Limited -
(78.10)
Commercial papers subscribed by
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 109,752.73
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Commercial papers redeemed by
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 1,000.00
()
Long-term loans given to
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 700.00
()
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 150.00
()
Long-term loans taken from
ECL Finance Limited 1,510.00
()
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 104.60
()
Long-term loans repaid to
ECL Finance Limited 2,010.00
()
ECap Equities Limited 300.00
()
Current account transactions
Loans repaid by
Edelweiss Securities Limited 338,244.45
(214,009.69)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 610,939.97
(472,609.38)
ECL Finance Limited 291,208.77
(168,574.55)
Others 279,323.66 24.50 0.29
(163,152.25) (32.10) (0.50)
Loans given to
Edelweiss Securities Limited 336,972.82
(214,842.70)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 610,722.84
(469,465.54)
ECL Finance Limited 290,807.14
(168,346.98)
Others 280,498.23 0.29
(150,994.56) (0.50)
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Short-term loans taken from
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited -
(2,000.00)
Short-term loans repaid to
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited -
(2,000.00)
Secondary market transactions with broker
Margin placed with broker
Edelweiss Securities Limited 1,092.08
(2,154.45)
Margin withdrawn from broker
Edelweiss Securities Limited 1,134.55
(2,243.60)
Reimbursements recovered
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 227.76
(136.74)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 232.46
(163.73)
ECL Finance Limited 335.77
(218.49)
ECap Equities Limited 174.50
(71.14)
Others 348.09 - 57.78 0.01
(398.20) (0.00)* (42.47) (0.02)
Reimbursements paid
Edelweiss Web Services Limited 51.16
()
Others 0.19
(0.70)
Dividend paid
Rashesh Shah 87.30
(116.88)
Venkat Ramaswamy 34.47
(45.07)
Edelweiss Employees Welfare Trust 24.44
(31.96)
Spire Investment Advisors LLP 27.27
(32.94)
Others 33.49 9.81
(35.16) (12.51)
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Notes to the abridged financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Remuneration
Rashesh Shah 35.47
(21.27)
Venkat Ramaswamy 5.34
(14.75)
Himanshu Kaji 17.83
(20.29)
Rujan Panjwani 3.25
()
Dividend income
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 311.15
(110.17)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 151.34
(450.03)
Advisory fee/commission received
ECL Finance Limited 76.80
(42.34)
Aster Commodities DMCC 71.32
(38.49)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 50.00
()
Others 32.58
(16.32)
Rating support fee received
ECL Finance Limited 215.50
(315.30)
Edelweiss Securities Limited 66.15
(88.13)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 88.05
(115.13)
Others 70.80
(46.88)
Interest income on short-term loan
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 824.81
(1,844.57)
ECL Finance Limited 367.64
(549.08)
Edelweiss Securities Limited 332.89
(326.56)
ECap Equities Limited 306.18
(182.57)
Others 565.78 0.00*
(1,361.55) (0.00)*
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Interest income on long-term loan
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 0.69
()
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.15
()
Interest expense on short-term loan
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited -
(200.00)
Interest expense on long-term loan
ECap Equities Limited 214.72
(216.00)
ECL Finance Limited 97.60
(60.00)
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 8.29
()
Interest income on margin
Edelweiss Securities Limited 461
(3.87)
Interest expense on long-term non convertible
debentures
ECap Equities Limited -
(29.99)
Commission and brokerage paid
Edelweiss Securities Limited 73.22
()
Rent expense
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 18.97
(19.23)
Other expenses
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.06
()
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 0.07
()
Edelweiss Web Services Limited 0.03
()
Cost reimbursements paid
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 1.45
(1.05)
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Cost reimbursements recovered
Edelweiss Securities Limited 27.02
(23.99)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 9.20
(12.75)
ECL Finance Limited 10.80
(10.81)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 7.62
()
Others 6.65 5.20
(38.71) (19.65)
Transfer of gratuity liability on account of employee
transfer
ECL Finance Limited 0.91
()
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1.24
()
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.56
()
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.43
()
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.66
()
Others 0.40
()
Balances with related parties
Investments in equity shares
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 1,778.12
(2,297.27)
ECL Finance Limited 5,190.56
(5,190.56)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 3,642.21
(3,081.91)
Others 2,789.79 0.50
(3,317.99) (0.50)
Investments in preference shares
ECap Equities Limited 18.00
()
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

()

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Dividend receivable
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 159.30
(110.17)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited -
(99.56)
Short-term loans given
EC International Limited 2,847.98
(185.91)
Others 2,143.14
(5,594.77)
Long-term loans given
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 700.00
()
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 150.00
()
Edelweiss Employees Welfare Trust 1,323.85
(1,348.35)
Accrued interest on loans given
Edelweiss Securities Limited 8.32
(1.10)
EC International Limited 4.20
(10.48)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 7.55
(0.93)
Others 21.69
(13.60)
Loans taken
ECap Equities Limited 1,500.00
(1,800.00)
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 104.60
(500.00)
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
ECap Equities Limited 4.88
()
ECL Finance Limited 0.73
()
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 0.34
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Trade receivables
Aster Commodities DMCC 71.32
(38.49)
EC Global Limited 15.63
(16.32)
Edelweiss International Singapore Pte Limited 16.95
()
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 51.18
()
Margin placed with broker
Edelweiss Securities Limited 8.02
(50.49)
Trade payables
Edelweiss Securities Limited 4.75
(0.49)
ECL Finance Limited 0.91
(0.00)*
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1.25
()
Others 1.56
(2.71)
Advances
Edelweiss Securities Limited 28.54
(25.10)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 9.42
(10.93)
ECL Finance Limited 12.55
(10.92)
Others 13.46 5.41
(40.93) (19.86)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be
received
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 10.91
()
Bonus payable
Rashesh Shah 12.50
(13.30)
Himanshu Kaji 10.00
(12.80)
Venkat Ramaswamy -
(6.80)
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

3. Related parties (refer note 2.27 of the financial statements) (Continued)

() Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued):

Particulars Subsidiaries/ Enterprise Associates | Individuals | Relatives of | Enterprises
entities | over which exercising |  individuals which
controlled significant significant exercising exercise
by the | influence is control/key significant significant
Company exercised managerial control/ influence
personnel | Relatives of
KMP
Corporate guarantee
ECL Finance Limited 31,184.70
(26,938.40)
Edelweiss Securities Limited 7,035.00
(10,036.00)
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 9,373.70
(4,987.01)
Others 9,000.88
(10,043.25)

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers.

* Amount is less than ¥ 0.01 million
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

4.

10.

Earnings per share (refer note 2.28 of the financial statements)

In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 — Earnings Per Share prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the computation
of earnings per share is set out below:

2014 2013

a. Shareholders earnings (as per statement of profit and loss) 732.96 467.91
b. Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of X 1 each:

- Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 763,842,280 756,799,280

- Number of shares issued during the year 5,203,050 7,043,000

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 769,045,330 763,842,280
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

(based on the date of issue of shares) 767,977,731 760,388,845

c. Number of dilutive potential equity shares 3,911,331 13,015,804

d. Basic earnings per share (in) {a/b} 0.95 0.62

e. Diluted earnings per share (in) {a/(b+c)} 0.95 0.60

Share application money pending allotment (refer note 2.32 of the financial statements)

The Company has received ¥ 0.08 million (Previous year: ¥ 22.50 million) towards share application on exercise of ESOPs which will result in an
issue of 10,500 shares (Previous year: 2,929,800 shares). Of the total receipts, ¥ 0.07 million (Previous year: ¥ 19.57 million) has been received
towards share premium. These shares have since been allotted.

Commitment (refer note 2.33 of the financial statements)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) X 8.74 million (Previous year:
% 1.41 million)

Contingent liability (refer note 2.34 of the financial statements)
a. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending ¥ 115.15 million (Previous year: ¥ 52.61 million).

b. The Company has issued corporate guarantees to the extent of ¥ 41,366.38 million (Previous year: ¥ 38,268.76 million), in favour of banks
to secure the credit facilities sanctioned by these banks to Edelweiss Securities Limited, Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited, ECL
Finance Limited, Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited, Aster Commodities DMCC, EC Global Limited, Edelweiss International Singapore Pte
Limited (subsidiary companies), ¥ 14,757.20 million (Previous year: ¥ 13,735.90 million) in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited for
non-convertible debentures issued by ECL Finance Limited and Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited (subsidiary companies) and % 470.70
million (Previous year: ¥ Nil) in favour of Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (subsidiary company) for the Preference shares issued
by it against due discharge of debt.

Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises (refer note 2.35 of the financial statements)

Trade Payables includes X Nil (Previous year: X Nil) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006. No interest has been paid/is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this Act. The aforementioned is
based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

The Company has provided loan to its employees’ welfare trusts aggregating to ¥ 1,608.15 million as at 31 March 2014. The trusts have utilised
this fund in the acquisition of shares of the Company with the objective of utilising the same to allocate shares to employees on exercise of
employee stock options and for other employee welfare activities. The Company has, in accordance with the Expert Advisory Committee of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India's published opinion in March 2014, presented the investment in shares of the Company underlying
the loan as a deduction from share capital and securities premium account. Previous year's figures have also been regrouped to conform to the
above presentation. (refer note 2.41 of the financial statements)

Details of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 2.15 of the financial statements) (% In millions)

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013
Cash in hand 0.05 0.09
Cheques in hand - 28.76
Balances with banks 146.26 165.08
Total 146.31 193.93
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

11. Details of quoted investments (refer note 2.10 of the financial statements)

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013
Book value of quoted investments 0.00* 0.00*
Market value of quoted investments 0.00* 0.00*
*Amount is less than % 0.01 million
As per our report of even date attached.
For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W
N Sampath Ganesh Rashesh Shah Chairman & Managing Director
Partner Venkat Ramaswamy Executive Director
Membership No.: 042554 Himanshu Kaji Executive Director
Rujan Panjwani Executive Director
S Ranganathan Chief Financial Officer
B Renganathan EVP & Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
17 May 2014 17 May 2014
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Notice

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 19™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF EDELWEISS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED WILL BE
HELD ON FRIDAY, JULY 25, 2014 AT 3.00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT EDELWEISS HOUSE, OFF C.S.T. ROAD, KALINA,
MUMBAI - 400 098 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2014 and the Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the
financial year ended on that date, together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To declare dividend on Equity Shares.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy (DIN 00008509) who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

Re-appointment of B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No. 116231W), be and
are hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion
of the 22" AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2017 (subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM), at such remuneration
plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling expenses, etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.

Appointment of Mr. Narendra Jhaveri as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Narendra Jhaveri (DIN 00198912), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the
year 2017.”

Appointment of Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
and the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam (DIN 00499442), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a
declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
in the year 2017.”

Appointment of Mr. Berjis Desai as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Berjis Desai (DIN 00153675), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2017.”
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Appointment of Mr. Sanjiv Misra as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Sanjiv Misra (DIN 03511635), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2017.”

Appointment of Mr. Sunil Mitra as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Sunil Mitra (DIN 00113473), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2017.”

Appointment of Mr. Navtej S. Nanda as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Navtej S. Nandra (DIN 02282617), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the
year 2017.”

Appointment of Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutionas an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) and the Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah (DIN 01590108), a Non-Executive Director of the Company, who has
submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment,
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held in the year 2017.”

Re-appointment of Mr. Himanshu Kaji as an Executive Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203, Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013, (the Act) the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars issued in this regard and subject to necessary approvals, if any, approval of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Himanshu Kaji (DIN 00009438) as an Executive Director of the
Company for a period of 5 years with effect from November 1, 2014 on the terms and conditions set out below:-

(a) Salary Limit: Not to exceed ¥ 1,50,00,000/- per annum.

(b) Performance Bonus: In addition to salary, performance based bonus, up to 200% of Salary Limit, may also be paid, and at such intervals
as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(c) Perquisites: In addition to salary and the performance bonus, Mr. Himanshu Kaji shall also be entitled to the perquisites. The expenditure
incurred by the Company on perquisites and contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation, Annuity Fund, etc., shall be restricted to
the Salary Limit as in (a) above.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Board’ which expression shall also include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to vary the terms and conditions of the
re-appointment of Mr. Himanshu Kaji from time to time as may be required.

FURTHER RESOLVED that where in any financial year during the tenure of Mr. Himanshu Kaji as an Executive Director, the Company has no profits
or the profits are inadequate, the Board be authorised to determine the minimum remuneration to be paid to Mr. Himanshu Kaji subject to
requisite approvals, if any.
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13.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion,
deem necessary and with power to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to secure any
further approval of the members of the Company.”

Adoption of new set of Articles of Association
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, the draft Regulations contained in the Articles of Association submitted to this Meeting be and are
hereby approved and adopted in substitution and, to the entire exclusion of the Regulations contained in the existing Articles of Association of
the Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof, which the
Board has constituted or hereinafter constitute) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its
absolute discretion, deem necessary and with power to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the
Board to secure any further approval of the members of the Company.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EDELWEISS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

B. Renganathan
Executive Vice President & Company Secretary

June 26, 2014

Registered Office:
Edelweiss House,

Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina,
Mumbai — 400 098.

CIN No.: L99999MH1995PLC094641
E-mail : efsl.shareholders@edelweissfin.com

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in respect of the Item No. 4 to Item No. 13 is annexed
hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY
NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.
A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. Members/Proxies should bring the enclosed attendance slip duly filled in, for attending the Meeting, along with the Annual Report.

4. Book Closure and Dividend

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from July 15, 2014 to July 25, 2014 (both days
inclusive).

Dividend, if declared, at the Annual General Meeting will be credited/dispatched between August 5, 2014 and August 12, 2014 to those persons
or their mandates:-
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a) whose names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business hours on July 14, 2014 in the list of Beneficial Owners to
be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited in respect of the shares held in
electronic form; and

b) whose names appear as Members in the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to valid share transfers in physical form
lodged with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent on or before July 14, 2014.

Nomination Facility
The members holding the shares in physical form may obtain the Nomination Form from the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) facility

To avoid loss of dividend warrants in transit and undue delay in respect of receipt thereof, the dividend will be credited through NECS facility
at the locations identified by the Reserve Bank of India and the Members holding shares in physical form and who are desirous of availing this
facility are requested to contact the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company and the Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to contact their respective Depository Participants.

Bank Mandates

In order to provide protection against fraudulent encashment of the dividend warrants, Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to intimate the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent under the signature of the Sole/First holder, the following information to be incorporated on
the Dividend Warrants:-

I Name of the Sole/First holder and the folio number
Il Particulars of Bank Account viz.,
a) Name of the Bank
b) Name of the Branch
) Complete address of the Branch with Pin code
d) Bank Account Number allotted by the Bank.

In respect of the matters pertaining to Bank details, NECS mandates, nomination, power of attorney, change in name/address, etc., the Members
are requested to approach:-

— the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, in case of shares held in physical form; and
— the respective Depository Participants, in case of shares held in electronic form.

In all correspondence with the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, members are requested to quote their account/folio numbers or DP
ID and Client ID in respect of physical or electronic holdings, respectively.

Members are requested to note that dividends not claimed or encashed within seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid
Dividend Account, will as per Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Members desirous of getting any information in respect of the contents of the Annual Report are requested to forward the queries to the
Company at least ten days prior to the Annual General Meeting so that the required information can be made available at the Meeting.

E-voting

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the Members are provided with the facility to cast
their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), on all the resolutions set forth
in the Notice.

The instructions for e-voting are as under:-

A) In case a Member receives an e-mail from NSDL (for Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories):-

i Open the e-mail and also open PDF file namely “EFSL e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file
contains your user ID and password for e-voting. Please note that the password is an initial password.

ii. Open the internet browser and type the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
iii.  Click on Shareholder — Login.

iv. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password.
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B)

Q)

Vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

If you are logging in for the first time, please enter the user ID and password provided in the PDF file attached with the e-mail as
initial password.

The Password Change Menu will appear on your screen. Change to a new password of your choice, making sure that it contains a
minimum of 8 digits or characters or a combination of both.

Please take utmost care to keep your password confidential.
Once the e-voting home page opens, click on e-voting> Active Voting Cycles.

Select “EVEN” (E-Voting Event Number) of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited which is 100409. Now you are ready for e-voting as
Cast Vote page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
Once the vote on the resolution is cast, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) of
the relevant Board Resolution/Authority Letter, etc., together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to keyoorbakshi@gmail.com, with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) - Shareholders and e-voting user manual - Shareholders,
available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com

For those Members whose email addresses are not registered with the Company / Depositories:-

Initial password is provided in the Admission Slip : EVEN (E-Voting Event Number), user ID and password.

Please follow all steps from SI. No. (ii) to SI. No. (xiii) above, to cast vote.

Other Instructions:-

Vi.

The e-voting period commences on Wednesday, July 16, 2014 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Friday, July 18, 2014 (6.00 p.m. IST).
During this period, Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in electronic form, as on June 20, 2014, may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is
cast by the Member, the same cannot be changed subsequently.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on
June 20, 2014.

Mr. Keyoor Bakshi Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding three working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period, unblock the votes
in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast
in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

The results on resolutions shall be declared on or after the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and the resolutions will
be deemed to be passed on the AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the resolutions.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.edelweissfin.com and on
the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com within two days of the passing of the resolutions at the 19" AGM of the Company on
July 25,2014 and communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the shares of the Company are
listed.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE DATED JUNE 26, 2014
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO. 4:-

B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (BSR), (Firm’s Registration No. 116231W), Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the statutory
auditors of the Company for financial year 2013-14 at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on July 26, 2013.

BSR have been the Auditors of the Company since 2006-07 and have completed a term of 7 years. As per the provisions of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) no listed company can appoint or re-appoint an audit firm as auditor for more than two terms of five consecutive years.
Section 139 of the Act has also provided a period of three years from the date of commencement of the Act to comply with this requirement.

In view of the above, BSR, being eligible for re-appointment and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board at its meeting
held on May 17, 2014, has proposed the appointment of BSR as the statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 3 years to hold office from the
conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of the 22" AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2017 (subject to ratification of their appointment at
every AGM).

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 4 for approval by the Members.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in Item No. 4 of the Notice.
ITEM NOS. 5 to 11:-
Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of the following Independent Directors:-
Mr. Narendra Jhaveri
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam
Mr. Berjis Desai
Mr. Sanjiv Misra
Mr. Sunil Mitra
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), which came in to effect from April 1, 2014, every listed public company
is required to have at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent directors. The Independent Directors are not liable to retire by
rotation.

All the Non-executive Directors of the Company, have given a declaration to the Board that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under
Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, each of these Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules framed thereunder
for appointment as Independent Director. The Board has recommended the appointment of these Directors as Independent Directors of the Company
till the conclusion of the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2017.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the appointment of these Directors as Independent Directors is now being placed before
the Members for their approval.

The brief profile of the Independent Directors is as under:-
Mr. Narendra Jhaveri

Mr. Jhaveri, a public finance expert, has occupied important positions in various prestigious institutions including National Council of Applied
Economic Research (NCAER), Reserve Bank of India and ICICI Ltd. Mr. Jhaveri rose to become Joint Managing Director and then the Executive
Chairman of ICICI Securities Ltd. His academic qualifications include a Masters in Economics from Gujarat University and M.Sc. in Economics from
the London School of Economics.

Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam

Mr. Venkatachalam has wide experience in the banking sector in India and abroad and has also worked in the software industry in Banking &
Finance verticals. He joined State Bank of India in 1967 and retired in 2004 as its Managing Director. He was a member of the Interim Pension
Fund Regulatory Authority of India and a Director on the Board of Small Industries & Development Bank of India (SIDBI). He holds a Master’s
Degree in Economics and is a Certified Associate from the Indian Institute of Bankers.
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Mr. Berjis Desai

Mr. Desai is the Managing Partner of J. Sagar Associates, one of India’s leading law firms. He has varied experience in the legal field, with
specialisation in corporate law, Mergers & Acquisitions, derivatives, securities & financial laws, International Business laws and International
Commercial Arbitration. He holds a Masters degree in Law from the University of Cambridge.

Mr. Sanjiv Misra

Mr. Misra has a rich and varied experience in the financial services industry, having worked with various organisations including Goldman
Sachs and Citigroup. Mr. Misra is the President of Phoenix Advisers Pte. Ltd., an advisory and principal investing firm and Chairman, Asia Pacific
Advisory Board with Apollo Management. Mr. Misra holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from St. Stephen’s College, Delhi University, a
MBA from IIM, Ahmedabad and a Master of Management from the J. L. Kellogg Graduate School of Management.

Mr. Sunil Mitra

Mr. Mitra holds a bachelor’s degree in Science from Delhi University and belongs to the 1975 batch of the Indian Administrative Service.
He possesses rich and varied experience in public administration and general management having held diverse positions in Government of
India such as Disinvestment Secretary, Revenue Secretary & Finance Secretary. In his stint with the Ministry of Finance, Government of India,
Mr. Mitra was engaged in the design of significant tax reforms. During his stint with the West Bengal Government, Mr. Mitra was responsible for
designing and implementing widespread policy reforms in the State-owned public sector.

Mr. Navtej S. Nandra

A veteran of the global financial services industry, Mr. Nandra is the President of E¥TRADE Financial Corporation. He also serves on the Board of
Directors of the Center of Governance, Institutions and Organizations, at the Business School, National University of Singapore. Mr. Nandra was
CEO of Morgan Stanley Investment Management Ltd., and also served on the Boards of Directors of Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management
Company, Morgan Stanley International Ltd., and Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC. Prior to Morgan Stanley, Mr. Nandra's career included
senior roles at DTZ Holdings, Merrill Lynch Global Wealth Management, Merrill Lynch Global Investment Banking, The Cambridge Group Inc., and
BoozAllen and Hamilton Inc. (now Booz & Co.). He has also served on the Board of Directors of Nuveen Investments, Inc., and Merrill Lynch India
Technology Services. Mr. Nandra holds an MBA from the IIM, Ahmedabad, and a Bachelor's degree in Commerce (honors) from the University
of Delhi.

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah

Mr. Chinniah recently retired as the Managing Director/Global Head of Portfolio, Strategy & Risk Group with GIC Special Investments (“GIC SI”),
the Private Equity arm of the Government of Singapore Investment Corporation (“GIC”). He joined GIC in 1989 and has held various positions
with the Special Investments Department of GIC in their North American, European and Asian regions. Mr. Chinniah is a Chartered Financial
Analyst and his other academic qualifications include a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from the National University of Singapore and
an MBA from the University of California, Berkeley. He is presently also a Director of Changi Airport International and a member of the Hindu
Endowments Board in Singapore.

The Board recommends the Resolutions at Item Nos. 5 to 11 for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, except Mr. Narendra Jhaveri, Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam, Mr. Berjis Desai,
Mr. Sanjiv Misra, Mr. Sunil Mitra, Mr. Navtej S. Nandra and Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah, is concerned or interested in Item Nos. 5 to 11 of the Notice
respectively.

ITEM NO. 12:-

The tenure of appointment of Mr. Himanshu Kaji as an Executive Director expires on October 31, 2014. The Board of Directors at their meeting held
on May 17, 2014 had, subject to the approval of the Members re-appointed Mr. Himanshu Kaji as an Executive Director for a further period of 5 years
w. e. f. November 1, 2014.

The details as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder in this regard are as under:
DETAILS OF THE COMPANY
1 GENERAL INFORMATION
i Nature of Industry:
The Company along with its subsidiaries provides wide range of financial services.

The Company has grown from a boutique investment bank to a diversified financial conglomerate providing credit and engaged in
capital markets, asset management services, commodities, life insurance and treasury functions, operating through the Company and its
subsidiaries. The services provided inter alia include investment banking, institutional equities, securities broking, private client brokerage,
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vi.

subsidiaries. The services provided inter alia include investment banking, institutional equities, securities broking, private client brokerage,
asset management, wealth management, client advisory services, wholesale financing, housing finance and treasury operations.

Being a company engaged in the financial services sector, a substantial portion of the total cost is incurred on human resources who
manage the business which is distinct from the other sectors.

Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:
N. A.

In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus:

N. A.

Financial performance:

The net profit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2014 was % 732.96 million.
The consolidated net profit for the financial year ended March 31, 2014 was ¥ 2,202.46 million.
Export performance and net foreign exchange collaborations:

N. A.

Foreign investments or collaborators, if any:

During the financial year ended March 31, 2014, the Company has made foreign investments of ¥ 9,285.16 million (including loans given
at gross value) in its wholly owned subsidiaries abroad.

INFORMATION OF THE APPOINTEE

Background:

Mr. Himanshu Kaji is the Group Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Himanshu Kaji is responsible for the overall functioning of the Corporate
Planning, Operations, Technology, Business Solutions, Governance, Compliance, Finance, Planning, Investor Relations, Global Risk,
Resources, Legal and Administration departments of the Group. He is involved in formulating strategy and providing vital inputs for the
effective functioning of the Group.

Mr. Himanshu Kaji is a qualified Chartered Accountant with a post graduate diploma in securities law. Mr. Himanshu Kaji has over 20 years
experience in the financial services sector. Before joining Edelweiss in 2009, he was corporate advisor to various large companies in the
financial services sector. Mr. Himanshu Kaji was Honorary Treasurer & Official Spokesman and Director of Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
between 1999-2002. Mr. Himanshu Kaji was part of the select group that oversaw the corporatization and demutualalisaiton of BSE.

Past Remuneration:

The gross remuneration paid to Mr. Himanshu Kaji during the financial year ended March 31, 2014 was % 2,07,08,094/-
Recognition and Awards:

None

Job profile and suitability:

As the Group Chief Operating Officer he is responsible for the overall functioning of the Corporate Planning, Operations, Technology,
Business Solutions, Governance, Compliance, Finance, Planning, Investor Relations, Global Risk, Resources, Legal and Administration
departments of the Group. He is involved in formulating strategy and providing vital inputs for the effective functioning of the Group.

Remuneration Proposed:

The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Himanshu Kaji, shall comprise of annual salary not exceeding ¥ 1,50,00,000/-, perquisites
up to an amount equivalent to the annual salary and performance based bonus upto 200% of the amount of salary, as per the details
provided in the resolution set out in Item No. 12 of the Notice.

It is clarified that Employee Stock Options granted/to be granted to Mr. Himanshu Kaji from time to time are not to be included for the
purpose of computation of overall ceiling of remuneration.
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vi. Comparative remuneration profile:

The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Himanshu Kaji, is not comparable with other companies in the financial sector due to the
diverse nature of business.

vii.  Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with managerial personnel, if any:
Mr. Himanshu Kaji is not related to any Director of the Company.
lll.  OTHER INFORMATION
i. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

The Company had adequate profits during the previous financial year. As a prudent measure, the approval of the members is being sought
for payment of remuneration to Mr. Himanshu Kaji in the event of inadequacy of profits in any financial year.

iii. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement

While the profits of the Company is presently adequate, the Company constantly endeavors to enhance the ambit of services provided
and increase its market presence.

iii.  Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms
The Company expects increase in the profits in line with the increase in its activity and market penetration.
The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No. 12 for approval by the Members.

Save and except Mr. Himanshu Kaji, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in Item No. 12 of
the Notice.

ITEM NO. 13:-
The Articles of Association (the Articles) of the Company are in conformity with provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules framed thereunder.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, had notified the majority of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and has framed the
Rules. Consequently, the Articles is being altered in order to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed therunder.

In view of the above, it is considered prudent to substitute the existing Articles by a new set of Articles. The proposed Articles are based on Table ‘F’
of Schedule-I of the Act which provides the model Articles of Association for a Company Limited by Shares.

The proposed Articles are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company between 2.00 p.m. to 4.00 p.m. on working
days. The proposed Articles are also uploaded on the Company’s website www.edelweissfin.com.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Item No. 13 for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in this item
of business. It may be noted that Mr. Rashesh Shah, Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy, Mr. Himanshu Kaji, Mr. Rujan Panjwani, Mr. Narendra Jhaveri,
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam, Mr. Navtej S. Nandra, the Directors of the Company and Mr. S. Ranganathan and Mr. B. Renganathan, the Key Managerial
Personnel are Members of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
EDELWEISS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

B. Renganathan
Executive Vice President & Company Secretary

June 26, 2014

Registered Office:
Edelweiss House,

Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina,
Mumbai — 400 098.

CIN No.: L99999MH1995PLC094641
E-mail : efsl.shareholders@edelweissfin.com
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Particulars Mr. Venkat Mr. Narendra Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam Mr. Berjis Desai Mr. Sanjiv Misra
Ramaswamy Jhaveri

Date of Birth August 12, 1966 August 9, 1935 March 22, 1944 August 2, 1956 July 8, 1960

Date of Appointment | February 20, 1996 | July 21, 2007 August 9, 2007 November 18, 2009 May 16, 2011

Experience in
functional Area

Has more than 20
years experience
in venture capital
and private equity
advisory and fund
raising.

Specialisations in
public finance and
has more than 40
years of experience
in financial services
sector.

Has more than

40 years of experience
in the banking sector,
non- banking financial
services and allied
industry.

Has rich and varied
experience of more than
3 decades in the legal
field.

Has rich and varied
experience of more
than 25 years in
financial services
sector with various
organizations which
inter alia include
Goldman Sachs,
Citigroup etc.

Qualification

B. E. (Electronic &
Communication)
from Karnataka

Masters in
Economics from
Gujarat University

M.A. in Economics

Certified Associate from
the Indian Institute of

Masters in Law from the
University of Cambridge

Bachelor of Arts
degree in economics
from St. Stephen’s

the Company

University . . College, Delhi
M.Sc., in Economics | Bankers University
MBA from the from the London
University of School of PGDM from IIM,
Pittsburgh. Economics Ahmedabad
Master of
Management from
the J. L. Kellogg
Graduate School of
Management
Directorships in other | e Edelweiss e Afcons ECL Finance Limited The Great Eastern Nil
Companies Finance & Infrastructure o Shipping Company
(public limited Investments Limited IEde""t’e'SS t‘“f"c,f i‘ Limited
companies) Limited e Siemens Limited nvestments Himite Praj Industries Limited
e Edelweiss . Edelwe|s§ . . Emcure
Alternative Asset | ° Hlndalc.o C.orT.1mod|t|es services Pharmaceuticals
Advisors Limited :_?:]Lij:;;'es Limited Limited
o Edelweiss Tokio UTI Asset Greatship (India)
Life Insurance * Edelweiss Management Limited
Company Limited Securities Limited Company Limited Himatsingka Seide
« Prime Urban o Cadila UTI Retirement Limited
Development P.ha'rmaceuticals Solutions Limited Man Infraconstruction
India Limited Limited Sundaram Finance Limited
o Pidilite Industries Limited Adani Enterprises
Limited Limited
Membership of Edelweiss Tokio Life | e Afcons ECL Finance Limited Praj Industries Limited Nil
Committees of Insurance Company Infrastructure UTI Asset The Great Eastern
other public limited Limited Limited Shipping Company
companies ] Manageme.nt. o
e Hindalco Company Limited Limited
(Audit Committee Industries o Greatship (India)
and Shareholder's / Limited Edelweiss Flna}nt{e & Limited
Investor's Grievance Investments Limited Emcure
i L]
Committee only) E;:]lillte‘sdlndustnes « UTI Retirement Pharmaceuticals
Solutions Limited Limited
No. of Shares held in 5,30,26,560 1,40,500 32,500 Nil Nil
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Particulars

Mr. Sunil Mitra

Mr. Navtej S. Nandra

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah

Mr. Himanshu Kaji

Date of Birth

June 24,1951

October 14, 1966

May 10, 1957

August 24, 1965

Date of Appointment

December 7, 2011

May 15, 2013

October 1, 2013

November 1, 2011

Experience in
functional Area

IAS (Retd.) having rich

and varied experience in
administrative and general
management.

Wide experience in global
financial services strategy
and execution.

Has more than 2 decades
experience in private equity
sector.

Has more than 2 decades of
experience in the financial
services sector.

Qualification

Bachelor of Science from
Delhi University

MBA from IIM, Ahmedabad

Bachelor's degree in
Commerce (honors) from
the University of Delhi

B. E. (Electrical) from
National University of
Singapore

MBA from the University of
California (Berkeley)

Chartered Financial

Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of
India.

Diploma in Securities
Law

Bachelor of Commerce

Company

Analyst
Directorships in other | e West Bengal State Nil Nil e ECL Finance Limited
Companies Electricity Distribution « Edelweiss Trusteeship
(public limited Company Limited L
. Company Limited
companies) o Patton International Ltd
o Peerless Trust ¢ Edelweiss Tokio Life
| C
Management Co. Limited r.15u'rance ompany
Limited.
e Nicco Parks & Resorts
Ltd.
e Magma HDI General
Insurance Company
Limited
e Texmaco Rail &
Engineering Limited
Membership of e West Bengal State Nil Nil Edelweiss Tokio Life
Committees of Electricity Distribution Insurance Company Limited
other public limited Company Limited
companies o Peerless Trust
(Audit Committee Management Co. Limited
and Shareholder's / e Nicco Parks & Resorts
Investor's Grievance Ltd.
Committee only)
¢ Magma HDI General
Insurance Company
Limited
No. Shares held in the Nil 7,924,180 Nil 3,87,500
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Business Reach

\;:
250

Delhi Office

Rashesh Shah inaugurates the New Delhi office at Mercantile House.

Housing Finance Loan Camps
Edelweiss Housing Finance organised
successful loan camps in FY14 at Trichy
Thanjavore, Madurai, Erode, Salem etc.

r

Edelweiss Tokio Life
Branch Openings
Deepak Mittal, CEO,
Edelweiss Tokio Life
Insurance inaugurating
branches, across India
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Conferences

N A

Digital Day

Vikas Khemani, President and Co-Head, Wholesale Capital
Markets, Edelweiss with Dr Anand Deshpande, Chairman,
Persistent Systems at the Edelweiss Digital Day

India International Gold Convention

Rashesh Shah, Chairman & CEO, Edelweiss Group at the
10th India International Gold Convention 2013 at Jaipur.

Edelweiss

" P Indm Conference. zﬂlﬂl

India Conference (From lefttoright)

Venkat Ramaswamy - Executive Director, Edelweiss Financial
Services

Vikas Khemani - CEO, Wholesale Capital Markets, Edelweiss
Financial Services

N Chandrasekharan, - CEO & MD, TCS
Rashesh Shah - Chairman & CEO, Edelweiss Group

Nishcal Maheshwari - Head of Research, Wholesale Capital
Markets, Edelweiss Financial Services

Launch of the book ‘Thriving in Adversity-Conversations with
Leaders of India’s Antifragile Companies’ at the Edelweiss
India Conference 2014




Initiatives

Rashesh Shah, a panelist on one
of the episodes of ‘Change India’

| Edelweiss partnered with Network 18 Group
i for ‘Change India’ a television program series
(" that focuses on developmental needs of the
7 nation.

Edelweiss Tokio Life Initiatives

4t with the Western Railways, wherein
| an actor masqueraded as ‘Yamraj’
informed commuters to adhere

to railway safety regulations.

Rashesh Shah, Chairman & CEO, Edelweiss Group
with Dr. Raghuram Rajan, Hon’ble Governor,
Reserve Bank of India, MEDC at the 10"
D.R. Gadgil memorial lecture.

“Lambi Life ki Jarurat” initiative Cur brand comes alive
held in Mumbai in association "
¥

hal mapil revanrel

“Garam Chai Ki Zaroorat” “Protection ki Zaroorat"
initiative held in Delhi. initiative held in Mumbai.




% Titans ’ Edelweiss Idol

’/ ‘Edelweiss Titans' - an all India Edelweiss Awards program An all India singing competition - “Edelweiss Idol”
awarding exemplary behavior, attitude and attributes core - to get the best voices at Edelweiss - to sing the
to the Edelweiss Group. Suno. Samjho. Suljhao - customer centricity anthem.

Edelhealth Initiatives ’

“Save Your Spine" - a bone |
density check drive for the
employees.

BizDivas, conducted talk sessions on { i’ =
Nutrition, PCOD and Thyroid related /
issues, also conducted a Self Defense
Workshop for woman employees.

Save
Your Spine

Edelweiss Risk Champion
Awards

i aain Edelweiss Risk Champion Awards

recognised exceptional Risk

L&
L% sHOP FO DICINES AT A CLICK 1
% i ..R HE i : Professionals and Teams across the

group.

E-medicine galaxy Online Medicine
ordering portal launched for employees.

'

Fountainhead Leadership Centre

The Fountainhead Leadership
Centre at Alibaug is Edelweiss’
corporate and leadership training

initiative.
Edelweiss employees participated ‘
and won a 'Special Award' in the
'Investothon' run held in Mumbai,
an NSE initiative.




Edelweiss Group Presence
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Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss House, Off CST Road ‘
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